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Subsequent to the completion of the Disposal in March 2019,
the Group has devoted significant focus on the production and
sales of crude oil, with the objective of maintaining sustainable
production while minimising production cost. In the meanwhile, the
management of the Group has proactively sought opportunities to
improve the Group’'s overall performance, including establishing
trading division in China, and entering into the Acquisition
Agreement to acquire 50.46% of the equity interest of Nantong
Zhuosheng.

However, the outbreak of COVID-19 since the beginning of 2020
has created greater uncertainty to the global economy, and the
Group performance has been disrupted significantly since then.
Despite most countries have coupled with the impact, and with
the availability of vaccination bringing in positive implication, the
still have
a prolonged impact to the demand of crude oil and sales price
fluctuation, in particular the significant disruption in cargo logistics

Group management is of the view that COVID-19 shall

and mobility.

Given the Group's Energy business will be operating under pressure
in the current low oil price environment and the unpredictable
market outlook, the Group will continue to be stringent with variable
costs and capital expenditures, in order to maintain strong and
resilient financial positions through prudent management of debt
levels and liquidity across the board.

In response to the collapse in selling prices and demand for refined
products, the management of the Group decided to postpone the
capital expenditures plan, temporarily reduce production, and
implement company-wide cost-saving measures, with an aim
to maintain its financial positions while protecting value in an
extended low commodity price environment. The Group has been
implementing a new oil well development method which had been
proved to improve and achieve a better production efficient on the
oil well-drilling operation. The Group remains positive with the
business model in long term, and the Group is of the view that
the new oil well development method shall improve and achieve a
better production efficiency on the oil well-drilling operation.
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The Group has successfully pursued into other related
opportunities within the energy industry to broaden the revenue
source to ease the sole reliance on the oil exploration since the
beginning of the Year. The Group has established several trading
companies in China for energy and mining related commodity
with the objective of creating a new income stream and improve
the Group profit margin. The Group has crystalized a number of
business development since July 2020 and it has brought in positive
impacts to the revenue of the Group.

The Group has also completed the Acquisition of 50.46% of the
equity interest in Nantong Zhuosheng on 22 January 2021.
understood that Nantong Zhuosheng has achieved a number of
post completion undertakings, including the profit guarantee target

It is

for 2020. Such achievement has indicated that the demand of oil
storage is strong, and its performance shall bring in positive impact
to the Group’s 2021 results. The Group management is of the view
that the acquisition of Nantong Zhuosheng shall bring in synergy
and create greater platform for the newly established trading
entities. The Group are able to offer boarder varieties of services
to build up our customers portfolio and solidify the underlying
turnover and profit.

The Group is also continuing to negotiate with lenders in relation
to the extension of existing financial obligations of the Group. The
Group remains positive on the progress and is exploring other
initiatives to increase the liquidity of the Group including different
financing options.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE WD

Business Review

The Group recorded a revenue of approximately RMB34.8 million
for the year ended 31 December 2020 (the “Year”), compared to a
revenue of approximately RMB47.7 million for the year ended 31
December 2019 (the "Comparative Year"). Profit attributable to the
equity holders of the Company was approximately RMB782.6 million
for the Year (Comparative Year: RMB137.3 million).

The increase in profit was mainly driven by the discharge of
Relevant Guarantees and changes in foreign currency translation,
offset by the impairment losses on property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets.

The Group’'s net deficit position as at 31 December 2020 was
improved compared to that of 31 December 2019, with the net deficit
decreased by RMB664.4 million. It was largely driven by the further
discharge of the Relevant Guarantees, offset by the impairment
losses on property, plant and equipment and intangible assets.

Disposal and Relevant Guarantee

On 9 October 2018, the Company entered into a conditional sale
and purchase agreement (the "Agreement”) to dispose of the core
assets and liabilities of its shipbuilding, offshore engineering,
engineering machinery and marine engine building segments (the
“Shipbuilding and Engineering Businesses”, together with the
holding company of the Shipbuilding and Engineering Businesses,
referred to as the "Disposal Group’] with an independent third
party, Unique Orient Limited (the "Purchaser”] (the "Disposal”).
The Disposal constituted a very substantial disposal for the
Company under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited [the “Listing Rules”).
An extraordinary general meeting of the Company was held on
13 December 2018 in which the Disposal was approved by the
shareholders.

The Company signed the second supplemental agreement on
3 March 2019 regarding the Disposal, pursuant to which (1) the
transfer of the sale share of Able Diligent Limited (the "Sale
Share”), the holding company of Disposal Group, to the Purchaser
shall take place on or before 31 March 2020; (2] the Purchaser
agreed to procure the release or discharge of the relevant
guarantees provided by the Company in respect of borrowings owed
by the Disposal Group (the “Relevant Guarantees’); and (3] the
Purchaser agreed to execute a share charge over the Sale Share in
favour of the Company.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Disposal was completed on 10 March 2019 (the “"Disposal Day")
when the Sale Share was transferred to the Purchaser. All the
assets and liabilities associated to the Disposal, except the financial
guarantee contract as mentioned hereafter, were derecognized on
the Disposal Day. The Company signed the third, fourth and fifth
supplemental agreements on 29 August 2019, 30 October 2019 and
25 March 2021, respectively. According to the latest supplemental
agreements, the Purchaser will procure the release or discharge
of the Relevant Guarantees and complete the relevant registration
before 31 December 2021.

The Group and the Purchaser have been working closely to procure
the release or discharge of all remaining Relevant Guarantees in
full and it was agreed that all debts owing by the Disposal Group will
be assigned to the Purchaser when the Relevant Guarantees have
been released or discharged in full and the relevant registration
have been completed.

Throughout the Year, the Company, together with the Purchaser,
has successfully discharged the Relevant Guarantees in an amount
of approximately RMB2 billion. In particular, the Company has taken
the following actions in respect of the release and discharge of the
Relevant Guarantees during the last two years:

() the Company has ongoing discussions with the Purchaser
on a regular basis regarding the status and progress of the
release or discharge of the Relevant Guarantees;

(i)  the Company, together with the Purchaser, has been actively
negotiating with the relevant banks and lenders to release or
discharge the Relevant Guarantees; and

i) the Company is also maintaining its relationship with the
banks and the lenders of the Disposal Group so that no action
will be taken by them to demand immediate repayment of its
outstanding borrowings under the Relevant Guarantees.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE WD

The Company and/or the Purchaser (as appropriate] have prepared
and submitted discharging proposals to the relevant banks and
lenders since 2018, with an initial goal of discharging the Relevant
Guarantees in batches by 2020. However, despite that the above
actions had been taken by the Company and the Purchaser, the
Relevant Guarantees could not be fully discharged in 2020 because
of (1) the distraction and suspension of business caused by the
novel coronavirus pneumonia (the “COVID-19") in the most of 2020;
and (2] the fact that the discharging process of banks was time-
consuming and procedurally and administratively complicated,
particularly given that each bank or lender would have its own
internal review procedures as well as approval hierarchy. As the
discharging progressed further, additional time was required
for the relevant banks and lenders to conduct their internal risk
assessment in respect of the discharging proposals. As the
Company is only in the capacity as the guarantor of the Relevant
Guarantees, the Company may not always be in the position to
negotiate with the relevant banks and lenders concerning certain
financial conditions or obligations which would be imposed on
the Purchaser. Such discussions could only be initiated by the
Purchaser, and the Company would not have control over the
relevant progress and timing.

Nonetheless, both the Company and the Purchaser are committed
to procuring the full discharge of the Relevant Guarantees by 2021.
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As at the date of this report, the latest status of the Relevant
Guarantees [classified by the Company as Relevant Guarantees A to
D for ease of reference) and the expected time for discharging are

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

summarised as follows:

Relevant
Guarantees

HEER

Relevant
Guarantees A

HEERA

Relevant
Guarantees B

HH R FE IR B

Relevant
Guarantees C

HEERC

Relevant
Guarantees D

M EERD

2020 Interim Status
—E-EERHMRE

A portion of the Relevant
Guarantees A has been
discharged.
B — MO EBEERA

Pending relevant bank'’s final
approval for discharging the
remaining outstanding amount.
FHEBRITOREAERRRR
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Discharging proposal has been
submitted to the head office of the
relevant bank in September 2019
and is currently under internal
review.
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Relevant Guarantee C discharged
in full on 30 June 2020.
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Discharging proposal has been
submitted to the relevant bank

by the Purchaser in July 2018.
Discharge progress shall expedite
following the settlement of the
outstanding secured bank loan.
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Current Status
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Relevant Guarantee A discharged
in full on 30 September 2020.
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The discharging proposal was
approved by the relevant division

before the end of 2020.
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The relevant bank has completed
the disposal provision process, and
itis in the finalization stage.
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Relevant Guarantee C discharged

in full on 30 June 2020.
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The outstanding bank loan was
not settled prior to 31 December
2020, hence the relevant bank has
proposed a revising proposal in
the fourth quarter of 2020, and it
is subjected to finalization by the

head office of the bank.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE WD

As at 31 December 2020 and the date of this report, the Relevant
Guarantees provided by the Company to the Disposal Group in the
process of being discharged or released amounted to RMB5,938.6
million (31 December 2019: RMB3,728.0 million), inclusive of
principals and interests. In consideration of such financial
guarantees, the Group recognized financial guarantee contracts of
RMB4,545.1 million (31 December 2019: RMB6,545.1 million) which
will be released upon the releasing or discharging of these Relevant
Guarantees. In the Year, the Company has further discharged
certain part of the Relevant Guarantees amounting to RMB2,000.0
million. A gain was recognised accordingly in the profit and loss
account.

Details of the Disposal were disclosed in note 18 of the 2019 annual
report, and the announcements of the Company dated 9 October
2018, 15 November 2018, 25 December 2018, 4 March 2019, 11
March 2019, and the circular of the Company dated 23 November
2018.

Debt Restructuring

Together with the Disposal, the Group has also conducted and
executed a series of debt restructuring arrangements with an aim
to ease the financial burden of the Group. The lenders have been
supportive in general to the Group and the overall situation has
been improved significantly compared to the Comparative Year.

la] Repayment of a secured bank loan

It is the intention of the Company to repay such secured
bank loan by utilizing the US dollar facility entered with a
shareholder of the Company (the “Shareholder”) in 2018 (the
“Facility”). The Facility has a total amount of USD250 million.
It is an interest-free and unsecured facility with an initial
maturity date of 31 December 2021. The Company expects
to utilise the Facility to repay the outstanding secured bank
loan in batches and all such repayments shall be made by
the third quarter of 2021. Based on the best knowledge and
information available to the Company after discussions with
the Shareholder, the Shareholder is committed to provide the
Facility required by the Company to settle the outstanding
secured bank loan in full in 2021. As at the date of this report,
the Company has successfully extended the maturity date of
the Facility to 31 December 2023.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group has repaid the principal and interest payable of
the secured bank loan amounting to approximately RMB146.4
million during the Year. The outstanding principal was
therefore reduced to approximately RMB314.8 million (31
December 2019: RMB461.2 million).

Extension of maturity date of promissory notes

As at 31 December 2020, the Company had outstanding
promissory notes of RMB1.9 billion (31 December 2019:
RMB2.1 billion).

The Company has been in continuous discussions and
negotiations with the promissory noteholders with the
objective of obtaining their agreements to extend the
overdue liabilities during the Year. The management of the
Company has taken a proactive approach and had numerous
discussions with all the promissory noteholders regarding
the extension of maturity dates of the promissory notes. By 31
December 2020, the Company has successfully extended the
maturity of a significant proportion, RMB860.7 million, beyond
12 months from the end of the Year.

Despite the remaining noteholders have not yet granted the
final consents to the Company for extending the maturity of
the remaining overdue liabilities, they have indicated their
willingness to extend the maturity dates of the promissory
notes. These negotiations were not finalized as at 31
December 2020 as certain commercial terms remain in
discussion and finalization.

The Company is currently working out a plan to settle the
outstanding promissory notes, which would depend on the
Company’s financial performance and upcoming discussions
with the financial institutions on refinancing. As at the date of
this report, no definite settlement terms have been reached
by the Company with any relevant parties in this regard. The
management of the Company has been actively following
up on the status and progress of the above matters and has
been continuously monitoring the relevant progress and
development through regular meetings.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE WD

These aforesaid debt-restructuring actions are devised
to align with the Disposal to improve the overall financial
position of the Group. The Group expects that the successful
release or discharge of Relevant Guarantees shall have
a positive impact on the extension of maturity date, and
settlement of promissory notes.

Obtaining Financial Resources

To further improve the Group's financing position for its future
development, the Group has continued to utilise certain financing
arrangements during the Year, mainly being the Facility entered
with a shareholder in 2018. This Facility has a total amount of
USD250.0 million. It is an interest-free and unsecured facility with
an initial maturity of two years. Up to the date of this report, the
Company had utilised approximately USD119.7 million, mainly for
the oilfield development, repayment of remaining debts and general
working capital.

The Company also expects to continue to utilise the Facility for its
repayment of debts, its capital expenditure on the Energy Business
and for general working capital purpose. As a result of the outbreak
of COVID-19, the Group’s operations in Kyrgyzstan have been
temporarily restricted. Coupled with the current low oil price and
stagnant global demand on oil, it is expected that expenditures in
the Energy Business would only start to be resumed by the Group
by 2024, the earliest. The management of the Group is taking a
prudent approach to manage the capital expenditure of the Energy
Business and will continue to monitor the development of the oil
market in making any capital expenditure decisions.

The Company and the Shareholder are engaged in ongoing
discussions as to the provision of further financial assistance by the
Shareholder to the Company, which is still preliminary and subject
to further discussion. If any such plan is materialised, the Company
will make announcement accordingly.

As at the date of this report, the Company has successfully
extended the Facility maturity date to 31 December 2023.

Energy Exploration and Production

The Group acquired 60% interest in the project involving five
oilfields zones located in the Fergana Valley of the Republic
of Kyrgyzstan [the "Kyrgyzstan Project”]), which marked a
breakthrough of the Group into the energy exploration and
production industry in 2014.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Under the agreements entered into with the national oil company
of Kyrgyzstan, KeipreizxepHedTeras ("Kyrgyzjer
Neftegaz” Limited Liability Company), a subsidiary of the Company
was granted rights to cooperate with the national oil company of
Kyrgyzstan in the operation of the five oilfields zones, namely, Maili-
Su IV, Eastern lIzbaskent, Izbaskent, Changyrtash and Chigirchik.
The first three oilfields zones are located at the northeastern
part of the Fergana Valley while the latter two are located at the
Southeastern part of Fergana Valley. The total area covered by
these five fields is approximately 545 square kilometers.

On the exploration front, the Group has drilled a total of 73 wells
across the five oilfields zones, including 54 in exploration, and 19
currently being construction-in-progress. The Group has also held
a number of appraisal wells for exploration and development. As at
31 December 2020, 63 wells were at production (2019: 57 wells).

For the Year, the Kyrgyzstan Project recorded sales of 113,493
barrels [bbl] (for the Comparative Year: 149,314 bbl) of light crude
oil. Revenue from the Energy Business was approximately RMB22.0
million for the Year decreased by approximately 53.9% from
RMBA47.7 million for the Comparative Year.

The decline of revenue in 2020 was primarily driven by the decrease
in both selling price and sales volume. The management of the
Group is foreseeing that the oil exploration will continue to be
restrained by COVID-19, and with the excess supply and lower
demand in the region, it is reasonably expected that the oil price is
unlikely to recover substantially in the near future. In general, both
the selling price and sales volume will not return to pre-COVID-19
level within the next 12 to 18 months.

In response to the collapse in selling prices and demand for refined
products, the management of the Group decided to postpone
the capital expenditures plan, temporarily reduce production,
and implement company-wide cost-saving measures, with an
aim to maintain its financial positions while protecting value in
an extended low-commodity-price environment. The Group has
been implementing a new oil well development method which had
been proved to improve and achieve a better production efficient
on the oil well-drilling operation. The Group remains positive with
the business model in long term, and the Group is of the view that
the new oil well development method shall improve and achieve a
better production efficiency on the oil well-drilling operation.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE WD

Although the global commodity market has been heavily affected by
the outbreak of COVID-19, there is a growing market demand for oil
storage services. As disclosed in the interim report, the Group has
been continuously looking for other strategic opportunities within
the industry sector to broaden and diversify its revenue source to
ease the sole reliance on the oil exploration business.

On 23 October 2020, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
entered into an acquisition agreement with Mr. Hou Maohua
(the "Vendor”) and Nantong Zhuosheng Petrochemical Co., Ltd
(“Nantong Zhuosheng”, or the “"Target Company”) (the “Acquisition
Agreement”), pursuant to which the Group conditionally agreed
to acquire approximately 50.46% of the equity interest of Nantong
Zhuosheng. The transaction was approved by shareholders on
15 January 2021 and was completed on 22 January 2021 (the
“Acquisition”).

Nantong Zhuosheng possesses the facility, capacity and expertise
in the provision of oil storage services. The Board believes that the
Group can accumulate sufficient experience in the operation and
management in this area, and further expand its business presence
within the oil sector after acquiring Nantong Zhuosheng. This
acquisition also reflected the Group's strategy of investing in oil-
and-gas-related storage and logistic projects, which would enable
the Group to expand its energy business vertically.

The management of the Group is committed to maintaining its
liquidity and will manage its business through this unprecedented
market cycle.

On 1 March 2020, a new director, Mr. Niu Jianmin, was appointed
as executive director to the board of the Company. Mr. Niu Jianmin
has over 30 years of experience in oil and energy industry. He will
be playing a leading role in the expansion and development of the
Energy Business of the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Proved and Probable Oil Reserve and Estimates

A competent person’s report was prepared in September 2018
in accordance with Petroleum Resources Management System
(PRMS] to estimate the oil resources and reserves as of 30
June 2018. The following table sets out the revised estimates
of the Group's reserves as at 31 December 2020 by using the
abovementioned report as the basis:

Unit: million tonnes
=S = ]
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R-ZF—N\FNA RENEHERE
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T\FEAAZTANEHERRE
%ﬁﬁ?ﬁ” cTRRIBE-T-THF
tAZ+-BREEER ERREZQ
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Proved plus
Proved probable

HE EEMSR

Maili-Su IV BEBEEIV 13.6 18.17
East Izbaskent RFHE R 5.10 8.15
Izbaskent FHERR 495 5.04
Total reserves as at 30 June 2018 (the basis date) BE-_ZE—N\FNA=+HZ
BE=E(EEAH) 23.65 31.36
Less: production during second half of 2018 W ZE-N\FTHFrESE 0.02 0.02
Total estimated reserves as at 31 December 2018 & Z_-_Z—N\FE+_A=+—H8Z
RLFTRE 23.63 31.34
Less: production during 2019 B _E-NFZES 0.04 0.04
Total estimated reserves as at 31 December 2019 E’ki —NWF+=-—A=+—8z2
i@ 13 #Fﬁi 23.59 31.30
Less: production during 2020 B _E_EFES 0.03 0.03
Total estimated reserves as at BE-ZE_ZEf+-A=+—H=2
31 December 2020 BIEFREE 23.56 31.27

Financial Review

The Group’'s operating results for the Year were primarily
contributed by the Company and its subsidiaries engaged in
the energy exploration and production. As a result of adopting
International Financial Reporting Standard 5, the results of the
Disposal Group were included under the Discontinued Operations
for the Comparative Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE WD

Revenue

For the Year, the Group recorded a revenue of approximately
RMB34.8 million (for the Comparative Year: approximately RMB47.7
million), representing a year-on-year decrease of approximately
27%. The revenues are derived from: (1) sales of crude oil produced
from the Kyrgyzstan Project: approximately RMB22.0 million (for
the Comparative Year: approximately RMB47.7 million). The Group
has proceeded sales of 113,493 barrels (bbl] during 2020 (for the
Comparative Year: 149,314 bbl) from the Kyrgyzstan Project, with
the average price per tonne of crude oil was approximately USD203
in the Year compared to approximately USD301 in the Comparative
Year. The decline in both sales volume and selling price were
mainly due to the effect of COVID-19, which impacted the overall
crude oil market with a trend of oversupply while the demand has
remained low; (2) commodity trading revenue of RMB12.8 million
from the newly established trading businesses based in China
(for the Comparative Year: NIL). The Group has entered into the
energy-related commodity trading in China since July 2020, and it
is expected that the newly established businesses will continue to
grow throughout 2021,

Cost of Sales

For the Year, the Group’s cost of sales increased by approximately
18.7% to RMBA41.2 million (for the Comparative Year: RMB34.7
million), which was largely driven by the additional costs associated
with the new trading revenue stream.

Gross Profit/Losses

The Group recorded gross losses of approximately RMBé.4 million
for the Year compared to gross profit of approximately RMB13.1
million for the Comparative Year. The decreased in oil price and
lower demand of crude oil have affected the Group's gross profit
margin significantly.

General and Administrative Expenses

For the Year, the Group’s general and administrative expenses
increased by approximately 12.5% to RMB48.5 million (for the
Comparative Year: RMB43.1 million). The increase was largely
driven by the expected credit loss allowance on trade receivables,
and professional expenses associated with the Acquisition.
The recurring cost have been reduced as expected with the
implementation of company-wide cost-saving measures to
minimise expenses.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Impairment loss — Intangible Assets — Co-
operation Rights

For the Year, the Group has recorded a total impairment loss of
RMB1,157.2 million, of which RMB864.4 million has been allocated
to the Co-operation Rights (for the Comparative Year: nil]. This was
primarily in line with the oil and gas industry where majority of the
players were recognizing impairment due to the significant decline
in oil price and the low demand within the market. The management
of the Group has engaged an independent valuer to reassess the
underlying recoverable amount of the Co-operation Rights.

The valuation assessments are predominantly established under
the discounted cashflow framework, or “income method”, and the
underlying assumptions are based on market participant approach,
as well as the internal decision on the development plan.

Despite the assessment approach and mechanism are largely
consistent with previous year, the current year outcome has
changed significant and it is due to change in the following
assumptions: (1) the prospective oil price has reduced significantly
in comparation to the Comparative Year, with the forecast oil price
reduced from US48-65 per barrel, down to USD32-45 per barrel;
(2) historically the Group has a proactive development plan which
is heavily driven by the prospective oil price incremental. However,
with the change in the market circumstances including low oil
price and reduction in oil demand both locally and internationally,
the Board and Group management considered it is appropriated to
postpone development plan until 2024.

The changes of the abovementioned assumptions have not
only indicated a significant impairment on the assets, but also
addressed the concern that the auditor had raised in the past, i.e.
whether the Group has the capability of obtaining sufficient financial
resources to invest in oil assets development within the next 12
months while the Group has prolonged going concern uncertainty.
With the postponement of the oil assets development plan up to
2024, it is considered that such uncertainty associated with ongoing
financial capacity has been appropriately considered and factored in
the evaluation of the impairment loss.

As an outcome of the assessment, the Group has provided an
impairment loss of RMB1,157.2 million for the assets associated
with the Group's operations in Kyrgyzstan, and a substantial portion
of RMB864.4 million was applied against the Co-operation Rights
within intangible assets.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE WD

Impairment loss — Property, plant and
equipment

For the Year, the Group recorded an impairment loss on property,
plant and equipment of RMB296.6 million (for the Comparative Year:
RMB19.3 million). The majority of the impairment loss amounting
to RMB292.8 million arose a part of the total impairment loss
of RMB1,157.2 million as mentioned in the Impairment loss —
Intangible Assets — Co-operation Rights.

The remaining impairment loss of RMB3.8 million is associated
with certain specific oil assets of the Group. These oil assets were
previously used for the Group's oil production but had become idle
due to mechanical issues. Given the cost required to rectify such
assets might exceed its benefit, the Company decided not to do so in
the near future. As such, an impairment losses provision has been
made based on the net book value of the specific assets.

Other Gains/Losses — Net

For the Year, the Group’'s other gain — net was RMB16.4 million
(for the Comparative Year: net losses RMB0.04 million), and the
gain was mainly due to foreign currency exchange fluctuations
associated with working capital.

Finance Costs — Net

The Group’s finance income for the Year increased by approximately
6.4% to RMB36.6 million (for the Comparative Year: RMB34.4
million), which was mainly due to the recognition of imputed interest
gain of interest-free loans when they were extended in the Year.

Finance costs for the Year decreased by approximately 79.8% to
RMB72.2 million (for the Comparative Year: RMB356.8 million], and
the reduction was mainly attributed by the net foreign exchange
gain associated with the borrowings for the Year.

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year

During the Year, the Group recorded total comprehensive
income of approximately RMB664.4 million (for the Comparative
RMB134.9 million], of which total comprehensive
income attributable to the equity holders of the Company was

Year:

approximately RMB680.0 million (for the Comparative Year:
RMB160.3 million). The improvement on total comprehensive
income attributable to the equity holders of the Company was
mainly driven by the further discharge of the Relevant Guarantees,
offset by the impairment losses on property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Liquidity and Going Concern

The Group recorded a net profit of RMB765.0 million (2019:
RMB112.1 million) and had an operating cash inflow of RMB15.8
million (2019: outflow of RMB43.0 million) during the year ended 31
December 2020. As at 31 December 2020, the Group had a deficit
of RMB7,899.1 million (2019: RMB8,563.5 million) and the Group's
current liabilities exceeded its current assets by RMB7,423.4 million
(2019: RMB9,911.5 million). The Group maintained cash and cash
equivalents of RMB16.1 million (2019: RMB42.9 million) as at 31
December 2020.

As at 31 December 2020, borrowings of the Group, amounted to
RMB3,392.9 million, out of which RMB1,365.2 million were overdue.
As at 31 December 2020, overdue interest payables amounted to
RMB492.5 million. Certain borrowings of the Group contain cross-
default terms, causing Borrowings of the Group of RMB8.6 million
at 31 December 2020 to become immediately repayable.

A series of plans and measures have been taken to mitigate liquidity
pressure and to improve the financial position of the Group. In order
to enhance the liquidity and improve the financial position of the
Group, the Group has restructured its operations, refinancing its
debts and proactively liaising with relevant financial institutions to
discharge the Relevant Guarantees.

Details regarding uncertainties on the going concern of the Group
and the respective plans and measures are set out in the section
headed “Going Concern Basis” in Note 2.1(b] to the notes to the
consolidated financial statements.

Borrowings

The Group’s short-term borrowings decreased by RMB713.8 million
from RMB2,657.4 million as at 31 December 2019 to RMB1,943.6
million as at 31 December 2020, and the Group’s long-term
borrowings increased by RMB512.2 million from RMB937.1 million
as at 31 December 2019 to RMB1,449.3 million as at 31 December
2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE WD

As at 31 December 2020, our total borrowings were RMB3,392.9
million (as at 31 December 2019: RMB3,594.5 million), of which
RMB12.6 million (approximately 0.4%) was denominated in RMB
(as at 31 December 2019: RMB28.4 million (approximately 0.8%])
and the remaining RMB3,380.3 million (approximately 99.6%) was
denominated in other currencies such as USD and HKD [as at
31 December 2019: RMB3,566.1 million (approximately 99.2%]).
Approximately 86.0% of the borrowings bear interests at fixed rate
(as at 31 December 2019: approximately 87.2%).

Significant Investments

Save as disclosed in this report, the Group did not have any other
significant investments during the Year.

Material Acquisition and Disposal of Subsidiaries

On 23 October 2020, the Group entered into the Acquisition
Agreement, pursuant to which the Group conditionally agreed
to acquire 50.46% of the equity interest of Nantong Zhuosheng.
For details of the acquisition, please refer to the announcements
dated 23 October 2020, 16 November 2020, 4 December 2020, 14
December 2020 and circular dated 23 December 2020 respectively.
Save for the above, the Group had no other material acquisitions or
disposals of investments during the Year under review.

Future Plans for Material Investments and Capital
Assets

As at 31 December 2020, the Group did not have other plans for
material investments and capital assets.

Foreign Exchange Risks

The Group incurred net foreign exchange gain of approximately
RMB151.3 million (for the Comparative Year: losses of RMB62.8
million) due to the appreciation of RMB against USD and HKD
during the Year, which resulted in exchange gain on certain USD-
denominated and HKD-denominated liabilities, such as trade and
other payables and borrowings of the Group.

Capital Expenditure

For the Year, our capital expenditure was approximately RMB13.7
million (for the Comparative Year: RMB39.7 million), which was
mainly used in the energy exploration and production segment.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Gearing Ratio

Our gearing ratio (measured by total borrowings divided by the sum
of total borrowings and total deficit] increased from approximately
72.3% as at 31 December 2019 to approximately 75.3% as at
31 December 2020. Contributed by the profit of approximately
RMB765.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2020, the total
deficit was reduced to approximately RMB7,899.1 million as at 31
December 2020 (as at 31 December 2019: RMB8,563.5 million).

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2020, we had contingent liabilities of RMB895.0
million (as at 31 December 2019: RMB853.7 million), which was
resulted from financial guarantees provided by the Company to
Disposal Group.

Credit Assessment and Risk Management

Credit risk is managed on a group basis. Credit risk arises
from cash and cash equivalents, outstanding trade and other
receivables. As at 31 December 2020, the Group had cash and cash
equivalents of approximately RMB16.1 million (as at 31 December
2019: RMB42.9 million], of which approximately RMB10.6 million
(approximately 66%) was denominated in RMB and the remaining
RMB5.5 million (approximately 34%) was denominated in USD,
HKD and other currencies. The Group does not use any financial
instruments for hedging purposes.

All of the Group’s cash and bank balances, short-term and long-
term bank deposits were placed with reputable banks which the
management believes are of high creditworthiness and without
significant credit risk.

The Group carries out customer credit checks prior to entering into
sales contract with customers. The Group offers credit lines after
evaluating the customer’s credit profiles, financial conditions, past
experiences and other factors.
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Human Resources

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had approximately 95
employees (as at 31 December 2019: approximately 93 employees).
Total staff costs (including directors’ emoluments] for the
Group were approximately RMB17.9 million for the Year (for the
Comparative Year: approximately RMB19.7 million). The principal
elements of remuneration package includes basic salary and other
benefits, contribution to pension schemes, discretionary bonus
and/or share options granted under an approved share option
scheme. Such remuneration should reflect work complexity,
time commitment, responsibility and performance with a view of
attracting, motivating and retaining high performing individuals.

Additional Information On Auditors’ Modified
Opinions

The Board wishes to draw the attention of the shareholders of the
Company (the "Shareholders’] to the section headed “Basis for
Disclaimer of Opinion” as contained in the Independent Auditor’s
Report dated 26 March 2021 issued by the Company’'s auditors,
Crowe [HK) CPA Limited, now contained in pages 86 to 91 of this
annual report. On the basis set out therein, our auditors do not
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2020.

As explained in the “Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion”, the auditors’
disclaimer of opinion were principally caused by (1) the multiple
uncertainties relating to going concern, and (2] the brought forward
legacy in relation to the opening balances and comparative figures
in relation to the impairment of assets within the Energy Business.

As set out in Note 2.1(b] of this report, the directors of the Company
have been undertaking a number of measures to mitigate the
liquidity pressure, to improve its financial position, to refinance its
operation and to restructure its debts. Despite that the auditors
could not obtain sufficient evidence regarding the going concern
of the Group, the Group's overall financial position for the year
ended 31 December 2020 had improved significantly comparing
to that of 2019. With all the measures mentioned above (refer to
the “Business Review” section of “Management Discussion and
Analysis”), we are expecting the Group's overall financial position to
be further improved in the year to come.

The auditors’ disclaimer opinion in relation to the opening balances
and comparative figures relating to the impairment of assets
within Energy Business is more of a legacy issue brought forward
from prior year. The written down value of such assets as at 31
December 2020 has been audited, and the auditor was able to
obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence regarding the
value of the underlying assets as set out in Note 7 of this report.
Therefore, the disclaimer on assets impairment in relation to
Energy Business is not expected to recur in the Company's auditor’s
report for the financial year subsequent to the year ended 31
December 2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Board and audit committee agreed with the views of the
management and the auditors regarding the uncertainties relating
to going concern, and disclaimer opinion on the opening balances
and comparative figures on the impairment of energy sector’s
assets. There is no disagreement by the Board, the management
nor the audit committee with the position taken by the Company’s
auditors regarding the disclaimer of opinion.

The Directors will continue to use their best efforts to protect and
uphold the Company’s best interest, including ongoing negotiation
with various lenders over the debt restructuring arrangements. The
Group, the Directors and the management are proactively to resolve
matters relating to disclaimer of opinion throughout the financial
year 2021.

Event After The Reporting Period

On 22 January 2021, the Group completed the Acquisition of 50.46%
equity interest in Nantong Zhuosheng Petrochemical Co., Ltd. All
the conditions precedent as set out in the Acquisition Agreement
have been fulfilled on the same date. The Directors consider that
the Acquisition can lay a foundation for the Group to develop a
vertically-integrated business model for its participation in the
energy sector in the long run. The Acquisition will result in potential
synergy with the Group’'s newly established oil and gas trading
business, by securing a stable and reliable storage of oil as part
of the supply chain of the Group at competitive price, improving
operational efficiency and saving costs of the Group as a whole.
In this connection, the Acquisition shall lay a solid foundation and
create a positive operating condition for the Group’s long-term
development of oil and gas business.

We are currently in the process of finalizing the accounting for the
Acquisition and expect to complete our preliminary allocation of
the purchase consideration to the assets acquired and liabilities
assumed by the end of the second quarter of 2021.

As at the date of this report, the Company has successfully
extended the maturity date of the Facility entered with a
shareholder of the Company, to 31 December 2023.
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Board of Directors

The Board, which oversees the Company’s operations through
several committees, has ultimate responsibility for the
administration of the affairs of the Company. The Board consists of
seven Directors, four of whom are executive Directors, and three of
whom are independent non-executive Directors.

Executive Directors

Chairman of the Board,
Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Chen Qiang, aged 59, an executive Director, the Chairman and
chief executive officer of the Company. Mr. Chen joined the Group
in 2004 and was appointed as an executive Director on 24 October
2010. He was further appointed as the Chairman with effect from
26 November 2012. He is also the chairman of our finance and
investment committee, a member of our corporate governance
committee and a member of our remuneration committee. He
is responsible for overseeing the overall operations of the Group
and is a director of a subsidiary of the Company. In 2002, Mr. Chen
obtained his doctorate degree in naval architecture and ocean
engineering from Harbin Engineering University (5 /& T8 X
2] and an MBA degree from China Europe International Business
School (H Bt Bl B I 7 2 Bt ). Mr. Chen obtained a master’s
degree in professional accounting (EMPAcc) [ & ¥ & &t 18 1)
from the Chinese University of Hong Kong and was awarded the
CFO Qualifying Certificate from the Shanghai National Accounting
Institute ( £ /& B & & 5 2 B2 ) in 2010. He also obtained a
bachelor’s degree in marine power engineering from Shanghai
Jiao Tong University [ /%2 3@ K2 in 1982. He also completed
the Rongsheng Global Leaders Program of the Wharton School
of the University of Pennsylvania in October 2011. Mr. Chen once
served as an assistant to the general manager and subsequently a
deputy manager of Jiangnan Shipbuilding Group Co., Ltd. (JT g #&
i &£ BB R AF]). He was an executive deputy general manager
and subsequently the vice-chairman to the board of directors and
general manager of Shanghai Waigaogiao Shipbuilding Co., Ltd.
(EBINS B EMBRRZAR), and was one of the founders of the
company. Mr. Chen is one of the experts on the national expert
database of the PRC and was named as one of the “one hundred
entrepreneurial talents” by the Jiangsu provincial government.
In 2011, he was also a top-tier chief scientist enrolled in the 4th
“333 Talents Cultivation Project” of Jiangsu Province. In 2010, the
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

prestigious Norwegian shipping magazine “TradeWinds” ranked
him the 41st among the “100 Most Influential People in Shipping
Today”. In 2012, Lloyd’s List ranked him the 88th among the “100
Most Influential People in Global Shipping Industry of 2012".
Mr. Chen enjoys special government allowances granted by the
State Council and has won many domestic awards and has been
granted many honorary titles, for example, the State Scientific and
Technological Progress Second Class Award (B4 2% £} £ 33 1i7 3 25
Z % #) in 1990. Mr. Chen is a committee member of the Jiangsu
Shipbuilding and Offshore Engineering Assessment Panel of
Professional Qualification (T #R A AR EL G F TR S REEHKMN
ERFAES)

Mr. HONG Liang

Executive Director and Chief Operating Officer

Mr. Hong Liang, aged 49, is an executive Director and chief
operating officer of the Company. Mr. Hong joined the Group in
2006 and was appointed as an executive Director on 24 October
2010. He is @ member of our finance and investment committee.
He is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr.
Hong is primarily responsible for investment and financing, capital
as well as cost and budget management. Mr. Hong obtained his
bachelor’s degree in accounting from Shanghai University (_E &
AEZ) in 1994. He obtained the Master of Executive Professional
Accountancy (EMPAcc] from Shanghai National Accounting Institute
and The Chinese University of Hong Kong in August 2010. He also
completed the Rongsheng Global Leaders Program of the Wharton
School of the University of Pennsylvania in October 2011. Mr. Hong
has 20 years of experience in corporate finance and strategic
investment gained from his service at investment banks. Mr. Hong
worked at Shenyin and Wanguo Securities (FF R & 3 % % 2 7))
as an assistant manager of division two of the Shanghai investment
banking department from 1994 to 1997, the deputy general manager
of the Shanghai investment banking division of CITIC Securities
Limited (15 7% % B R & £ A Fl), the general manager of the
investment banking division of United Securities Company Limited
(Bt & B H D A A from 1998 to 1999, the deputy manager of
the investment banking division of CITIC Securities Limited (
=& FH KM AT from 1999 to 2002, the general manager of
the investment and development division of Shanghai Sunglow
Investment Co., Ltd. [ £85Ik B E BB R 2 F]) from 2002 to
2004, and the deputy general manager of the strategic investment
division of Shanghai Dasheng Holdings Limited (/8 K& & E X
A]) from 2004 to 2005.

EENRSREER

AMERZARKE - AWNTFEER
MERMES —FE - REERTIEHEMN
FEBFTIESABIXRRMERTEEE

5 o

BRI
HITESENERFEER

R E 95 BARAINBITES R
BREAYEE - HELAR-ZETNEMNMAR
E8 YR ZE-ZTFTATHAEZ
TENTES BNAVBRIEEZE
KB  BHAARRAETHBRARZE
FEoHEETTAERME B2 RKA
TEEER - HAEER —NNNFE EEX
BedEata8y N_T-TF\ K
BLELEBRREGIERBAFEFXAENT
MY EABHESHBELEN - MR
E-——FTARKE S AR REBKRER
BRMREREIRBEMERRE A LEBER
BRITIE AoEMERTERE T
BRE-TFER - HEECE-—NLNLEF
E-NMNEtFEITREEBRESRT LE
WERTHFIE_MIKE - FEEFEB
RETARLEBRERTHOEIBLERE -
BE—NMNANEE-—ANANFETHEES
BHARIEERTHREE - 5— NN
FE_TT_FEIHREIZIEROHIARAE
BRITHILE BZET-_F2-ZF
NFEETLEEEGEXREEEBERARKRE
BFRIELCEREEENFE-_TERH
FREILEBRBREEARRBIEENRAA
AL

ANNUAL REPORT 2020
FEHRE2020

25



26

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
é%&nn IEJE

Ms. ZHU Wen Hua

Executive Director

Ms. Zhu Wen Hua, aged 52, is an executive Director. Ms. Zhu was
appointed as an executive Director on 31 December 2013. She
is a member of our nomination committee. She has served as
vice-chairman of Rongsheng Heavy Industries since May 2015.
She served as an assistant supervisor of the supervisory audit
department and a supervisor of the bidding control department of
Rongsheng Heavy Industries, a subsidiary of the Company, since
2009 and January 2012 respectively. She also has served as an
assistant to the president of Rongsheng Heavy Industries since
October 2013. Since March 2014, she has served as vice-president
of Rongsheng Heavy Industries, as well as head of the cost control
department and director of the bidding office. She is also a director
of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Ms. Zhu graduated from
the Graduate School of the Shanghai University (/8 KE#f 3%
A EF) in May 2010 studying a professional postgraduate course
in Management Science & Engineering. She also completed the
Rongsheng Global Leaders Program of the Wharton School of the
University of Pennsylvania in June 2012.

Mr. NIU Jianmin

Executive Director

Mr. Niu, aged 54, is currently the president of
KeiprolsxepHedTeras [(Kyrgyzier Neftegaz Limited
Liability Company], an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company, since March 2018. Mr. Niu was graduated from the
Russian major of Kunlun Vocational College in Xinjiang (¥758 &
Bk 2 KE) in 1991 and graduated from the Russian language
and literature of Tashkent Normal University (¥ 11 Al &5 A £2)
in 1995. In 2018, he entered the Kyrgyz Humanities University (&
& BT A UK 2] and studied for a master’s degree in economic
management. Mr. Niu has over 30 years of experience in oil and
energy industry. Prior to joining the Company, he served as the
deputy general manager of Xinjiang Yaxin International Economic
and Trade Co., Ltd. (T2 ZEBIME L B K 9 AR 2 A]) from
1991 to 2002. He was also the general manager of Xinjiang Lishida
Aluminum International Trade Co., Ltd. (¥T88 h T #E iR ¥ B &
2 |]) from 2002 to 2009. From 2009 to 2018, he was employed in
several oil and energy related companies, mainly responsible for
acquisition, exploration and development of Kazakhstan oilfield
projects.
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Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. WANG Jin Lian

Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. Wang Jin Lian, aged 75, is an independent non-executive
Director. He was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 31 July 2013. He is the chairman of our corporate
governance committee and nomination committee and a member
of our audit committee, finance and investment committee and
remuneration committee. He was the secretary general of China
Association of the National Shipbuilding Industry from May 2006
to August 2015. Mr. Wang has over 40 years of experience in
shipbuilding industry. He previously held various senior positions,
including deputy director general of the international bureau of
China State Shipbuilding Corporation (H B fis #f T 2 48 & 7)),
director general of the planning and development department of
China State Shipbuilding Corporation (Bl T2 £ B A F), vice
chairman of Shanghai Waigaogiao Shipbuilding Co., Ltd. (_E /84N &
B M A PR A A)) and vice chairman of Hudong Heavy Machinery
Co., Ltd. (B E# XD BB A F]). Mr. Wang holds the senior
engineer (researcher level] qualification in China. He graduated
from Beijing Institute of Aeronautics (currently named as Beihang
University) (3b Rt 22 2B - 3R A1 R 2= it R K] in 1969,

Ms. ZHOU Zhan

Independent Non-executive Director

Ms. Zhou Zhan, aged 59, is an independent non-executive Director.
She was appointed as an independent non-executive Director
on 21 May 2014. She is the chairman of our audit committee
and remuneration committee and a member of our finance and
investment committee and nomination committee. She is currently
a partner at Beijing Promise Certified Public Accountants General
Partnership (3t ;R IR E {5 & 5T B == 7% F7). She participated in
founding Sino-Reality Certified Public Accountants (22 & & 5t Al &
% FT) in 1997, where she served as a partner from 1997 to 2013. Ms.
Zhou has more than 30 years of experience in auditing, accounting
and taxation. Ms. Zhou holds Certified Public Accountant and
Certified Public Tax Advisor qualifications in the PRC. She
graduated from Zhongnan University of Economics and Law (7
B 45 Bt 7% K 2) with a bachelor’s degree in economics in 1983.
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Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. Lam Cheung Mau, aged 64, is an independent non-executive
Director. Mr. Lam was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 18 November 2015. He is a member of our audit
committee and corporate governance committee. Mr. Lam has over
30 years of experience in the auditing and finance. He previously
held various positions, as officers in the audit department of Hua
Chiao Commercial Bank, in the corporate planning and budgeting
division of the finance department of Bank of China (Hong Kong)
and was an audit manager of Han's Laser Technology Industry
Group Co., Ltd. Mr. Lam graduated in 1982 from the accounting
division of Xiamen University (/&9 X 2] with a bachelor’s degree
in economics. Mr. Lam is currently an independent non-executive
director of China Smarter Energy Group Holdings Limited (a
company listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange) and a member
of its audit committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors are pleased to submit this report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2020.

Principal Activities and Analysis of

Operations

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 32 on pages
210 to 212 to the financial statements.

Details of the analysis of the Group's turnover and contribution to
gross profit for the year, by operating segments, are set out in Note
5 to the consolidated financial statements.

Business Review

A fair review of the business of the Group as required pursuant to
Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of
Hong Kongl, comprising analysis of the Group performance during
the year, description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing
the Group, particulars of important events affecting the Group
that have occurred since the end of the financial year 2020 as well
as indication of likely future development in the business of the
Group are set out in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement”,
“Management Discussion and Analysis” and “Corporate
Governance Report” contained in this annual report.

The financial risk management objectives and policies of the Group
are set out in Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.
An analysis of the Group’s performance using financial key
performance indicators is shown in the section headed “Five-Year
Financial Summary” of this annual report.

Results

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 are
set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on
pages 94 to 96 of this annual report.

Dividend Policy and Dividends

The Directors did not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).
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The Company’s ability to pay dividends depends on, among
other things, the Group's current and future operations, liquidity
position and capital requirements. The payment of dividends by the
Company is also subject to compliance with any restrictions under
the Laws of the Cayman Islands, the memorandum and articles
of association of the Company and any applicable laws, rules and
regulations. The Board will review the dividend policy from time to
time and may exercise at its absolute and sole discretion to update,
amend, and/or modify the policy at any time as it deems fit and
necessary. There is no assurance that dividends will be paid in any
particular amount for any specific period.

Closure of Register of Members

The register of members of the Company will be closed during the
period from Monday, 31 May 2021 to Thursday, 3 June 2021 (both
days inclusive), during which no transfers will be registered, for the
purpose of ascertaining shareholders” entitlement to attend and
vote at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company
to be held on Thursday, 3 June 2021 ("2021 AGM"). In order to be
eligible to attend and vote at the 2021 AGM, all transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
for registration with the Company’s share registrar in Hong Kong,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops
1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 28 May
2021.

Share Capital

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company are
set out in Notes 12 and 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

Convertible Bonds

Details of the convertible bonds are set out in the Note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Distributable Reserves

As at 31 December 2020, no reserves of the Company available for
distribution to shareholders (2019: Nil).
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Financial Summary

A summary of the results for the year ended and of the assets and
liabilities of the Group as at 31 December 2020 and for the previous
four financial years are set out in the Five-Year Financial Summary
section on page 214 of this annual report.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’'s Articles of Association or the relevant laws of the
Cayman Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro-rata basis.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the

Company’s Listed Securities

During the year ended 31 December 2020, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities.

Share Option Schemes
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

On 24 October 2010, the Company conditionally approved and
adopted the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.

As at 31 December 2020 and as at the date of this report, there was
no outstanding options under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.
No further options will be offered or granted by the Company
pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme. The exercise price
per Share of the options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme is HKD20.00. The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme has
expired during the year ended 31 December 2020.

The purpose of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is to give the
participants an opportunity to acquire a personal stake in the
Company and help motivate such participants to optimise their
performance and efficiency, and also to help retain the participants
whose contributions are important to the long-term growth and
profitability of the Group. The maximum number of Shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of the options granted under the
Pre-IPQ Share Option Scheme to any one Participant (including both
exercised and unexercised options) in any 12-month period shall not
exceed 1% of the Shares in issue as at the date of grant.
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following table discloses details of the Company’s outstanding

share options held by the Directors and certain employees of
the Company under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and their
movements during the year ended 31 December 2020:

BN
Gl
i

REBARREERETREREFAAR
BRAFEERBRE SR TRITRE
RENFBAMME_T-_TF+_A

T+ BHILEFEENE

Number of share options
BREHA
Asat As at
1 January 31 December Exercise Exercisable
Names of grantees Date of grant 2020 Exercised Cancelled Lapsed 2020 price (HKD) period
EA— T — ? E
it St L ) ) 128 R ]
RRAER RitBH -A-H BITE HH# 3 =t-H (B7) oL
Mr. Hong Liang 24 October 2010 875,000 - - 875,000 - 20,00 Note
HREE Z%-% fit &
tA=t+mA
Ms.\Zhu Wen Hua 24 October 2010 75,000 - - 75,000 - 20.00 Note
AXfEnt ZE-%F fit &
+tAZ1+@A
Senior Managementand 24 October 2010 1,700,000 = = 1,700,000 = 2000 Note
other employees
_linaggregatel
RRERERAMER _—T-%F fit &
(5#) tA=tmA
Total 2,650,000 - - 2,650,000 -
At
Note: B 5
Each of the grantees to whom the options have been granted under the Pre-IPO Share ~ RIFE XA E S B R B2 BB REN A

Option Scheme is entitled to exercise:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

up to 20% of the shares that are subject to the options granted to the relevant
grantee (rounded down to the nearest whole number of shares] at any time
during the period commencing on 19 November 2010 [the “Listing Date”) and
ending on the first anniversary of the Listing Date;

up to 40% of the shares that are subject to the options granted to the relevant
grantee less the number of shares in respect of which the options have been
exercised by the grantee (rounded down to the nearest whole number of shares)
at any time during the period commencing on the expiry of the first anniversary
of the Listing Date and ending on the second anniversary of the Listing Date;

up to 60% of the shares that are subject to the options granted to the relevant
grantee less the number of shares in respect of which the options have been
exercised by the grantee (rounded down to the nearest whole number of
shares) at any time during the period commencing on the expiry of the second
anniversary of the Listing Date and ending on the third anniversary of the Listing
Date;

CHINA HUARONG ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
FEIEKEERIRA AR A E

BRABETE:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

H-ZE-Z2F+—-A+NAB(EWEEDEE L
THBE-—BFER L BEETAER T2RET
A B AR A BB R PSR 4D B020% (K00R 2 & 3%
ERR BB BB

mEMAM—BEEREE LTAMMBFER
EHRERER TZRETHABERRABR
T PR LA B9 40% 8 A& 1% A B 1T (6 B8 AR 4 PS5 AR
DB EREIEROEENEE

mEmAMMBEEREE LHAM=ZBFER
EHRERER TZRETHBERREABR
T PR LA B9 60% I AR A B 1T (6 8 AR 4 A% AR
KB EREIEROEENEE



(iv]  up to 80% of the shares that are subject to the options granted to the relevant
grantee less the number of shares in respect of which the options have been
exercised by the grantee (rounded down to the nearest whole number of shares)
at any time during the period commencing on the expiry of the third anniversary
of the Listing Date and ending on the fourth anniversary of the Listing Date; and

[v]  such number of shares subject to the options granted to the relevant grantee
less the number of shares in respect of which the options have been exercised
by the grantee (rounded down to the nearest whole number of shares) at any
time during the period commencing on the expiry of the fourth anniversary of
the Listing Date and ending on 26 October 2020.

Share Option Scheme

On 24 October 2010, the Company also conditionally approved and
adopted a share option scheme for the purpose of enabling the
Group to grant options to selected participants as incentives or
rewards for their contribution to the Group. Under the Share Option
Scheme, the maximum number of Shares which may be issued by
the Company pursuant to the exercise of the share options under
the Share Option Scheme is 140,000,000 Shares, representing
10% of the total issued share capital of the Company on the Listing
Date. As at 31 December 2020 and as at the date of this report,
the total number of Shares in respect of the outstanding options
granted under the Share Option Scheme was 24,761,000 Shares,
representing approximately 0.52% of the total issued share capital
of the Company comprising 4,770,491,507 Shares. The exercise
price per Share of the options granted under the Share Option
Scheme is HKD9.70. During the Period, no share options had been
granted under the Share Option Scheme.

The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted under the Share Option Scheme to
each participant (including both exercised and unexercised options)
in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue
as at the date of grant.
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The following table discloses details of the Company’s outstanding
share options held by the Directors and certain employees of the
Company under the Share Option Scheme and their movements
during the year ended 31 December 2020:

TREBEARREERETREREFAAR
BIERERT SR T ARITERB RN BN
rBE_ZFT_EF+_A=+—BHLFE

Number of share options
BREXE
Asat Asat
1 January 31 December Exercise Exercisable
Names of grantees Date of grant 2020 Exercised Cancelled Lapsed 2020 price (HKD) period
R-B-EE
R-Z-%F 128 e
ARAER RHBH -A-H B i XX =t+-H (B7) e
Mr. Chen Qiang 30 April 2012 14,000,000 - - - 14,000,000 9.70 Note
Raxs _2-Cf i
MA=1A
Mr. Hong Liang 30 April 2012 2,800,000 - - - 2,800,000 9.70 Note
EREL ik S s
MA=1A
Ms. Zhu Wen Hua 30 April 2012 900,000 - - - 900,000 9.70 Note
AXfELL _2-Cf s
MA=1A
Senior Managementand 30 April 2012 8,272,000 = = 1,211,000 7,061,000 9.70 Note
other employees
(in aggregate)
BRERER “3-CF s
HEE(AR) MA=+H
Total 25,972,000 - - 211,000 24,761,000
At
Note: Bt 5E

No share options are exercisable prior to the first anniversary of 30 April 2012 ("Date
of Grant”). On each of the first, second, third, fourth and fifth anniversaries of the
Date of Grant, a further 20% of the share options granted to each grantee may be
exercised, provided that no share options shall be exercised after 30 April 2022.

Particulars of the Company’s Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and
Share Option Scheme are set out in Note 13 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Subsidiaries

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 December 2020 are
set out in Note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Connected Transactions
Exempt Connected Transactions

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company entered
into certain related party transactions which also constitute fully
exempt connected transaction under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules, details of which are set out below:

During the year ended 31 December 2020, Mr. Zhang Zhi Rong (a
substantial Shareholder of the Company) and/or entities controlled
by him or his close family members, agreed to provide security-free
and interest-free loan facilities to the Group for working capital
purposes for an aggregate amount up to RMB1,671,675,000.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, directors and substantial
shareholders of the Company or entities controlled by them
provided guarantees and security in respect of certain bank
borrowings and refund guarantees of the Group.

As the above financial assistance was provided by connected
persons for the benefit of the Company on normal commercial
terms (or better to the Company) and no security over the assets
of the Group is granted in respect of the financial assistance, the
financial assistance constitutes connected transactions of the
Company exempt from reporting, announcement and independent
shareholders” approval requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.90 of
the Listing Rules.

Related Party Transactions

Details of the material related party transactions undertaken by
the Group in the normal course of business are set out in Note
30 to the consolidated financial statements. Those related party
transactions which constituted connected transactions/continuing
connected transactions under the Listing Rules are set out in the
section headed “Connected Transactions” above, and the Company
has complied with the applicable requirements in accordance with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group had no
purchases from major suppliers since the operations and capital
expenditure of the Group were minimal. The percentages of sales,
attributable to the Group’s largest customer and the three largest
customers were 17.9% and 44.8%, respectively. During the year
ended 31 December 2020, none of the Directors or any of their
associates, or any shareholders of the Company (which to the best
knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital), had any interest in any of the Group's five
largest suppliers or customers.

Remuneration Policy

The remuneration of directors are recommended by the
remuneration committee of the Company and approved by the
Board, based on prevailing market conditions and with reference
to other companies of a similar size, business nature and scope
as the Company. In addition, the Company may grant share
options to eligible directors and employees as incentives for their
contributions to the Group.

The primary goal of our policy for remuneration packages is
to ensure that Directors are fairly rewarded and they receive

appropriate incentives to maintain high standards of performance.

The principal elements of the Directors’ remuneration package
include:

e basic salary and other benefits;

contribution to pension schemes;

e discretionary bonus; and

e share options granted under an approved option scheme.
Details of the Directors’ emoluments, the five highest-paid
individuals and senior management of the Group for the year ended

31 December 2020 are set out in Notes 19 and 24, respectively, to
the consolidated financial statements.
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Directors

Directors of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2020
and up to the date of this report are as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chen Qiang (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer]
Mr. Hong Liang (Chief Operating Officer]

Ms. Zhu Wen Hua

Mr. Niu Jianmin (appointed on 1 March 2020)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wang Jin Lian
Ms. Zhou Zhan
Mr. Lam Cheung Mau

Mr. Chen Qiang, Ms. Zhu Wen Hua and Mr. Lam Chenug Mau
are due to retire from the Board by rotation at the 2021 AGM in
accordance with Article 16.18 of the Articles of Association.

The biographical details of the Directors and senior management
of the Company as at the date of this Report are set out in the
Directors and Senior Management section on pages 24 to 28 of this
annual report.

Directors’ Service Contracts

During the year ended 31 December 2020, none of the Directors
had entered into a service contract with the Group which was not
determinable within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.
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Directors’ Material Interests in
Transactions, Arrangements and
Contracts that are Significant in
Relation to the Company’s Business

Save for the contracts described under the section headed
“Connected Transactions” above, no contracts of significance [as
defined in Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules) or arrangements in
relation to the Group's business to which the Company or its holding
company or a subsidiary of the Company or its holding company
was a party and in which a Director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year ended 31 December 2020.

Directors’ Interests in Competing
Business

As at 31 December 2020, none of the Directors were interested in
any business apart from the Group’s businesses which competes or
is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with businesses of
the Group.

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
Interests and Short Positions in
Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures of the Company or
Any Specified Undertaking of the
Company

As at 31 December 2020, the Directors and chief executive of the
Company had the following interests in the Shares or underlying
shares of the Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SF0")) which were recorded in the register required to be kept
under section 352 of the SFO or otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the "Model Code"):
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(A) Long Positions in Shares and Underlying
Shares of the Company
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(A) R T IR K A6 B8 AR 17 &Y

L)

Number of Shares Interested

BEEZNROHE
Equity

derivatives Percentage of

Personal Corporate Corporate (share issued share

Names of Director interest interest interest options)? Total capital®

BRASTETA HEBITRAR

BExEl (PN F= DR G DR H (BBRHE): i Bt

Mr. Chen Qiang — — 27,200,000 14,000,000 41,200,000 0.86%
PBRa& L4

Mr. Hong Liang — — — 2,800,000 2,800,000 0.06%
HREE

Ms. Zhu Wen Hua - - - 900,000 900,000 0.02%

RXER L
Notes: B 3 -

1

27,200,000 Shares (before taking into account the 14,000,000 Shares
that may be granted to Mr. Chen Qiang pursuant to share options) are
directly held by Boom Will Limited. Boom Will Limited is 100% directly
beneficially owned by Mr. Chen Qiang.

These interests represented the interests in underlying shares in
respect of share options granted by the Company to these directors as
beneficial owners, the details of which are set out in the section headed
“Share Option Schemes” above.

These percentages have been compiled based on the total number of
issued shares of the Company of 4,770,491,507 as at 31 December 2020
and rounded to two decimal places.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none of
the Directors or the chief executive of the Company had any
interest or short position in the Shares, underlying shares

or debentures of the Company or any of its associated

corporations [within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as

recorded in the register required to be kept under section 352
of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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(B) Share Options

The interests of the Directors and chief executive in the share
options (being regarded as unlisted physically settled equity
derivatives) of the Company are detailed in the section headed

“Share Option Schemes” above.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year, the
Directors and chief executive (including their spouses and
children under 18 years of age] had any interest in, or had
been granted, or exercised, any rights to subscribe for shares,
warrants or debentures, if applicable) of the Company or its
associated corporations required to be disclosed pursuant to

the SFO.
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests
in the Share Capital of the Company

As at 31 December 2020, the interests of substantial shareholders
(other than the Directors or chief executive of the Company) in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company which were recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under section
336 of the SFO were as follows:
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FERERADTBRAD
2 2
FE %
R-ZE-ZZTF+_-_A=+—B FERKHE
(ARABEEXHESTHAERIIN RAR
B EERD T EEBESTNIREE
AR EEPENMEEEFES M
EmMR

Number of shares Percentage of
and derivatives issued share
Name of substantial shareholder interested capital”
BEERNROR HERTRSG
FTERRER STETAHA ERal=4
China Minsheng Banking Corp. Ltd. 7,006,000,000 146.86%
Ms. Zhao Xuejun? 1,420,120,000 29.77%
HE R L1t
Skyline Asia International Limited? 1,420,120,000 29.77%
Action Phoenix Limited? 1,150,000,000 2411%
Mr. Wang Ping® 288,659,794 6.05%
F A
Kingwin Victory Investment Limited® 288,659,794 6.05%
EHBNNIREBR AR
Mr. Zhang Zhi Rong* 388,301,031 8.14%
o A 5 A
Fine Profit Enterprises Limited* 388,301,031 8.14%
FREEBRAG
Mr. Mei Liang® 348,000,000 7.29%
18R 7 &5
Top Acton Limited® 348,000,000 7.29%
Mr. Ho Kwok Leung Glen® 342,000,000 717%
o] B AR 4 AR
Mr. Lai Kar Yan¢ 342,000,000 717%
BE R
China Development Bank® 342,000,000 717%
Castle Giant Investments Limited? 270,120,000 5.66%
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Notes:

1. This interest represents the interests directly held by Minsheng Bank (Shanghai
and Minsheng Bank (Suzhou) in the 6,639,880,000 underlying shares and
366,120,000 underlying shares of the Company respectively in relation to the
Subscription Convertible Preference Shares issued by the Company. Both
Minsheng Bank (Shanghail and Minsheng Bank (Suzhou) are branches of
China Minsheng Banking Corp. Ltd.. As such, Minsheng Bank (Shanghai) and
Minsheng Bank (Suzhou] will also not be regarded as a public Shareholder in the
event that Minsheng Bank (Shanghail] and Minsheng Bank (Suzhoul), individually
or in aggregate, hold 10% or more of the issued share capital of the Company
upon conversion of the Subscription Convertible Preference Shares. Minsheng
Bank (Shanghai) and Minsheng Bank (Suzhou) may be subject to the obligations
to make a general offer under the Takeovers Code in the event that they,
individually or in aggregate, hold 30% or more of the issued share capital of the
Company upon conversion of the Subscription Convertible Preference Shares.
Pursuant to the Company’'s Amendments and Restatement of Memorandum and
Articles of Association, if the issue of ordinary Shares following the exercise by
a holder of the Convertible Preference Shares of the conversion rights would
result in the Company not meeting the Public Float Requirement immediately
after the conversion, then the conversion and the number of ordinary Shares
to be issued pursuant to such conversion shall be restricted to the maximum
number of ordinary Shares issuable by the Company which would not in the
reasonable opinion of the Company result in a breach of the Public Float
Requirement.

2. These represent the same interests of Action Phoenix Limited and Castle
Giant Investments Limited. Each of Action Phoenix Limited and Castle Giant
Investments Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary of Skyline Asia International
Limited, of which is 100% directly beneficially owned by Ms. Zhao Xuejun.

3. Kingwin Victory Investments Limited is wholly-owned by Mr. Wang Ping. This
presents the same interest of Kingwin Victory Investment Limited.

4. This represents the same interest of Fine Profit Enterprises Limited ("Fine
Profit’] and Wealth Consult Limited ("Wealth Consult”) of 21,744,800 shares.
Wealth Consult is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Fine Profit, of which is wholly
owned by Mr. Zhang Zhi Rong. Mr. Zhang Zhi Rong was therefore deemed to
have an interest in the shares in which Fine Profit was interested.

5. Top Acton Limited is wholly-owned by Mr. Mei Liang. This represents the same
interest of Top Acton Limited.

6. Mr. Ho Kwok Leung Glen and Mr. Lai Kar Yan (the "Receivers”) were appointed
on 25 June 2019 as the receivers of China Development Bank holding
342,000,000 shares of the Company as at 31 December 2020.

7. These percentages have been compiled based on the total number of issued
shares of the Company of 4,770,491,507 as at 31 December 2020 and rounded to
two decimal places. All interest stated above represent long positions.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, the Company had
not been notified of any persons (other than the Directors or chief
executive of the Company) who had an interest or short position
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
section 336 of the SFO.
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Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, throughout the year
ended 31 December 2020 and as at the date of this report, there
has been sufficient public float of more than 25% of the Company’s
issued shares as required under the Listing Rules.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year ended 31 December 2020.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

Compliance procedures are in place to ensure adherence to
applicable laws, rules and regulations in particular, those have
significant impact to the Group. Any changes in the applicable
laws, rules and regulations are brought to the attention of relevant
employees from time to time. As far as the Company is aware,
it has complied in material respects with the relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the business and
operation of the Company.
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Environmental Policies and
Performance

Our commitment to protect the environment is well reflected by our
continuous efforts in promoting green measures and awareness
in our daily business operations. We encourage environmental
protection and comply with environmental regulation and promotes
awareness towards environmental protection to the employees. In
the course of its daily operations, the Group adheres to the principle
of recycling and reducing. It implements green office practices
such as double-sided printing and copying, promoting using
recycled paper and reducing energy consumption by switching
off idle lightings and electrical appliances. The Group will review
its environmental practices from time to time and will consider
implementing further eco-friendly measures and practices in the
operations of the Group’s businesses to enhance environmental
sustainability.

Further details of the Group's environmental policies and
performance will be disclosed in the “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” of this annual report.

Relationship with Customers and
Suppliers

The Group has been maintaining friendly negotiation with its
customers and suppliers to develop long-term relationships.
Further details in relation to the major customers and suppliers
identified during the Period are disclosed in the paragraph headed
“Major Customers and Suppliers” in this report and in the section
headed “Operation Practices” in the “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” of this annual report.

Tax Relief

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to
the shareholders of the Company by reason of their holdings in the
shares of the Company.

Corporate Governance

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company
are set out in the Corporate Governance Report section on pages 46
to 63 of this annual report.
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Permitted Indemnity Provisions

The Articles of Association provides that every Director or other
officer of the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of
the assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities incurred
or sustained by him as a Director or other officer of the Company
in defending any proceedings, whether civil or criminal, in which
judgment is given in his favour, or in which he is acquitted. In
addition, the Company has maintained appropriate directors and
officers liability insurance in respect of the relevant legal actions
against the Directors.

Auditor

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2020 have been audited by Crowe (HK) CPA Limited.
PricewaterhouseCoopers resigned as auditors of the Company
with effect from 30 September 2020. Crowe (HK) CPA Limited was
appointed as auditor of the Company with effect from 30 September
2020 to fill the casual vacancy and to hold office until the conclusion
of the 2021 AGM.

Directors’ Responsibilities for the
Financial Statements

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of financial
statements for each financial period which give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flows
for that period. In preparing these financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2020, the Directors have selected suitable
accounting policies and applied them consistently, made judgments
and estimates that are prudent and reasonable, and have prepared
the financial statements on a going concern basis. The Directors
are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which
disclose, with reasonable accuracy at any time, the financial
position of the Group.

On behalf of the Board

Chen Qiang
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2021
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The Board and the management of the Company strictly adhere
to the principles of good corporate governance, which is vital to
prudent management and the enhancement of shareholder value.
These principles emphasise transparency, accountability and
independence. Set out below are those principles of corporate
governance adopted by the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company complied
with the applicable code provisions set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the "Code’] contained in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules, save for the deviations as described in this Corporate
Governance Report.

Code provision A.2.1 of the Code stipulates that the roles of the
chairman of the board and the chief executive officer should be
separate and should not be performed by the same individual.
Mr. Chen Qiang had performed both the roles of chairman of the
board (the “Chairman”) and chief executive officer of the Company
in deviation from code provision A.2.1 of the Code during the year
ended 31 December 2020. The Company believes that it is more
efficient and effective for the Company to develop its long term
strategies and in the execution of its business plans if Mr. Chen
Qiang serves as both the Chairman and the chief executive officer of
the Company.

The Board
Board Composition

The Board currently comprises four executive Directors, namely
Mr. Chen Qiang (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer], Mr. Hong
Liang (Chief Operating Officer), Ms. Zhu Wen Hua and Mr. Niu
Jianmin, and three independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Wang Jin Lian, Ms. Zhou Zhan and Mr. Lam Cheung Mau. The
Board considers this composition to be balanced, and reinforces
a strong independent review and monitoring function on overall
management practices.

Full details of changes in the Board during the year and up to the
date of this report are provided in the Report of the Directors on
pages 29 to 45 of this annual report.

The Directors’ biographical details are set out in the Directors and
Senior Management section on pages 24 to 28 of this annual report.

Roles and Responsibilities of the Board

The Board is responsible for formulating the overall strategies as
well as reviewing the operation and financial performance of the
Group. The Board is responsible for considering and deciding on
matters covering the Group’s overall strategies, major acquisitions
and disposals, annual and interim results, approving Directors’
appointments to the Board, major capital transactions and other
significant operational and financial matters.
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Our independent non-executive Directors offer diverse industry
expertise, serve the important functions of advising the
management on strategies, ensuring that the Board fulfils high
standards of financial and other mandatory reporting requirements
as well as providing adequate checks and balances for safeguarding
the interests of shareholders and the Company as a whole.

Delegation to Management

Day-to-day operational responsibilities are specifically delegated by
the Board to the management. Major responsibilities include:

e execution of business and operational strategies and initiatives
adopted by the Board;

e preparation of reports and accounts for the Board's approval
before publication;

e  adoption of the remuneration policy approved by the Board;

e implementation of internal control and risk management
procedures; and

e compliance with relevant statutory requirements, rules and
regulations.

Board Practices

The Board holds at least four regular meetings annually at,
approximately quarterly intervals to discuss the Group's business
development, operations and financial performance. Notice of at
least 14 days is given to all Directors for all regular Board meetings.
All regular Board meetings adhere to a formal agenda in which a
schedule of matters is addressed to the Board and the Directors
are invited to include matters of special concerns for discussion
in the agenda. The agenda and accompanying board papers are
then sent in full to all Directors at least 3 days in advance or within
reasonable time prior to the relevant Board meetings.

All Directors have access to the Board papers and all related
materials, and are provided with adequate information by the
management to enable the Board to make informed decisions on
the matters to be discussed. The minutes of the Board meetings
have sufficient details of the matters discussed at Board meetings
which are prepared and kept by the Company Secretary and are
opened for inspection by any Director. The Directors are free to
access to the management for enquiries about further information,
when required, and the Directors can obtain independent
professional advice at the Company’s expense.
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Attendance Records of Directors and Board EEREEZEeHaHERLHE
Committee Members

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Board held six Board #ZEZZT-_ZTF+-_A= ‘f’ HIEFE &
meetings. The agendas and accompanying board papers are given FEEBITTAARETLLH - THAER
to all Directors in a timely manner. The Chairman of the Board shall BEMiME T XHEERAL TE2BES -
ensure the Directors being properly briefed on issues arising at ZFEEXFHRL2EEFTHENTEEFS
those Board meetings. gZ AN CER-

Apart from the regular Board meetings, the Chairman of the Board FRTEHRITEES RN EESEET
also held a meeting with all independent non-executive Directors, EWEEMPTESHFENIB R THE 2

without the presence of the other executive Directors. BUFRITEEFRITEHR o
Continuous
Professional
Meetings Attended/Held Development
LEEBRY EREATRY BEERER
Corporate Annual Type of
Audit  Governance  Nomination Remuneration General Trainings
Name of Director Board  Committee =~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee Meeting (Notes)
rEER RRBE  EIER
EEpg 2 ENZEE ZE® R¥EZEE HMzEE X& (Bt &)
Executive Directors
HITEE
Mr. Chen Qiang (Chairman/ gfec - 22 - 1/ 10 AB
REXE(EE)
Mr. Hong Liang bl - - - - 171 AB
HRLE
Ms. Zhu Wen Hua bl - - 11 - 0N A
AXIERL
Mr. Niu Jianmin [appointed on 1 March 2020) bl - - - - - A
FRRAE(R-Z_TF=-A—-B%H)
Independent non-executive Directors
BUAHTEE
Mr. Wang Jin Lian bfb 22 2/20 1/1el 1/ 0/ AB
IRERE
Ms. Zhou Zhan bl 2/20 - i 11 0N AB
BRXL
Mr. Lam Cheung Mau b/b 22 22 - - 10 AB
HEEEE
Note relating to attendance records of meetings: BREEHE SRR
1 Chairmen of the Board and the Board Committees are indicated by (C). 1 EFEEREFZEGERUCERT -
Notes relating to attendance records of training: 5 55 BN B0 M R T SR B B
A Reading and online studying. A MERBLEE -
B In-house training. B AEEF I -
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Continuous Professional Development

Code Provision A.6.5 of the Code stipulates that all directors should
participate in continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills. The Group also makes available
continuous professional development to the Directors at the
expense of the Company and to ensure that their contribution to the
Board remains informed and relevant.

During the year, the Company arranged Directors to join an
in-house training on (1) Directors’ duties and responsibilities under
the Listing Rules; (2) Risk management and internal control; and
(3] Environmental, social and governance report to enhance their
capacities to carry out directors’ duties.

Beside, every newly appointed Director will receive comprehensive,
formal and tailored induction package from the Company's
external legal advisor ensuring that he/she has a proper
understanding of the Company's operation, business, the relevant
laws and regulations, the Listing Rules and governance policies.
The company secretary also provides the updates on latest
development and changes in the Listing Rules and other relevant
legal and regulatory requirements to the Board from time to time.

Independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Board at all
times met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of independent non-executive Director, whereby
at least one of whom possesses appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise.

The Board has received from each independent non-executive
Director a written annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and is satisfied with the
independence of all the independent non-executive Directors.

Each independent non-executive Director is required to inform the
Company as soon as practicable if there is any change that may
affect his/her independence.
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Appointment and Re-election of Directors

The procedures for appointing and re-electing directors are set out
in the Articles of Association. The Board is responsible for selecting
and recommending candidates for directorship, taking into
consideration factors such as appropriate professional knowledge
and industry experience, personal ethics, integrity and personal
skills.

Under the Articles of Association, one-third of the Directors must
retire, and if eligible, may be subject to re-election at each AGM.
Furthermore, any Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as
an addition to the Board should hold office until the first general
meeting of the Company after his appointment and shall be subject
to re-election at such meeting.

To further reinforce accountability, any further re-appointment of an
independent non-executive Director who has served the Company’s
Board for more than nine years will be subject to separate
resolution to be approved by the shareholders of the Company.

In accordance with the Articles of Association, Mr. Chen Qiang,
Ms. Zhu Wen Hua and Mr. Lam Cheung Mau will retire by rotation
at the 2021 AGM. All retiring Directors, being eligible, has offered
themselves for re-election as Directors at the 2021 AGM.

Each of the executive Directors entered into renewed service
contracts with the Company for a term of three years commencing
on 24 October 2019.

Each of the independent non-executive directors is appointed for
a specific term, subject to re-election, which will run until the
conclusion of the third annual general meeting from the date of
their last re-election and in accordance with the Company’s Bye-
laws.

Directors’ Interests in Shares

Details of Directors’ interests in the Shares are set out in the Report
of the Directors section on pages 29 to 45 of this annual report.
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Model Code on Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standards of the Model Code set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules. Having made specific enquiry of the Directors, all Directors
confirmed that they have complied with the required standards
set out in the Model Code and the Company’'s code of conduct
regarding directors’ securities transactions during the year ended
31 December 2020.

Directors’ Liability Insurance and Indemnity

The Company has arranged for appropriate liability insurance to
indemnify its Directors for their liabilities arising out of corporate
activities undertaken for the Company. During the year ended 31
December 2020, no claim was made against the Directors.

Board Committees

The Board has established an audit committee (the "Audit
Committee”), a remuneration committee (the "Remuneration
Committee”), a nomination committee (the "Nomination
Committee”], a corporate governance committee (the “Corporate
Governance Committee”) and a finance and investment committee
(the “Finance and Investment Committee”) with defined terms of
reference. Details and reports of the committees are set out below.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established to review the Group’'s
financial reporting, risk management and internal control systems
and make relevant recommendations to the Board. The Audit
Committee comprises of three members: Ms. Zhou Zhan, being
chairman of the Audit Committee, Mr. Wang Jin Lian and Mr. Lam
Cheung Mau, all of whom are independent non-executive Directors.
Ms. Zhou Zhan, as the chairman of the Audit Committee, possesses
appropriate professional qualifications, accounting or related
financial management expertise as required under the Listing
Rules.
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Pursuant to the terms of reference of the Audit Committee, the
main duties of the Audit Committee are to audit and supervise
the financial reporting procedures of the Group, consider the
appointment, re-appointment and remuneration of the auditor and
any matters related to the removal and resignation of the auditor.
In addition, the Audit Committee is responsible for examining and
inspecting the effectiveness of the Group's risk management and
internal control systems, including conducting reviews, on a regular
basis, in respect of the risk management and internal control
over various corporate structures and business procedures, and
considering their potential risks and imminence, so as to ensure the
effectiveness of the Company’s business operations and to achieve
its corporate objectives and strategies. The scope of such reviews
covers finance, operations, compliance and regulations.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Audit Committee

held two meetings. The following is @ summary of the work of the

Audit Committee during the year:

e review of and recommendation for the Board’s approval of the
Group's consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2019;

e review of and recommendation for the Board's approval the
Group’'s interim condensed consolidated financial information
for the six months ended 30 June 2020;

e review of the reports from the external auditor;

e review of the risk management and internal control systems of
the Group;

e review of the reports from the internal auditor;

e approval of the internal audit plan for the year ended 31
December 2020;

. review of the effectiveness of the internal audit function; and

° review of the external auditor’s remuneration and terms of
engagement.
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The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2020 have been reviewed and approved by the
Audit Committee, and the Audit Committee is of the opinion that
such financial statements comply with the applicable accounting
standards, the Listing Rules and all other applicable legal
requirements. The Audit Committee therefore recommended the
Board's approval of the Group’s consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 24 October 2010
and has been delegated with the responsibility of determining the
remuneration policy and structure for all Directors and senior
management, reviewing and approving the specific remuneration
packages of all Directors and making recommendations to the
Board regarding the remuneration of independent non-executive
Directors. The Remuneration Committee comprises three
members: Ms. Zhou Zhan (an independent non-executive Director]
being the chairman of the Remuneration Committee, Mr. Chen
Qiang (Chairman of the Board and an executive Director) and Mr.
Wang Jin Lian (an independent non-executive Director).

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Remuneration
Committee held a meeting. The following is a summary of the work
of the Remuneration Committee during the year:

e annual review of the remuneration packages of the Directors
and senior management of the Company.

. reviewed and made recommendations to the Board the
directors’ fee for Independent Non-executive Directors.

The particulars regarding Directors’ remuneration and the five
highest paid employees as required to be disclosed pursuant to
Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules are set out in Notes 24 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Pursuant to B.1.5 of the Code, the remuneration of the members of
the senior management by band for the year ended 31 December

2020 is set out below:

Remuneration bands (RMB)
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 1 April 2012 with
written terms of reference. The Nomination Committee comprises
of three members, namely Mr. Wang Jin Lian (an independent
non-executive Director) being the chairman of the Nomination
Committee, Ms. Zhu Wen Hua (an executive Director] and Ms. Zhou
Zhan (an independent non-executive Director).

The key duties of the Nomination Committee are as follows:

(a] to review the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least
annually and make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy;

(b)  toidentify individuals suitably qualified to become members of
the Board and select, or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of, individuals nominated for directorships;

(c) to assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors:

(d) to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of directors and succession planning for
directors, in particular the chairman and the chief executive;
and

(e) to determine the policy, procedures and criteria for the
nomination of directors.
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The Nomination Committee is to ensure that the Board has
a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the requirements of the Company’'s business. To
ensure changes to the Board composition can be managed without
undue disruption, a formal, considered and transparent procedure
Is in place for selection, appointment and re-appointment of
Directors, as well as plans in place for orderly succession [if
considered necessary), including periodical review of such plans.
The appointment of a new Director (to be an additional Director or
fill a casual vacancy as and when it arises) or any re-appointment
of Directors is a matter for decision by the Board upon the
recommendation of the proposed candidate by the Nomination
Committee. The criteria to be applied in considering whether a
candidate is qualified shall be his or her ability to devote sufficient
time and attention to the affairs of the Company and contribute to
the diversity of the Board as well as the effective carrying out by
the Board of the responsibilities. Further details of the selection
criteria and the procedure are set out in the terms of reference of
the Nomination Committee which are available on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Nomination
Committee held a meeting. The meeting was held, amongst other
things, to review on the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience] of the Board, to assess the
independence of each of the independent non-executive Directors
and to review the retirement plan of the Board.

Nomination Procedures and Criteria

A shareholder may at any general meeting nominate a candidate
for directorship if, within the 7 days commencing the day after the
despatch of the notice of such general meeting, such shareholder
(being entitled to attend and vote at such general meeting and not
being the candidate] gives to the company secretary a written notice
of his/her intention to propose such candidate for election and also
a written notice signed by such candidate of his/her willingness to
be elected.

Other than the nomination of directors by shareholders, at
present, candidates for directorship may be nominated by the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company, who will provide the Nomination
Committee with notice of such nomination once a candidate has
been identified.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board with respect to the nomination
of candidates for directorship by making reference to the
Company’'s Board Diversity Policy, which was adopted by the
Board on 26 March 2013 and various aspects of the candidate,
including (but not limited to) his/her education background,
professional experience, experience in the relevant industry and
past directorships. In particular, for candidates to be independent
non-executive directors, the Nomination Committee assesses
his/her independence under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Then,
the Nomination Committee will make its recommendations to the
Board for consideration and approval.
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Corporate Governance Committee

The Corporate Governance Committee was established on 1 April
2012 with written terms of reference. The Corporate Governance
Committee comprises of three members, namely Mr. Wang Jin Lian
(an independent non-executive Director) being the chairman of the
Corporate Governance Committee, Mr. Chen Qiang (Chairman of
the Board and an executive Director), and Mr. Lam Cheung Mau (an
independent non-executive Director).

The key duties of the Corporate Governance Committee are as
follows:

(a] to develop and review the Company’'s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to the
Board;

(b)  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

(c] to review and monitor the Company's policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
directors; and

(e} to review the Company’'s compliance with the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices (Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules) and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Corporate
Governance Committee held two meetings. The meetings were
held:

e to review the compliance with the Code and the relevant
disclosure in the draft 2019 Annual Report and the draft 2020
interim report;

e to review the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management; and

e to review the corporate governance policy in relation to
the disclosure on inside information and the proposed
appointment of members of the inside information disclosure
committee.
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Finance and Investment Committee

The Finance and Investment Committee was established on 1 April
2012 with written terms of reference. The Finance and Investment
Committee comprises of four members, namely Mr. Chen Qiang
(Chairman of the Board and an executive Director] being the
chairman of the Finance and Investment Committee, Mr. Hong
Liang (an executive Director), Mr. Wang Jin Lian (an independent
non-executive Director) and Ms. Zhou Zhan (an independent non-
executive Director).

The key responsibilities of the Finance and Investment Committee
are as follows:

(a) to develop and review the Company's investment
policies, financial strategies and objectives and make
recommendations to the Board;

(b) to consider, evaluate and review major project investments,
acquisitions and disposals of the Group and to make
recommendations to the Board;

(c] to conduct post-investment evaluations on investment projects
of the Group;

(d) to arrange and approve banking facilities, loans, financial
instruments, guarantees and indemnities of the Group;

(e) to approve the opening and cancellation of bank or securities
accounts of the Group and to approve the authorised
signatories and mode of operations of the accounts;

(fl to oversee the overall management of all the risks of
the Group, including, without limitation, the financial and
operational risks by setting and formulating risk management
policies and strategies; and

(g) to review and assess the adequacy and effectiveness and
risk management policies and framework in identifying,
measuring, monitoring and controlling risks.
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Board Diversity Policy

The Board Diversity Policy was adopted by the Company pursuant
to the resolutions passed at a Board meeting held on 26 March
2013. The Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as
an essential element in supporting the attainment of its strategic
objectives and its sustainable development. In designing the
Board’s composition, the nomination and the board appointments
during the year ended 31 December 2020 were made after
considering the board diversity in a number of aspects, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board places great importance on internal controls and is
responsible for the risk management and internal control systems
and reviewing the effectiveness of those risk management and
internal control. The Company has provided directors training
materials, which contain, amongst other things, inside information
regulatory requirements, prepared by the Company’'s external
legal advisor in order to ensure the company is compliance with
regulatory requirements.

The risk management and internal control systems are designed
to manage the risk of failure to achieve corporate objectives and
to protect the Group’s assets and information. It aims to provide
reasonable assurance against material misstatements, losses,
damages or fraud and to manage rather than eliminate risks of
failure in operations systems. The Board has delegated the design,
implementation and ongoing assessment of risk management and
internal control systems to the management, while the Board,
through its Audit Committee, oversees and reviews the adequacy
and effectiveness of relevant financial, operational and compliance
controls and risk management procedures in place. Qualified
personnel of the Group maintain and monitor these systems of
controls on an ongoing basis.
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The Board reviewed the effectiveness of the Group's risk
management and internal control systems, including financial,
operational and compliance control and risk management
systems. The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the
risk management and internal control systems and reviewing their
effectiveness. Such systems are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and
can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss. The Board reviewed the adequacy
and effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems semi-annually through the Audit Committee.
During the year ended 31 December 2020, no irregularity or
material weakness was noted within any function or process. The
Audit Committee is satisfied that the risk management and internal
control systems had functioned effectively as intended.

The Company had established internal audit function and regularly
carries out reviews on the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control in order to ensure that they are able to
meet and deal with the dynamic and ever changing business
environment.

The Board considers the risk management and internal control
systems are effective and adequate for the Group as a whole. The
Board further considers that there was no issue relating to the
material controls, including financial, operational and compliance
controls and risk management functions of the Group.

In addition, the Board and/or its committees have also reviewed
the adequacy of the Company's resources, staff’'s qualifications
and experience, training programmes and the related budgets in
the Company’'s accounting, internal audit and financial reporting
functions.

Inside Information

The Company has established a disclosure committee to oversee
disclosure of inside information in accordance with a policy on
disclosure of inside information (the “Disclosure Policy”). The
Disclosure Policy sets out the procedures and internal controls for
handling and dissemination of inside information in a timely manner
and in such a way so as not to place any person in a privileged
dealing position and to allow sufficient time for the market to
price the listed securities of the Company with the latest available
information of the Company.
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All directors and employees of the Company must comply with
the Disclosure Policy which provides guidelines to the directors,
senior officers and other relevant employees of the Group to ensure
proper safeguards in place to prevent the Company from breaching
the statutory disclosure requirements of inside information.
The Disclosure Policy also includes appropriate internal control
and reporting systems to identify and assess potential inside
information and relevant steps to be taken.

The Disclosure Policy also stipulates that dissemination of inside
information of the Company shall be conducted by publication of the
relevant information on the websites of Hong Kong Exchanges and
Clearing Limited and the Company, according to the requirements
of the SFO and the Listing Rules.

Company Secretary

Ms. Leung Yin Fai is the Company Secretary of the Company
and responsible for advising the Board on corporate governance
matters and ensuring that the Board policy and ensuring that the
Board policy and procedures, and the applicable laws, rules and
regulations are followed. All Directors have access to the advice
and services of the company secretary to ensure that the Board
procedures and all applicable laws are followed. Moreover, the
company secretary is responsible for facilitating communications
among Directors as well as with management.

The Company engages an external service provider, Ms. Leung Yin
Fai, as its company secretary. Mr. Hong Liang, executive director
of the Company, is the primary contact person whom Ms. Leung
Yin Fai can contact. During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
company secretary has undertaken more than 15 hours of relevant
professional training.

External Auditor and Auditor’s
Remuneration

PricewaterhouseCoopers resigned as auditors of the Company
with effect from 30 September 2020. Crowe (HK) CPA Limited was
appointed as auditor of the Company with effect from 30 September
2020 to fill the casual vacancy and to hold office until the conclusion
of the 2021 AGM. The aggregate remuneration in respect of
services provided by external auditor for the year ended 31
December 2020 was approximately HKD3.4 million (2019: HKD3.5
million), of which HKD3.0 million (2019: HKD3.5 million) represents
annual audit and other audit-related services.
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Directors’ Responsibility for
Financial Statements and Auditor’s
Responsibility

All Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2020 and of ensuring that the preparation

of the consolidated financial statements of the Company is in
accordance with the applicable standards and requirements.

The statement of the auditor about their reporting responsibilities
on the financial statements of the Group is set out in the
Independent Auditor’'s Report on pages 86 to 91 of this annual
report.

Going Concern and Mitigation
Measures

During the Period, the Group recorded a profit of approximately
RMB765.0 million and had an operating cash inflow of RMB15.8
million. As at 31 December 2020, the Group had a total deficit of
RMB7,899.1 million and the Group’s current liabilities exceeded
its current assets by RMB7,423.4 million. While the Group only
maintained cash and cash equivalents of RMB16.1 million. These
conditions, together with others described in Note 2.1(b) to the
consolidated financial statements, indicate the existence of material
uncertainties which may cast significant doubt over the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern. However, a number of
measures have been undertaken to improve the Group's liquidity
and financial position, to refinance its operations and to restructure
its debts. For further details of these measures, please refer to
Note 2.1(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

Shareholders’ Rights

Under the Articles of Association, in addition to regular Board
meetings, Directors of the Company, on the written requisition of
two or more shareholders of the Company holding not less than
10% of the paid-up capital of the Company which carry voting rights,
shall convene an extraordinary general meeting to address specific
issues of the Company.

The requisition must (i) specify the objects of the meeting, the
name of the requisitionist(s), their contact details and the number
of ordinary shares in the Company held by them, (i) be signed by
the requisitionist(s) and [iii) be deposited at the Company’s principal
place of business in Hong Kong.
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The Directors must, within 21 days from the date of the deposit
of the requisition, proceed to convene an extraordinary general
meeting to be held within a further 21 days. If the Directors fail
to convene the extraordinary general meeting as aforesaid, the
requisitionist(s), or any of them representing more than one-
half of the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves
convene the meeting. Any meeting so convened shall not be held
after the expiration of three months from the date of the deposit
of the requisition, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to them by the Company.

Shareholders’ Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns
to the Board in writing through the Investor Relations Department
whose contact details are as follows:

Investor Relations Department

China Huarong Energy Company Limited
Suites 1508-10, 15/F, Shui On Centre,
6-8 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
Email: cosecldhuarongenergy.com

Tel no.: +852 3900 1888

Fax no.: +852 2180 7880

The Investor Relations Department will forward the shareholders’
enquiries and concerns to the Board and/or the relevant Board
committees and answer any shareholders’ questions (where
applicable and appropriate).

Shareholders’ Meetings

The Company regards the AGM as an important event as it provides
an invaluable opportunity for the Board to communicate with the
shareholders of the Company. All shareholders are given at least
20 clear business days’ prior notice to attend the AGM. During
the AGM, the Directors are available to answer questions which
shareholders may have. Poll results are published on the websites
of Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Company in
a timely manner.

All shareholders of the Company have the right to be informed and
participate in material matters of the Company as prescribed by
laws and the Articles of Association.
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Investor Relations

The Group is committed to regular and proactive communication
with its shareholders. It has adopted a policy of disclosing clear,
adequate and relevant information to its shareholders in a timely
manner through various channels.

The Board communicates with its shareholders and investors
through various channels. The Board members meet and
communicate with shareholders and investors at annual general
meetings and other general meetings.

Investor Relations Department responds in a timely manner to
letters and telephone enquiries from shareholders and investors
of the Company. An email contact cosecl@huarongenergy.com is
available to shareholders and investors of the Company.

The Company's website (http://www.huarongenergy.com.hk]
facilitates effective communications with shareholders, investors
and other stakeholders of the Company by making up-to-date
information relating to the Group’'s business developments,
operations, financial information, corporate governance practices
and other information available electronically and on a timely basis.

TEERKRE

REEBER

AEERNEERRETERRIBNE
B HDRMBR  EBRZBRBLEFR
HERRBEM R R HMBEERBER -

EZe RSB REEBRRNKREELET
AR EFEREZNRRABFAEME
IRRAE  NEKREREESHERE
i o

BREEBRESMFI—EEREEARAARIRRE
REEENHHERBEER - KRRIRR KR
& & # 7] i/ 18 E E cosec@huarongenergy.com
BERNBIHEAR o

XA &) H) 48 3 (http:/Avww huarongenergy.com.hk)
RUEAEAEENEKER K% UK
BH - CEERBHRNEHEMRAETF
AREFRHEEMER  EREREART
HERR REERHMBOHEZBENE
i o

ANNUAL REPORT 2020
FEHRE2020

63



64

ENVIRONMENT, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RiE B RERBHRSE

Overview

China Huarong Energy Company Limited (the "Group” or “we”)
is pleased to present this Environmental, Social and Governance
("ESG") Report [the "ESG Report’] for 2020 to demonstrate its
commitments, policies and performance in corporate sustainability.
The Group is principally engaged in energy exploration
and production businesses in the Republic of Kyrgyzstan
("Kyrgyzstan”). The Group was granted rights to conduct its energy
exploration and production businesses by holding 60% interests
in the projects involving five oilfields located in the Fergana Valley
of Kyrgyzstan, namely Maili-Su 1V, Eastern Izbaskent, Izbaskent,
Changyrtash and Chigirchik.

About This ESG Report

This ESG Report covers the Group's energy exploration and
production businesses in Kyrgyzstan and the offices in Shanghai
and Hong Kong in the People's Republic of China (the "PRC"] for
the period from 1st January 2020 to 31st December 2020 (the
“Reporting Period"). It has been prepared in strict compliance with
the requirement under Appendix 27 — Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide (the "ESG Guide") of Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited. Key Performance Indicators ["KPIs") that
need to be revealed compulsorily as required by the ESG Guide
are all addressed in the Environmental Sustainability and Social
Sustainability sections of this ESG Report. Alongside with the
reporting principles of the ESG Guide, general disclosure of the
Group’s ESG procedures was illustrated through the compliance
with relevant laws and regulations.

CHINA HUARONG ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
FEIEKEERIRA AR A E

e

REEXRERBNDBRAR ((FREEHEK
MOMABRXR—_T-_ZTEERE HLER
EamE ((FREE]) UERTAEBREE
AIHEERED EMAR  HRBEER -
AEBTEEXERANEBTHAME(SE
BEHFDEEERYEREE - RFABEB
FABOWEENURNTETHERRMNRL
hfEMMAIER IS EHIV  RFHER
BoFHERY  ERBETRTRES
R ERBECERRIEREEE -

BRARSE
AHREBREBREABARSHMAERADR
FRETEBIM 27T ECGRE  HEME
AMEESDMNREMES REAEE
REBETIMERIEREEER AR
RABEEGRPEEENRAE - ARE
MERKELESEEA ST -_TF—HA—HF
TECEFFA=+T—H(EHBHED -
KRBREERCRE  HEREBMEHEID
RREMNEREHBBEIIEZ - 2RI&E
REFEEZRMCESAHERESS 2
EEHEEE o UbAN c BRIEBSTFORE C HEREAR
WEESDHRMERAI - AR E R FH
BETHMEBEERMEBRELRA -



ENVIRONMENT, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Stakeholders Engagement

Stakeholders refer to the groups and individuals materially
influencing or being influenced by the Group’'s businesses.
Our stakeholders include government, regulatory authorities,
shareholders, employees, directors, customers, suppliers, general
public and etc. We strongly believe that effective communications
with our stakeholders is essential for our corporate development
and creates long-term corporate values. It also helps the Group
better understanding the sustainability issues which are important
to its stakeholders and respond appropriately, relevantly and
effectively. During the Reporting Period, we utilized various
channels including regular reports, meetings, face-to-face
interviews, trainings, on-site visits, company website and etc., to
communicate with our stakeholders. This ESG Report is prepared
based on those ESG issues that our stakeholders consider
important.

The Group welcomes stakeholders' feedback, especially
on its sustainability policies and performance. Readers
are also welcomed to share their views with the Group at
cosec(dhuarongenergy.com.

Board Inclusiveness

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Group is the highest
governing body primarily responsible for the formulation of
its sustainability strategy. The Board regularly integrates the
Group’s sustainability objectives into its businesses, identifies
and manages its sustainability risks and provides improvement
recommendations. The Group also engaged an independent
consultant to facilitate the collection and consolidation of its
sustainability information as well as provide recommendations on
its future sustainability development.
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A. Environmental Sustainability

This section primarily discloses the Group's policies and KPIs
on emissions, use of resources, and the environment and
natural resources in 2020.

A.1 Emissions

The Group is fully aware that its core businesses of crude
oil exploration and extraction consume a large amount of
natural resources which will cause a direct impact to the
environment and generate greenhouse gases. Therefore,
we firmly abide the “green production” principle and
strive to enhance the crude oil extraction rate and
production efficiency. The Group strictly complies
with relevant environmental laws and regulations of
Kyrgyzstan. Our pollutants are discharged in strict
accordance with statutory requirements and standards
to ensure the emissions of greenhouse gases, sewages
and wastes do not exceed the limits stated in the laws.
During the project development stage, we have already
carried out a detailed environmental impact assessment
to identify various potential environmental risks. Then
we formulated and submitted the risk reduction plans to
the State Inspectorate for Environmental and Technical
Safety of Kyrgyzstan in conjunction with other relevant
departments for approval. Dedicated departments
are set up in the production sites for monitoring all
operations in compliance with Kyrgyzstan environmental
laws. We recruited environmental protection engineers
who are familiar with the ecological environment
and laws of Kyrgyzstan. Their duties include on-site
inspection of the oil wells, land and energy usage in
the production, and identification of high environmental
and safety risks procedures in the production
processes. Those high risk procedures will be firmly
adjusted to avoid any major accidents damaging the
local ecological environment. They shall record the
Group's environmental protection performance in every
quarter. Furthermore, the Group appointed external
consultants to provide professional advices and monitor
the entire production process. The State Inspection for
Environmental and Technical Safety of the Kyrgyzstan
also conducts annual routine inspections of the Group
and provides inspection reports.
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During the Reporting Period, the State Inspection for
Environmental and Technical Safety of the Kyrgyzstan
issued an environmental protection non-violation
certificate to the Group, proving that there was no
excessive emission against the national permitted
emission levels. The Group also has not violated any
environmental protection laws and regulations.

During the Reporting Period, the Group generated
331.46kg of Nitrogen Oxides, 0.63kg of Sulphur Oxides
and 18.67kg of Particulate Matter. The total greenhouse
gas emissions from the Group were 355.75tonnes COz
for the same period. It was mainly from the production
processes direct emissions (Scope 1), and indirect
emissions of electricity consumption in daily operations
(Scope 2) and paper usage (Scope 3). The total amount
of greenhouse gas emissions decreased by 18.0%
compared with 2019. Meanwhile, we planted 200 new
trees in the Maili-Su IV production sites during the period
to reduce the greenhouse gas emissions.
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Table 2: Greenhouse Gas Emissions in 2020 K2 ZE-_FEFREFFZ
ERE Hﬁf# V7=

Intensity*
(Unit/per thousand
barrels of light
KPIs Unit Amount crude oil)
mE*
By, 8T
BREMEEZ B B E BE RH)
Scope 1 [Direct Emissions) Tonnes of COz 102.28 0.90
FE—REZEHER WE - —E{LIREE
Scope 2 (Indirect Emissions) Tonnes of CO2 24619 217
F (AR Mg —&E{biRE 2
Scope 3 (Other Indirect Emissions) Tonnes of COz 7.27 0.06
E=8 (K R EHE R WE - —S|LIREE
Total Tonnes of COz 355.74 Shile)
HBET WE - —ALIREE
Note: Intensity was calculated by dividing the sales of 113,493 barrels of T BENUNZZTZTFHENILIRK
light crude oil in 2020. BRME -
e Hazardous and Non-Hazardous Wastes e BELEEEEY

There are opportunities for the Group to generate
hazardous wastes due to oil and sewage leakages
in its operation. We notice that the leakage of
unrefined crude oil will have catastrophic impact on
the ecological environment. Therefore, we deployed
strict measures to closely monitor our oil pipelines
and equipment. Crude oil extraction activities

AEBELEPAREGAM
R AF K EER EE
Y o VR A—BREM
TR AR R R Oh & 3 A R
REENLHMNZE - R
LB MBE T BRENEER
B B5 R 88 i B KRR o RO

can potentially cause water pollution as well. Our I £ROE B 78 B g AE BOK
production sites have been designed with sewage /SKFEJL c MM AEEEM
tanks and anti-seepage cloths, and there are also RETREEZAE S HMEA

oil booms and oil suctions at the wharf to prevent
waste materials and liquids from penetrating into
the soil. We cooperated with qualified outsourcers
to ensure all discharged sewage must be properly
treated to meet the discharge standards required
by the Kyrgyzstan laws. The waste liquid generated
during the crude oil extraction must be transported
to a central collection point for centralized
treatments and then stored in sealed oil cylinders,
which must be further processed by qualified
outsourcers.
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The non-hazardous wastes generated by the
Group were mainly from solid wastes in daily
operations from production sites and offices, such
as plastics, paper, domestic garbage and etc. The
Group has implemented a classification method
for waste collection and management. Wastes
would be classified and stored in recyclable and
non-recyclable categories. Our target is to collect
and recycle those recyclable wastes as much as
possible. Recyclable wastes would be transported
to recycling centers or waste treatment plants
for further processing by qualified outsourcers.
Besides, we returned those used production
equipment and parts to suppliers for recycling
and reusing. At the same time, we reduced waste
from the source. The Group has basically been a
paperless office. We encouraged our employees
to use electronic documents and electronic
communications to reduce paper usage. In addition,
we asked our employees to reuse old office
equipment, reduce the habit of disposable and
effectively plan the meals in the canteens to reduce
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DE R e
Intensity*
(Unit/per
thousand
barrels of light
Wastes KPIs Unit Amount crude oil)
BE*
(B 8F
BEY BE By FHE RBEERMH
Non-Hazardous Waste Daily Solid Waste kg 12,445 109.7
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A.2 Use of Resources

The Group strictly controls the use of natural resources
in operations. In order to effectively manage the use of
various natural resources, we kept track on their usage
and launched a series of internal control systems for the
procurement and use of natural resources. During the
Reporting Period, the main resources consumed by the

A2EREH

TR R S

Group were electricity, water, gasoline and diesel.

Table 4: Usage of Various Resources in 2020

AEE-—EBREHEEETH
EHERNERE  AXSHT—
RINBERABERRBMNERD
MEBESIE R - RERBHE - &
SEHFENEEERRESN K-

o

74 2020F % 2 & R (€ H

=
Intensity*
(Unit/per thousand
barrels of light
Resources Unit Amount crude oil)
mE*
(Bl 8F
EiRE R By AE WHERE R
Electricity kWh 2,551,749 22.483.8
B T BB
Water m?3 836 7.4
X AV S
Gasoline liter 36,073 317.8
U NI
Diesel liter 6,528 o785
geom NI
Paper kg 330 2.9
i Fr

Note: Intensity was calculated by dividing the sales of 113,493 barrels of

light crude oil in 2020.
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Electricity

The Group's use of electricity was mainly from the
production sites and daily business operations in
offices. We believe that the reduction in electricity
consumption will reduce the greenhouse gas
emissions. During the Reporting Period, we
encouraged our staff to reduce electricity
consumption and educated them on the topics of
energy-saving and emission reduction. We actively
explored the adoption of more environmentally
friendly technologies in our operations and
operating procedures. Followings were the
electricity saving measures implemented by the
Group to ensure the effective use of electricity.

v Display environmental protection signs such
as "Please turn off all the lights after work”
in prominent positions in production sites and
offices to remind conservation of energy

v Promote the use of energy-saving lighting
systems such as LEDs

v Keep the air conditioning system operating at
25 degree celsius

v Check the electrical shutdown status regularly
everyday to prevent people from leaving
without turning off the electrical appliances

v/ Hire professional maintenance specialists to
repair and clean the air-conditioning system

regularly

v/ Purchase products with energy efficiency label
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e Water

The Group’'s use of water was mainly from the
production sites and daily business operations in
offices. We regularly emphasized the importance
of conserving water to our employees and required
them to save water. We cut off unnecessary water
usage from the sources and developed measures
to recycle water to enhance water usage efficiency.
Based on the water usage in different areas, we
turned off the faucet valves timely in areas without
water demand and stopped water supply during
non-office hours. In addition, we are also actively
exploring measures to recycle water, through the
recycling system collect and retreat the sewage in
the production process.

e  Gasoline and Diesel

The Group's use of gasoline and diesel were mainly
from its vehicles. We advocated to use the premium
gasoline and diesel to lower the environmental
impact. Meanwhile, we purchased low-fuel
consumption vehicles if possible and required
employees to travel by public transports as much as
possible to reduce greenhouse gas emissions.

A.3 Environment and Natural Resources

Apart from the resource consumptions and emissions
discussed above, the Group's operations did not have
other direct and material impact on the environment
and natural resources. Looking forward, the Group will
continue to closely monitor the environmental protection
policies and regulatory trends in the crude oil exploration
and extraction of Kyrgyzstan and international
community. We shall keep pace with the times and invest
in corresponding environmental protection measures if
necessary, and enhance the Group’s overall performance
in sustainability.
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A.4 Climate Change

Responding to climate changes and its related
problems is one of the most severe challenges
facing the world. Rising temperatures and extreme
weather have been threatening human life. Therefore,
the Group regularly reviews the impact of its daily
operations on the environment, and is committed to
adopting environmentally friendly energy exploration
and production methods. With the use of the latest
technology, we continuously improve the efficiency of
energy extraction and make better use of fuels, so as to
reduce our greenhouse gas emissions and alleviate the
pressure on global climate change.

B. Social Sustainability

This section primarily discloses the Group’s policies, practices
and quantitative data on employment, health and safety,
development and training, labour standards, supply chain
management, product responsibility, anti-corruption and
community investment in 2020.

During the Reporting Period, the COVID-19 outbreak has
brought huge challenges to the business and operations
of the Group. Our human resources team has been closely
monitoring the situation and taking necessary measures to
protect our employees and customers. With the COVID-19 was
spreading, we have taken a number of measures in time and
extensively used technology to coordinate work and maintain
normal business operations, and the impact is minimized.
Followings were the anti-pandemic measures adopted by the
Group:

e Conducted pandemic prevention trainings

o Reduced the number of employees in production sites
and offices

e Strictly limited various physical communications between
production sites, sales, administration and back offices

o Disinfected the production sites and offices, reported
daily body temperatures and health status of staff and
conducted COVID-19 tests

e Provided necessary masks, gloves and sanitizer for those
who must go out to work
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Actively communicated with the Chinese Consulate
in Kyrgyzstan and coordinated the work of consular
protection

Actively contacted the Kyrgyzstan police and pandemic
prevention departments, strengthened security work
during the special periods and kept abreast of the latest
national epidemic prevention

Temporarily suspended personnel recruitment to
minimize personnel communications

Employment

Talents are the most valuable asset of the Group and they
are the driving forces for our sustainable development.
Therefore, it is our obligation to provide our staff a fair,
open, safe and healthy platform for their professional
career development.

The Group has appointed human resources specialists
to strictly implement the recruitment, dismissal and
welfare policies in accordance with the requirements
of the Kyrgyzstan Labour Law and other relevant
laws and regulations. We actively comply with the
Kyrgyzstan localization policy and maintain the required
Kyrgyzstan local employee employment ratio to enhance
employment opportunities for local citizens. We strictly
prohibit discrimination against local employees. Once
found, there are severe penalties for the violators. As
our employees are from different countries and races,
we notably insist on equality among all our employees of
different nationalities, ethics, races, genders, religious
beliefs and cultural backgrounds. We also pay special
attention to the rights and interests of female employees
and ensure them getting fair promotion opportunities.
The number of female executives of the Group exceeds
that of male executives. We have also set up allowances
for International Women’s Day and organized female
employees to carry out special festival activities.
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At the beginning of each year, the Group prepares annual
recruitment plans based on business development
needs. Apart from the usual recruitment channels,
we also utilize the Kyrgyzstan recruitment websites to
publish our recruitment information. We seriously comply
with the Kyrgyzstan Labour Law and in accordance with
the requirements of the oil industry to recruit the best
talents from professional graduates or practitioners
related to their positions. All our employees were
recruited in accordance with the principles of openness
and fairness. The Group's trainings, promotions,
dismissals and retirement policies are irrespective of
employees’ gender, race, age, disability, family status,
marital status, sexual orientation, religion beliefs,
nationality or any other non-job related factors. When
signing an employment contract, Chinese-Russian
bilingual staff handbook for the corresponding post
will be provided and signed to protect the employees’
rights and interests. According to the Kyrgyzstan Labour
Law, the Group strictly follows the local minimum
wages requirement and pays the social insurance and
retirement benefits for its employees. Employees’
working hours and rest periods are complied with
Kyrgyzstan laws. In addition to the statutory paid
leaves, there are sick leave, maternity leave, wedding
leave, compassionate leave and etc. Staff performance
evaluations of the Group are carried out on both quarterly
and annual basis to promote those well performed
employees. Annual outstanding employees are
selected based on the results of the annual evaluation.
Our remuneration policy is approved by a committee
consisting of department heads and management
team. Meanwhile, the Group has established a clear
dismissal system. All dismissals are reasonable, legal
and followed the provisions of employment contracts and
staff handbook. Any unfair or unreasonable dismissal is
strictly prohibited.
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As at 31st December 2020, the total number of staff of the
Group was 95, among 66 were in Kyrgyzstan, 19 were in
China and 10 were in Hong Kong. Seven employees were
resigned during the Reporting Period which represented
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an annual turnover rate of 7.4%.
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During the Reporting Period, the Group was in full
compliance with relevant laws and regulations regarding
remuneration, dismissal, recruitment, promotion,
working hours, holidays, equal opportunities, diversity,
anti-discrimination, benefits and other related
employment matters that are material to the Group. We
did not receive any complaints or disputes concerning
employment.
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B.2 Health and Safety

Crude oil exploration and extraction businesses are
technical industries involving many processes with
potential health and occupational safety risks. Thus
the Group pays special attention to employees” health
and occupational safety. We are committed to minimize
occupational health risks by continuously improving the
operating environment, enhancing production processes,
reducing the use and emission of hazardous substances,
and preventing injuries and diseases.

The Group firmly adheres to the Kyrgyzstan laws and
regulations related to occupational health and safety.
Our safety committee is mainly responsible for labour
protection, equipment technical safety, enterprise
working conditions, personnel training and business
knowledge inspection. We hired safety and environmental
protection engineers to carry out daily supervisions and
rectifications in accordance with the requirements of
Kyrgyzstan laws and regulations, and to record safety
performance of the Group in every quarter. The person-
in-charge of the production and engineering departments
conduct daily inspections in particular focusing on high-
risk locations, eliminating hidden safety hazards, and
conducting immediate on-site safety educations and
rectifications. We provide protection equipment for
dangerous jobs and conduct regular safety inspections
for production sites. The Group established a disaster
response code to all its employees with clear safety
process guidelines and contingency measures in
response to oil leakages. We also closely monitor oil
pipelines and equipment through a combination of on-site
on duty, regular patrols and random inspections.
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The Group recognizes its businesses are susceptible
to fires and thus formulated various fire emergency
measures. Smoking and igniting fire in the oil fields
are strictly prohibited. Electricity danger signs are put
in place to remind employees to pay attention to fire
safety. We require our staff to keep the working places
clean, tidy, smoke-free, non-toxic, non-hazardous,
healthy and safe. The Group also unifies the signs of
dangerous goods and standardizes the use and storage
of flammable and explosive materials. We placed escape
route maps in conspicuous places in our working places
and established a person-in-charge system. Those
places are equipped with emergency medical kits and
firefighting equipment. It is strictly forbidden to occupy
emergency exits. There are regularly inspections for
fire protection facilities to ensure they are not damaged
or expired. Fire drills are also arranged periodically.
The Group agreed with the fire brigade to deal with the
emergency situations together.

In addition, every front-line production staff is outfitted
with work clothes, shoes and safety helmet. They
are also equipped with fire extinguishers. In order to
further protect the health of our employees, they are
required to provide medical proofs before on board and
they will undergo physical examinations every year.
If any abnormal situation is found, appropriate work
arrangements and medical follow ups will be made. Our
staff are also protected by the insurance purchased by
the Group and the injury full reimbursement policy. We
also conduct quarterly safety and occupational health
trainings for our employees to enhance their awareness
of safety and health. The human resources department
arranges regular meetings with employees to help
dispatch work stress and takes care of their mental
health. In the event of a fatal accident, the Group will
provide immediate assistances to the injured employee
and safety committee will investigate each accident to
prevent reoccurrence of similar incident.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has not recorded
any deaths and injuries caused by industrial accidents,
and there have not been any violations of laws and
regulations related to safe working environment and
protection of employees from occupational hazards.
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B.3 Development and Training

The Group acknowledges the importance of on-the-job
training for the development of its employees. Learning
new knowledge and skills for our staff can enhance our
competitiveness. In accordance with the requirements
of the Kyrgyzstan Labour Law and the actual production
needs, our human resources specialists are aimed at
enhancing the employees’ on-the-job skills and passing
the assessments of national professional authorities.
Employees must have relevant professional education
before on board or they have obtained the vocational
training certificates issued by the Kyrgyzstan authorities.
The Group provides examination leave to encourage
employees to study or obtain professional qualifications.
We are fully responsible for the internal training costs
and partially responsible for those external training costs
related to our business needs and personal development.
We provide the 3-month pre-employment education to
the newly recruited staff and they will be trained by on-
site mentors.

During the Reporting Period, the Group arranged all its
staff to participate the quarterly safety trainings and each
department arranged quarterly business trainings to
its respective staff. We provided a total of 2,720 training
hours for our employees and all of the 95 employees
participated, which represented an average of 28.6 hours
per employee.

Table 6: Training Hours of Employees by
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B.4 Labour Standards B.4 %5 T %A

The Group is fully aware that child and forced labour
violate basic human rights. The Kyrgyzstan government
inspects the legal employment of all enterprises every
year and we strictly abides the requirements under the
Kyrgyzstan Labour Law. During the recruitment process,
we verify the job applicants’ personal identification
documents including identification cards, academic
certificates, previous work records, military service
certificates, medical reports and etc., to ensure their
ages and nationalities are correct. We offer vacations
and alternative leaves in accordance with Kyrgyzstan
law of 40-hour work per week. Frontline workers who
worked for half a month could take half a month off. For
any overtime works during the peak season, the Group
adopts a shift work model and provides vacations for
overtime workers in accordance with Kyrgyzstan law
to ensure sufficient rest. The Group will issue warnings
and even dismissal if there is any violation of laws and
regulations related to child and forced labour.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not in
violation of any laws and regulations related to the
prevention of child and forced labour.
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B.5 Supply Chain Management

In light of the Group’s strong support for sustainability,
we also expect our suppliers to fulfill their social
responsibilities and preferably select those suppliers
which are the most environmental friendly and
socially responsible. We are fully aware that it is our
responsibility to monitor the ESG performance of the
entire supply chain.

Each of the Group’s tender is conducted in open manner.
Suppliers are given the opportunities to participate in
fair and transparent biddings. A tender committee was
formed to strictly implement our transparent bidding
policy and is responsible for assessing the bidders and
their proposals. All selected bidders will be publicly
announced. Explicit obligations of the suppliers are
stated in the contracts with guarantee deposits to
constraint their contractual obligations. We conducted
comprehensive evaluations and ranking for all potential
suppliers including their pricings, services, financials,
environment protection awareness, occupational health
and safety, loyalty and etc. During the procurement
process, we are required to approach at least three
potential suppliers. Selected suppliers are required to
pay attention to the environmental risks that may arise
in their operations and manufacturing processes. The
Group takes all measures to avoid conflicts of interests
and prevents bribery in the procurement process. We
strictly require our suppliers to declare their interests
to prevent transfer of benefits and corruption. The
Group insists on selecting reputable suppliers to ensure
service quality. An independent and prestige supervisory
institute is appointed to carry on annual inspection on
13 items such as safety, environmental protection and
labour protection for each supplier. We conduct supplier
interviews based on the findings of the supervisory
institute and requested the suppliers to rectify and fulfill
their obligations. Warnings will be issued to suppliers
who failed to comply.

During the Reporting Period, the Group had five suppliers
from Kyrgyzstan and seven suppliers from the PRC.
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B.6 Product Responsibility

Customers’ requirement on product quality is getting
higher in the competitive market. The Group strongly
believes on maintaining product quality to create
maximum values for our customers and to earn their
trusts and supports. To ensure the Group’'s product
quality, we have formulated policies regarding product
acceptance and regularly inspect the crude oil products
if they satisfy the Kyrgyzstan national standards. The
Group regularly assesses its product quality and timely
checks and prevents deficiencies in advance. For the
products that do not meet the standard, we will evaluate
with the experts and put those unqualified products into
written content for improvement in future. We provide
work process and product knowledge trainings to our
sales representatives. We never made false publicity for
our products as all external product publicities should
be approved by the Group's general administration office
and management before being released. Meanwhile,
through the petroleum association platform, the Group
exchanges information and negotiates issues with other
market participants to facilitate the establishment of and
maintenance of a healthy and orderly market as well as a

fair competition environment.

Professional and reliable services are also reflected in
the protection of intellectual property rights. The Group
has established a management system for handling
patent affairs and intellectual property rights, including
patent acceptances and application of our own patents. In
daily operations, the Group refuses to provide or use any
products or services that violate copyright or intellectual
property rights. All of the software and information used
are with legal licenses and the Group only procures

genuine products.
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The Group emphasises the importance in protecting the
privacy of its customers and suppliers. Data could be
only be collected and used by the supplier and customer
management departments. Personal data collection
consent must be obtained before collecting data from
suppliers and customers. The consent clearly states the
purposes of data collection and the data collected will
only be used for the purposes for which it was originally
collected. We also often remind our staff regarding the
Group’'s requirements for data management and require
them to sign confidentiality agreements. Apart from
prevention of the information leakage of the Group, we
prohibit the improper uses of supplier and customer
information. If there is any violation, the Group will not
condone it and will handle it impartially.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not violate any
laws and regulations regarding product responsibility,
intellectual property right and data privacy. In addition,
the Group has not recalled any products that have been
sold.

B.7 Anti-corruption

The Group believes that integrity business operation is
the foundation of corporate social responsibility, which
is also the cornerstone for maintaining the corporate
competitive advantage and sustainable development.
The Group is committed to achieving high integrity and
accountability, and strictly complies with all laws and
regulations related to anti-corruption and anti-bribery.
We have zero tolerance to any form of corruption. Our
employment contract prohibits our staff in participation
of any corruption, bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering activities. It is strictly forbidden for our
staff to accept any gifts from suppliers or customers.
We also provide regular business ethic and anti-
corruption trainings to our staff. Disciplinary violations
will be stopped and handled immediately in case of any
violations. Employees who violate the law will never be
tolerated and be handed over to the judicial authorities.
In addition, the Group’s anti-corruption policy was
introduced to suppliers before signing contracts.
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RE  HEREREE

There are independent internal audit department and
internal audit regime for the Group. Internal auditor is
responsible for the Group’s internal audit supervision
and the establishment of the internal control system.
Based on the results of internal audits, management
will organize regular meetings to implement relevant
works and prevent the risks of corruption. In addition, the
Group has appointed independent third-party auditor with
international qualifications to conduct financial audits
twice a year to reduce operating risks and strengthen
anti-corruption management.

The Group encourages reporting of misconduct.
Whistleblowers may report any suspected misconducts
to the audit committee of the Group through email. The
audit committee will investigate any suspicious or illegal
acts to protect the interests of the Group. Investigations
are handled confidentially and management will take
corrective actions to resolve the proven frauds. The audit
committee will report the misconduct events at least
once a year to the Board. There are reward funds for
whistleblowers to show our appreciation.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not receive
any corruption lawsuits against the Group or its
employees. Meanwhile, the Group and its employees
were not in violation of any of the relevant laws and
regulations in relation to bribery, extortion, fraud and
money laundering.

CHINA HUARONG ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
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B.8 Community Investment

The Group endeavors to community building. We
leverage our resources to contribute to the society and
assist Kyrgyzstan to become a cohesive and caring
society. We pay special attention to fostering employees’
awareness of social responsibility and encourage them
to voluntary participate in charity events, which allow
them integrating with local communities and facilitate the
China and Kyrgyzstan relationship. During the Reporting
Period, the Group has participated in Cachicarada’s
annual hygienic works and was responsible to maintain
the cleanliness of the streets. Our staff participated in a
total of 276 hours of volunteer services.

In addition, we are the member of the Kyrgyzstan
Mining Association and were the sponsor the
Kyrgyzstan Petroleum Workers’ Festival. In order to
promote the employment, apart from offering working
opportunities to local residents, the Group cooperated
with local authorities in Kyrgyzstan to provide Mandarin
introductory courses to local residents. Since the Group
strictly abides by the Kyrgyzstan laws and regulations, as
well as ethnic customs, we are unanimously recognized
by the local residents and one of the dozens of Chinese
corporates with the highest reputation in Kyrgyzstan.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA HUARONG ENERGY COMPANY
LIMITED
lincorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability]

Disclaimer of Opinion

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements
of China Huarong Energy Company Limited (the "Company”] and
its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages 92 to 213,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2020, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income for the year then ended, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity for the year then ended and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and the notes to
the consolidated financial statements, which include a summary of
significant accounting policies.

We do not express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group and whether the consolidated financial
statements have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
Because of the significance of the matters described in the
Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section of our report, we have
not been able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to
provide a basis for an audit opinion on these consolidated financial
statements.

Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion
Material Uncertainty Relating to Going Concern

As set out in Note 2.1(b] to the consolidated financial statements,
the Group incurred and had an operating cash outflow of
RMB9,016,000 during the year ended 31 December 2020. As at
31 December 2020, the Group had a deficit of RMB7,899,066,000
and the Group’'s current liabilities exceeded its current assets
by RMB7,423,414,000. The Group maintained cash and cash
equivalents of RMB16,064,000 as at 31 December 2020.

On 9 October 2018, the Group entered into a conditional sale and
purchase agreement to dispose of the core assets and liabilities
of shipbuilding, offshore engineering, engineering machinery and
marine engine building segments (the "Shipbuilding Business”,
together with the holding company of the Shipbuilding Business
referred to as the "Disposal Group”) with an independent third
party. Pursuant to certain supplemental agreements signed with
Unique Orient Limited (the "Purchaser”), an independent third
party, the sale shares of Able Diligent Limited, the holding company
of the Disposal Group, was transferred to the Purchaser on 10
March 2019. As at 31 December 2020, financial guarantees provided
by the Company to the banks and lenders of the Disposal Group,
inclusive of principals and interest, amounted to RMB4,545,132,000.
The Group has considered the impact and recognised financial
guarantee contract of the same amount as at 31 December 2020.
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During the year, the Group’'s operation was focused primarily on
the energy exploration and production segment [the "Energy
Business”, together with the corporate headquarters referred
to as the "Remaining Group’], the development of which has
however been limited due to market conditions and availability
of funds for investing in exploration and drilling of wells. As at
31 December 2020, borrowings of the Group (the “Borrowings
of Remaining Group”), amounted to RMB3,392,891,000, out of
which RMB1,365,178,000 were overdue. As at 31 December 2020,
overdue interest payables of the Remaining Group amounted to
RMB492,486,000. Certain borrowings of the Remaining Group
contain cross-default terms, causing Borrowings of Remaining
Group of RMB8,618,000 as at 31 December 2020 to become
immediately repayable. The Remaining Group had cash and cash
equivalents of RMB16,064,000 as at 31 December 2020.

These conditions, together with others described in Note 2.1(b] to
the consolidated financial statements, indicate the existence of
material uncertainties which may cast significant doubt over the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern.

The directors of the Company have been undertaking a number of
measures to improve the Group’s liquidity and financial position,
to refinance its operations and to restructure its debts which are
set out in Note 2.1(b] to the consolidated financial statements.
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a
going concern basis, the validity of which depends on the outcome
of these measures, which are subject to material uncertainties,
including (i) whether the Group is able to obtain the agreement
from the banks and lenders to release or discharge the Company’s
guarantees for the borrowings owed by the Disposal Group; (il
whether the Group is able to convince the banks and lenders not
to demand for repayment of the outstanding loans of the Disposal
Group before the completion of the release of the Company’'s
guarantees; (i) whether the Group is able to negotiate with all
existing promissory note holders to make further arrangements
including extension of the maturity dates; (iv] whether the Group is
able to negotiate with the relevant bank for the renewal or extension
for repayment for the bank borrowing; (v) whether the Group is able
to obtain waivers from the relevant promissory note holders for
the due payment in relation to those notes that have cross-default
terms and extend the repayment dates when they fall due; (vi)
whether the Group can successfully implement a business plan for
its Energy Business to generate cash inflows; and (vii) whether the
Group can obtain additional sources of financing, including those
to finance the Energy Business and draw down from the various
facilities made available to the Group by entities controlled by Mr.
Zhang Zhi Rong and a close family member of Mr. Zhang Zhi Rong,
during the year as and when needed.
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Should the Group fail to achieve the above-mentioned plans and
measures, it might not be able to continue to operate as a going
concern, and adjustments would have to be made to write down the
carrying value of the Group's assets to their recoverable amounts,
to provide for any further liabilities which might arise, and to
reclassify non-current assets and non-current liabilities as current
assets and current liabilities. The effect of these adjustments has
not been reflected in the consolidated financial statements.

Opening balances and comparative figures —
Impairment of property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets and impairment of the
Company’s investments in subsidiaries and
amounts due from subsidiaries

The audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 [the "2019 Financial
Statements”), which form the basis for the comparative figures
presented in the current year’s consolidated financial statements,
was disclaimed by the predecessor auditor, whose report dated
6 May 2020, because of unable to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence on impairment of (a) property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets; and [b] the Company’'s investments in
subsidiaries and amounts due from subsidiaries.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets amounted to RMB598,369,000
and RMB1,686,779,000 respectively. Such assets pertain to the
Energy Business. In determining the recoverable amounts of
these non-current assets, the directors of the Company used
value-in-use calculations, taking into consideration the proven
oil reserve and new sources of financing for oil exploration. As
the value-in-use amounts for the Energy Business exceeded
the carrying values of the corresponding non-current assets
the directors of the Company are of the opinion that there was
no impairment of these non-current assets as at 31 December
2019. The recoverable amounts of these non-current assets are
estimated based on the assumption that the Group will obtain
adequate financing for oil exploration in the future.
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The predecessor auditor were unable to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence they consider necessary to assess
the recoverable amounts of the non-current assets amounting
to RMB2,285,148,000 of the Remaining Group, as the recoverable
amount of the non-current assets of the Remaining Group is
dependent on the availability of financing for oil exploration. There
were no alternative audit procedures that the predecessor auditor
could perform to satisfy themselves as to the recoverable amounts
of these property, plant and equipment and intangible assets and
whether any impairment charge should be made. Any impairment
provision for these assets found to be necessary would affect the
Group's net assets as at 1 January 2020, the Group’s net loss for the
year ended 31 December 2019 and the related note disclosures to
the consolidated financial statements.

In addition, as these assets were held by a material subsidiary,
any impairment provision for these assets found to be necessary
would also affect the carrying amounts of the Company’s
investments in subsidiaries and amounts due from subsidiaries
as well as the Company’s accumulated losses, which amounted
to RMB1,514,410,000, RMB141,221,000 and RMB22,270,682,000,
respectively, as at 1 January 2020 as well as the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements.

As explained above, we have been unable to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence about whether the opening balances as
at 1 January 2020 of the impairment and carrying amounts of (a)
the Group’s property, plant and equipment and intangible assets;
and [b) the Company’'s investments in subsidiaries and amounts
due from subsidiaries were free from material misstatements.
Since opening balances of these assets as at 1 January 2020 are
entered into the determination of the impairment loss of these
assets and the financial performance of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2020, we were unable to determine whether
any adjustments might have been found to be necessary in respect
of the impairment loss of these assets and financial performance
for the year ended 31 December 2020. Our audit opinion was
disclaimed in this respect accordingly.
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Also, as mentioned above, the audit opinion for the year ended 31
December 2019 was disclaimed by the predecessor auditor, our
opinion on the comparability of the current year's figures and the
corresponding figures was also disclaimed because of the possible
effects of these matters.

Responsibilities of Directors and
Those Charged with Governance
for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
("IFRSs”) and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Group’s consolidated
financial statements in accordance with International Standards on
Auditing and to issue an auditor’s report. We report solely to you, as
a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report. However, because of the matters described in the Basis
for Disclaimer of Opinion section of our report, we were not able to
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an
audit opinion on these consolidated financial statements.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (‘the Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code.

Crowe (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 26 March 2021

Chung Wai Chuen, Alfred
Practising Certificate Number: P05444
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e MR R R

As at 31 December 2020 R —E-ZF+-A=+—H

2020 2019
=225 —NF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
M5 ARET ARETFTT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y- BEKZMHE 6 258,913 598,369
Intangible assets mEE 7 714,757 1,686,779
973,670 2,285,148
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 9 818 1,717
Trade receivables JfE I BR 30 10(a) 1,005 2,777
Other receivables, prepayments Hth e WK IE - TR B
and deposits & 10(b) 14,376 16,491
Cash and cash equivalents RekBRe&EEY 11 16,064 42,851
32,263 63,836
Total assets WEE 1,005,933 2,348,984
DEFICIT & Al
Capital and reserves attributableto AATEZFTEAEEE
the Company’s equity holders AR EE
Ordinary shares 38 A% 12 2,021,534 2,021,534
Convertible preference shares Al B 3248 S iR 12 3,100,000 3,100,000
Share premium 1% 15 4 B 12 8,374,605 8,374,605
Other reserves H b & 14 103,199 211,147
Accumulated losses 2EtEE (21,465,874) (22,253,809)
(7,866,536) (8,546,523)
Non-controlling interests JEE R RE 2R (32,530) (16,982)
Total deficit #4815 4 (7,899,066) (8,563,505)

CHINA HUARONG ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e MR R

As at 31 December 20200 R—E-FE+=-A=+—R

2020 2019
=225 —E-NF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B 7 AR® T ARETFTT
LIABILITIES =L
Non-current liabilities kRBAE
Borrowings TEE 16 1,449,322 937,125
Current liabilities RBAE
Trade and other payables FEBE X K H A B~ 2018 15 966,976 772,802
Borrowings RS 16 1,943,569 2,657,418
Financial guarantee contracts S IERE L 28 4,545,132 6,545,144
7,455,677 9,975,364
Total liabilities “BaeE 8,904,999 10,912,489
Total deficit and liabilities HWEMKREE 1,005,933 2,348,984

The above consolidated statement of financial position should be

read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 92 to 213 were
approved by the Board of Directors on 26 March 2021 and signed on

its behalf by

Chen Qiang
PR 58
Director

EF

Hong Liang

Director

EF

DA 450 2 BT R 0 SRR O i — 2

B o

BENE2BEMNGRATBRREEFEN =
T —F=ZA-+BRETHTINAZL

RREFERZE

ANNUAL REPORT 2020
FEHRE2020

93



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
reETHEHWRER

Year Ended 31 December 20200 B Z — 2" &F+-A=+—HI &

2020 2019
—BRCRF —NF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt = AR®BT T AR¥EFTT
Continuing operations BERKEEK
Revenue U 25 5 34,800 47,747
Cost of sales i & KA 18 (41,227) (34,680)
Gross (loss)/profit E(EBR),/FE (6,427) 13,067
Selling and marketing expenses 5 & R T 5 B R X 18 (14) (2,393)
General and administrative expenses — % & 77 B 2 18 (48,473) (43,114)
Impairment loss on property, ME - BEKRERE
plant and equipment (= 6 (296,559) (19,285)
Impairment loss on intangible assets 4% 2 & E il {8 /& 18 7 (864,374) =
Other gains/(losses) - net Hip Wz (E1E) — FHE 20 16,393 (40)
Operating loss KREBE (1,199,454) (51,765)
Finance income B E U A 21 36,641 34,382
Finance costs B & Bk A 21 (72,233) (356,821)
Finance costs - net BMERA — FHE 21 (35,592) (322,439)
Loss before income tax BRAGHAEE (1,235,046) (374,204)
Income tax expense PSR X 22 (8) =
Loss for the year from continuing RERFBEEEBN
operations FEBE (1,235,054) (374,204)
Discontinued operations BARIEEK
Loss for the year from discontinued 2R B E 4% 1F ¥ 7% &)
operations FEER 17 = (443,074)
Gain on the disposal of discontinued & B £ 1 275 B I 25
operations 17 - 916,012
Change in provision for financial MBEREANBES
guarantee contracts 28 2,000,011 13,333
Profit for the year arising from REEKIEEBH
discontinued operations FEHHE 2,000,011 486,271
Profit for the year FENHE 764,957 112,067

g4  CHINAHUARONG ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

mEEHEWER

Year Ended 31 December 20200 i 22 -FF+-A=+—HItFE

2020 2019
=25 —TNF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®ETR ARETT

Profit/(loss) attributable to:

FEE RS, (B5E)

Equity holders of the Company RABERTFAA 782,599 137,320
Non-controlling interests FE1E I & (17,642) (25,253)
764,957 112,067

(Loss)/profit attributable to the equity KRR Em= £ B A B

holders of the Company arisen
from:

- Continuing operations

- Discontinued operations

(E518) /FIBEER:
— RBEKEERS (1,217,412) (378,270)
—BRIEER 2,000,011 515,590

782,599 137,320
Other comprehensive income/(loss) FE EM2EK A (E18)
for the year:
ltems that cannot be reclassifiedto TR EFH DB EEB T Z2EE
profit or loss
- Fair value gain/(loss) on a —BRAREFAEMEE
financial asset at fair value Wa i & @E ES
through other comprehensive RaEkE(BE)
income - 2,616
Other comprehensive income/ REERIEEBHEMEE
(loss) arising from discontinued WA (&)
operations — 2,616
ltems that may be reclassified to ENOBEEERCESA
profit or loss
- Exchange difference on —HMEBNEEEEN
translation of foreign ME 5, = #8
operations (100,518) 20,223
Other comprehensive income RERFEHM2EmEA
for the year, net of tax (100,518) 22,839
Total comprehensive income FEXHBRAERE
for the year 664,439 134,906
Attributable to: N
Equity holders of the Company RRARERFTEA 679,987 160,282
Non-controlling interests FEVE IR & (15,548) (25,376)
664,439 134,906
ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

meETHEKkER

Year Ended 31 December 20200 B Z — 2" &F+-A=+—HI &

2020 2019
—E-FH —hEF
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Bt 5 ARETR AR¥EFTT
Total comprehensive (loss)/income  ANAR#EmFH AN
for the year attributable to the FE2E(EE) e
equity holders of the Company BMEEER:
arisen from:
Continuing operations & 13 4 A e gk (1,320,024) (357,924)
Discontinued operations BRIEE 2,000,011 518,206
679,987 160,282
Loss per share for loss from RRARERITFEARIEF
continuing operations attributable 45 &£ & ¥ 7% &5 18
to the equity holders of the TR E R
Company (expressed in RMB per (ABRAR¥TIIR)
share)
- Basic — &K 25 (0.10) (0.03)
- Diluted —#F 25 (0.10) (0.03)
Earnings per share for profit RAGERTA ARG
from discontinued operations ERIEEBNEEREZN
attributable to the equity holders (ABRARKTIITR)
of the Company (expressed in RMB
per share)
- Basic —H K 25 0.17 0.04
- Diluted — #F 25 N/A 738 A N/A 7~ i 3
The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should LA _F 474 2 [ W %5 3R FE B BB R B sE — B &
be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. B e
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
meEERBER

FT_A=t-BHL#E

Year Ended 31 December 2020 & &

Attributable to equity holders of the Company
ARAERRBARS

~E-F
—_— < — =

Convertible Non-
Ordinary preference Share Other  Accumulated controlling Total
shares shares  premium  reserves losses Total interests Deficit
LRk TEABER ROEE EtEE EHESB it FERER aE4
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETI
Note 12 [Note12) ~ [Note12)  [Note 14
(D) ) (WD) (MW
Balance at 1 January 2020 R-ZF-Bf%
-f-RAbEs 2,021,534 300,000 8,374,605 U1147  (22,253,809)  (8,546,523) (16982 (8,563,505
Profitfloss for the year EERH/ (BB - - - - TR2599 72599 1Tk 764957
Other comprehensive income/(loss] ~ Et 2 AR/
(B%)
Exchange difference on translation of  #E G 5ME B4
foreign operations ERZE - - - (102612 - (102612 209 (100518)
Total comprehensive income/(loss]  £E 2
L hE/(BR2E T T L L L L
Transactions with equity holdersin 2 5AERA 2 EH
their capacity as owners BEANRS
Lapse of employee shareoptions B S AREX M - - - (5,336) 5,33 - - -
Total transactions with ownersin ~ E5AREAZER
their capacity as owners BEANRSAE - - - - - - - -
Balance at 31 December 2020 R-B-%f%
+ZA=1-HH
i3] 2,021,534 300,000 8,374,605 103,199 (21,465,874)  (7,866,536) (32530)  (7,899,066)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mERZEEHR

Year Ended 31 December 20200 B ZE — 2" F+-A=+—HI &

Attributable to equity holders of the Company
ARAERRBARS

Convertible Non-
Ordinary preference Share Other  Accumulated controlling Total
shares shares  premium  reserves losses Total interests Deficit

tak wEagik ROEE HEbEE  2HEB By FiEREZR BEL
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000
ARETL ARETn ARETT ARETR ARETRT ARETT ARETR ARETR
(Note 12 [Note12)  [Note12)  [Note 1]

(WsE2)  (W&E2) (WD) (WEw

Balance at 1 January 2019 RZB-1%
-A-BlES 1737050 3,100,000 8,345,372 3T04672 (5907618 (9020522 (609,606 (9.630,126)

Profit/[loss] for the year EERH/ (BB - - = = 137320 137320 (5253 12087
Other comprehensive income/(loss] ~ Et 2 AN/
(B8)

Fair value gain on a financial RARBIARMEE

asset at fair value though other fEHeREERN

comprehensive income DrEkE - - - 2618 - 2618 = 2616
Exchange difference on translation BN EH)

of foreign operations ERES - - - 2034 - 2034 (13 2023

Total comprehensive income/ (loss)  £E2HA U/
for the year (BRI&E = - - 22962 137,320 160,282 (25,3764) 134,906

Transactions with equity holdersin ~ ESBERA 2 EH

their capacity as owners FEANRS
Transfer of fair value loss on financial  ZAREHALMH2E

asset at fair value through fEHeREEN

other comprehensive income to DMEBENIER

accumulated losses upon disposal ~ EHZ R B - - = 8,140 (6,140] = = =
Issuance of shares upon conversion ~ REAT AR EH#T

of convertible bonds Bk 284 484 - 29283 - - N7 - N7
Release of non-controlling interest ~ RHER &1 B H

upon disposal of discontinued BRERERER

operations - - - - - - 617,99 617,99
Release of other reserves upon REERBR S

disposal = = - (3500018 3500018 - - -
Lapse of employee share options B S ZREX K - - - (22,609 2609 - - -

Total transactions withownersin =~ EEBEAAZER
their capacity as owners BEANR AR 284,484 - 29233 (3516487) 3516487 N7 617998 931715

Balance at 31 December 2019 RZE-NE
t-A=t-BHE
] 2021534 3,100,000 8,374,609 AT (22253809 (8546529) (16982 (8,563509)

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should VA _E#r& 2 W & 2% FE BB HT BT & — P &
be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. B e

gg  CHINAHUARONG ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
FEIEKEERIRA AR A E



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

=
nv_\éiﬁpﬁ\;ﬁizﬁ
Year Ended 31 December 2020 Z—E-_FF+_-_A=1+—ALFE
2020 2019
—ECRH —NE
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt = AR TR AR¥EFTT
Cash flows from operating RELETBHNEESR
activities
Cash used in operations KEFTRIR® 27 (2,573) (23,933)
Interest paid BT & (6,443) (38,571)
Net cash generated from operating KRB B4 IF E K & &
activities from discontinued EEFTISIR 2 F
operations 17 - 19,488
Net cash used in operating RETHFAERSFESE
activities e (5008 . 43016
Cash flows from investing REREZTHNEER
activities
Purchase of property, plant and BEMX BELRE
equipment (13,743) (5,695)
Interest received 2 A = 80
Proceeds from sale of property, plant E’f@)% =
equipment JEFTIRRIE 1,614 -
Net cash used in investing activities 2R B 4 |k %f% R E
from discontinued operations EETARE FE 17 - (32,950])
Net cash used in investing RETBFARESTFHE
activities e NN2029) (38,565)_
Cash flows from financing REBMETHNRESR
activities
Proceeds from other borrowings HER RBRAERE
and advances 215,139 309,194
Repayment of other borrowings & 1@1 = (96,207) (63,391)
Repayment of bank borrowings BERITER (124,029) (144,472)
Net cash used in financing activities 2K E E MJL%%& Eofugey
from discontinued operations EEFTARE FE 17 - (500)
Net cash (used in)/generated from R & EE (FifB) Fia
financing activities REFH (5,097) 100,831
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
GERTRER

Year Ended 31 December 20200 B Z — 2" &F+-A=+—HI &

2020 2019
=25 —NF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt o AR TR AR¥EFTT
Net (decreasel/increase in cash and iﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁ%f’%
cash equivalents W), R R (26,242) 19,250
Cash and cash equivalents at FNHRSRRTEEY
beginning of the year 42,851 23,236
Exchange difference on cash and RekBReEEDY
cash equivalents EHER (545) 365
Cash and cash equivalents FRESRESEEY
at end of the year 1" 16,064 42,851

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should A 4R & & UK 25 2% FE B2 B8 T B 5 — F &
be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. B o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

General information

China Huarong Energy Company Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 3 February 2010 as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
Law of the Cayman Islands. Its registered address is Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-
1111, Cayman Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the subsidiaries are set out in Note 31 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi ('RMB”), unless otherwise stated.

Principal accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation
(a) Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements of the
Company have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards
("IFRSs”). The consolidated financial statements
have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except as modified by the accounting
policies stated below.

The preparation of the consolidated financial
statements in conformity with IFRSs requires the
use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgment
in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies.

e B IS R R M R

—RER
PEIZEREERRNDAERAR ([HRAF])
RZE—ZF_A-ARERAEHS
RAVEEREHSTMNK Y /KR
BERRE - ARRMFEM U A
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, PO Box
2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands °

ARABEREERRR - BHBRAFH
IZEBEIRGAMBRRME
SIS

BIERTTRIEA - BRIGRE M IERMRIA
ARSI -

FTESHEBE
RAUZEGRAUERRSEANTE
SHEERIINWOT - BRIERBIIEH -
BEREBREERERRIMEZANMNMEA
FE o

21 B E %
(a] &HEH
RKRABGFEPBEHRERHIRH
B2 B T 3R 45 2 BN ([ B BR B 7%
WEER DRE - Z4A
BHRERTDIBE S K AL LR
2 MR Xl g R BUR
FTVE A BB BR AN o

R B 75 95 4 R R
GANBRREEEALT
EAGIHEE  HRERER
ERAAREHTHRE
B 1 1 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RS R R M R

2 Principal accounting policies
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
[a] Statement of compliance (Continued)

(b

Except as described below, the accounting policies
adopted are consistent with all the year's presented
rules unless otherwise stated.

Going concern basis

The Group had an operating cash outflow of
RMB9,016,000 (the year ended 31 December
2019: outflow of RMB43,016,000] during the year
ended 31 December 2020. As at 31 December
2020, the Group had a deficit of RMB7,899,066,000
(31 December 2019: RMB8,563,505,000) and the
Group’s current liabilities exceeded its current
assets by RMB7,423,414,000 (31 December 2019
RMB9,911,528,000). The Group maintained cash and
cash equivalents of RMB16,064,000 (31 December
2019: RMB42,851,000) as at 31 December 2020.

CHINA HUARONG ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
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2 FESFEEER w

21 B E % (@)

la)

(b

e E W (®m)

B T & SN B 3E B AT AT
B RS B RS
EEERIMB A —5

FE %—‘?%g/ﬁ

2T _ZEF+_-H
=+ —H JtiJ; KEH
geEResRHEABEARE
9,016,000 (B = = F — /v
F+-—A=Z+—BHLFE:
A R #43,016,0007T) °
N-E-—F&F+-_B=+—
H AXEBEBEMAREARE
7.899,066,000Tt(= & — N
F+-A=+—HB:AR%
8,563,505,0007T) © M A £ &
NBEBEEBEHERTHEE
A R #7423,414,0007T (= Z
—ﬂ¢+:ﬂz+—5 N
E ei%“%m 528,0007T) °
E-EF+A=1+— EI
AEBHEIZRGRRGEE
oA R #16,064,000C (=&
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR RMEE
2 Principal accounting policies 2 FESTHE w

(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

21 REEE @)

[b] Going concern basis (Continued)

On 9 October 2018, the Company entered into a
conditional sale and purchase agreement with
Unique Orient Limited (the "Purchaser’), an
independent third party, to dispose of the core
assets and liabilities of the Shipbuilding Business
(the "Disposal Group “) at a consideration of HKD1
(the “Transaction’]). There are certain conditions
precedent pursuant to the Transaction, which
included, but not limited to, the successful issuance
of certain Convertible Preference Shares ("CPS”)
to certain bank creditors of the subsidiaries of the
Disposal Group, and the release or discharge of the
relevant guarantees provided by the Company in
respect of the debts of the Shipbuilding Business
(the "Relevant Guarantees”). The conditional sale
and purchase agreement and the issuance of CPS
were approved by the shareholders of the Company
and CPS were issued in December 2018.

On 3 March 2019, supplemental agreements were
signed with the Purchaser, such that (1) the transfer
of the sale shares of Able Diligent Limited, the
holding company of the Disposal Group, to the
Purchaser shall take place on or before 31 August
2019; (2] the Purchaser agreed to procure the
release or discharge of the Relevant Guarantees;
and (3] the Purchaser agreed to execute a share
charge over the sale shares in favour of the
Company. On 10 March 2019, the Group transferred
the sale shares of Able Diligent Limited to the
Purchaser.

[b] #5#EAAEEE (45)

R-ZZE—/\F+ALR AR
AEBYE=ZFREARA
A(BADIIZAKMAHLE
REEHZE  MBTHEE
mMEH(HEREDMHZL
EERAGBIZXSZ) 1R
BZRHAEETRRGNE
BREEAMRRAIIA L EE
BB ARME TRTE
BABRTETAIERELEK
(TEBBREER]) UKk
B BRRAD A B E M ER
B E 75 B2 R RO R BR 45 0% (48
BiER) - BHRHEEEHZ
RAIEBREER2BHTER
AR F) R AL - T A R
BERER=_Z—N\F+=
AT -

R—_TE—NF=-A=H &
EFEHAME A
MEEEEZER DA Able
Diligent Limited [ & 75 83 %
HERGBR=ZF—ALEN
A=+—BZA#17: (2
8 75 [ E e K % B sk &R
AEER: ROEHREMN
ARBRBZHZARBEERS
RO ER -R-_FT—N
F=ZA+H XEEKAble
Diligent Limited #Y 8§ & &% 2
BETER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RS R R M R

2 Principal accounting policies
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2 FESFEEER w

21 REEE @)

[b] Going concern basis (Continued)

Following the completion of the transfer of sale
shares, the Group has derecognised the Disposal
Group's assets and liabilities and recognised a
disposal gain of RMB916,012,000. On 30 October
2019, a supplemental agreement was signed with
the Purchaser, such that the share charge over the
sale shares in favour of the Company executed by
the Purchaser was replaced by a deed of indemnity
provided by the Purchaser. Details of the disposal
are disclosed in note 17.

As at 31 December 2020, financial guarantees
provided by the Company to the banks and lenders
of the Disposal Group, inclusive of principals and
interest, amounted to RMB4,545,132,000. The Group
has considered and recognised the corresponding
impact of such financial guarantee contracts as at
31 December 2020. Details are disclosed in note 28.

As at 31 December 2020, borrowings of the Group
amounted to RMB3,392,891,000, out of which
RMB1,365,178,000 were overdue, while borrowings
of the Group amounting to RMB8,618,000 contained
cross-default terms as at 31 December 2020 and
became immediately repayable. Total overdue
interest payables of the Group amounted to
RMB492,486,000. These borrowings are further
explained below:

104 CHINA HUARONG ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
FEIEKEERIRA AR A E

[b] #5#EAAEEE (45)

BRELNERMNDENE  ~&
ERIEREEEENEE
haE TRRHEWEA
R #916,012,0007T - R =&
—NWE+A=+B HE}H
i amE  BAUAEAR
AAXE AREERME L
Ml EHRRE FIRENR
BERERE - DEFBERMH
17 EE o

RZEZZEF+A=+—
H A2 HEERRR
TRERAREEBER
(BEEAEREMNE)/BARE
4545132000t - A E B B
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T+ —ARERTYBERSE
HREEEZ - FFIERMEE
287 #2 5% o
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1,365,178,000cE 8 H » mH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Principal accounting policies

(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
[b] Going concern basis (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

The Group had promissory notes with
an aggregate principal amount of
RMB1,945,592,000 outstanding as at 31
December 2020, out of which approximately
RMB762,863,000, RMB242,106,000 and
RMB45,360,000 had been overdue since 2017,
2018 and 2020 respectively. The remaining
outstanding promissory notes amounting to
RMBS8,618,000 became immediately repayable
pursuant to the cross-default terms under the
relevant loan agreements.

The Group had bank borrowing of
RMB314,849,000 which was overdue in
accordance with the repayment date of the
agreement as at 31 December 2020.

The above conditions indicate the existence of

material uncertainties, which may cast significant
doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

In view of such circumstances, the directors of

the Company have, during the year and up to the

date of the approval of these consolidated financial

statements, taken the following measures to
mitigate the liquidity pressure and to improve the
financial position of the Group, to refinance its

operation and to restructure its debts:

e EHRRME
2 FESFTHER w

21 REEE @)

[b] #5#EAAEEE (45)

il RZFE=ZZTF+=A
=+ —H A£EEBEEF
ERcBBAARE
1,945,592,0007T H) & &
BAREE HEFHA
FR #£762,863,0007C « A
R #242,106,0007T & A
R #45,360,0007T 5 Bl B
ZE—tF -ZF—N
FR_ZE_EFREL
B BT REEAR
Z & A R #8,618,0007T
BIEEEERBHET
KX X A 5K 7B BD

Ei& -

i) XEBEFHIRETER
A K #314,849,0007T °
RZZE-_ZEF+_-A
=+—8 " RIEEBEH
EMNERBHEKES
Hy o

ERACR KA BEEHAK
BOHERERIELER
RETFEEANHETEME -

ERLMER ARRES
REARBEHREZERA
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e DAREE B IEE ) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RS R R M R

2 Principal accounting policies

(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
[b] Going concern basis (Continued)

)

i)

iii)

The Group has been actively negotiating
with the relevant banks and lenders of the
Disposal Group to release or discharge
the Relevant Guarantees. Since the date of
disposal until 31 December 2020, guarantees
of RMB2,210,636,000 were discharged while
guarantees of RMB4,545,132,000 are expected
to be released in the year of 2021.

The Group is also maintaining its relationship
with the banks and the lenders of the Disposal
Group so that no action will be taken by
them to demand immediate repayment of its
outstanding borrowings under the Relevant
Guarantees.

The Group has also been actively negotiating
with the banks and lenders regarding the
borrowing of RMB2,260,441,000 to take the
following actions:

(a) As at 31 December 2020, outstanding
promissory notes amounting to
RMB1,006,600,000 which were not
extended nor repaid upon the schedule
repayment dates and thus became
overdue and RMB8,618,000 became
immediately repayable pursuant to the
cross-default terms under the relevant
loan agreements. The Company is in
the process of negotiating with these
promissory note holders for further
arrangements, including the extension of
maturity dates and obtaining waiver from
the lender for the due payment pursuant
to the relevant cross-default terms.

CHINA HUARONG ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B IS R R M R

2 FESFEEER w

2 Principal accounting policies

(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
[b] Going concern basis (Continued)

iii)

iv)

v)

(Continued]

(b) As at 31 December 2020, the Group had
bank borrowing of RMB314,849,000 which
was overdue. The Group is in the process
of negotiating with the relevant bank for
extension of repayment and renewal of
such borrowing.

During the year ended 31 December 2020,
the Group obtained unsecured and interest-
free loans from an entity controlled by a
close family member of Mr. Zhang Zhi Rong
amounting to RMB360,140,000, which will be
due for repayment in December 2022.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group has
drawn down USD119,708,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB781,297,000) in total
from the loan agreement provided by
entity controlled by Mr. Zhang Zhi Rong,
who agreed to provide a loan facility up to
USD250,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB1,631,675,000) to the Group for the
funding of the oilfield operations of the energy
exploration and production segment. The
carrying amount is RMB719,927,000 and
it is payable between December 2021 and
December 2022.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RS R R M R

2 Principal accounting policies

(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
[b] Going concern basis (Continued)

vi)

The Group has focused on its operations in
development of the energy exploration and
production segment. A number of wells were
developed in the Republic of Kyrgyzstan
("Kyrgyzstan”) and management expects
to realise an increase of oil output through
further development and expansion of this
segment, thereby generating steady operating
cash flows.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group has drawn
down RMB9,100,000 from the loan agreement
provided by an entity controlled by Mr. Zhang
Zhi Rong, who agreed to provide a loan facility
up to RMBA40,000,000 to the Group for the
funding in respect of the energy exploration
and production segment.

In addition, the Group also entered into a Co-
operative Framework Agreement during
the year ended 31 December 2018 with an
independent third party who agreed to provide
materials for the exploration and production
of crude oil with an aggregate amount up to
UsD500,000,000, in exchange for an option
to purchase up to 70% of the total crude oil
produced by the Group at 92% to 95% of the
market price as a form of repayment until all
the liabilities are repaid. Such facility has not
been utilised up to 31 December 2020.

CHINA HUARONG ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED

108 TEERERRDERAA

2 FESFEEER w

21 REEE @)

b) #F

vi)

EBARERE (@)
AEBEEEREERR
WHRREEEBIR
Mo EE S A AE
(EESHDEMBEH
O - e 3% e 7 &t
BRE—SBEERARE
FEBRBRERRES
BH RmEREES

@ AT A 3Px
KERBM -

T F =
—RB A&EEE
A
T 2 E R
R #9,100,000
TRRERANE
ERETZRARE
40,000,0007T # & X &
B RASEEZEERE
FREEDHIRHESE
@ °

el

Sm T

>_

)

I MERr DR
o omg Bl

w
i}

\;

o HE_T—N\F
+—A=+—HItFE -
REBRE-FZBILE
ZHEMNAEEZRY
FORBYEZSRE
RERBMEREEM
48 %8 = 32500,000,000
ETILARRA IR T I5
B 1592% 295% B8 & K
EERBEELAE R
Z70%H) BAHE - {ERE
BERFN EEEEMA
BE -BHE_ZT_ZTF
+ZA=+—H %%
BAEMAREA o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR RMEE
2 Principal accounting policies 2 FESTHE w

(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

21 REEE @)

[b] Going concern basis (Continued)

The directors have reviewed the Group’'s cash
flow projections prepared by management that
covered a period of not less than twelve months
from 31 December 2020. They are of the opinion
that, taking into account the above-mentioned
plans and measures, the Group will have sufficient
working capital to finance its operations and to
meet its financial obligations as and when they fall
due within the next twelve months from the date
of the statement of financial position. Accordingly,
the directors are satisfied that it is appropriate to
prepare the consolidated financial statements on a
going concern basis.

Notwithstanding the above, significant uncertainties
exist as to whether management of the Company
will be able to achieve its plans and measures as
described above. Whether the Group will be able
to continue as a going concern would depend upon
the Group's ability to generate adequate financing
and operating cash flows through the successful
fulfillment of the following plans:

i]  obtaining the agreement from the banks and
lenders to release or discharge the Relevant
Guarantees for the borrowings owed by the
Disposal Group;

il convincing the banks and lenders not to
demand for repayment of the outstanding
loans of the Disposal Group before the
completion of the release of the Relevant
Guarantees;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RS R R M R

2 Principal accounting policies

(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
[b] Going concern basis (Continued)

iii)

iv)

V)

vi)

vii)

negotiating with all existing promissory
note holders of outstanding principals of
RMB1,945,592,000 together with accrued
interests thereon for further arrangements
including extension of the maturity dates;

negotiating with the relevant bank for the
renewal or extension for repayments for the
bank borrowing of RMB314,849,000 that was
overdue as at 31 December 2020;

obtaining waivers from the relevant
promissory note holders for the due payment
in relation to those notes that have cross-
default terms and extend the repayment dates
when they fall due;

implementing a business plan for its energy
exploration and production segment to
generate cash inflows; and

obtaining additional sources of financing other
than those mentioned above, including those to
finance the energy exploration and production
segment, and the successful drawdown of the
various facilities made available to the Group
by entities controlled by Mr. Zhang Zhi Rong
and a close family member of Mr. Zhang Zhi
Rong, as described in management’'s plan
above, as and when needed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Principal accounting policies
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
[b] Going concern basis (Continued)

lc]

Should the Group fail to achieve the above-
mentioned plans and measures, it might not be
able to continue to operate as a going concern, and
adjustments would have to be made to write down
the carrying value of the Group’'s assets to their
recoverable amounts, to provide for any further
liabilities which might arise, and to reclassify
non-current assets and non-current liabilities as
current assets and current liabilities. The effect of
these adjustments has not been reflected in these
consolidated financial statements.

New and amended standards,
improvements and interpretation adopted
by the Group

The Group has applied the following standards
and amendments for the first time for their annual
reporting period commencing 1 January 2020.

Amendments to IAS 1 Definition of Material

and IAS 8

Amendments to IFRS 3 Definition of a Business

Amendments to IFRS 9, Interest Rate

IAS 39 and IFRS 7 Benchmark Reform

The amendments listed above did not have any
impact on the amounts recognised in prior periods
and are not expected to significantly affect the
current or future periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RS R R M R

2 Principal accounting policies

(Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
[d] Issued but not yet effective International

2 FESHBEX w

21 B E % (@)
(d] E #8518 (5 5K £ 4 B9 B

Financial Reporting Standards BB % iR E ﬁﬂ
Standards, amendments and interpretations that ERMBER_Z_ZEF—A
have been issued but not yet effective for the — BRI IBEE KR E

financial year beginning 1 January 2020 and not
been early adopted by the Group as of the reporting

M AR EE N REHEL KR
RERMHOEL - BT LR

period are as follows: =N
Effective for annual
periods beginning on or after
RUATEES 2%
BRNEERBEN
IFRS 17 BEBREEUENR  Isurance contracts RBEH 1 January 2023
“R-=%-R-A
Amendments to IFRS 3 BRHHERERNEIN  Reference to Conceptual BoERSZER 1 January 2022
’1‘551‘\ Framework “5--%-8-H
Amendments toAS 1 BRerEl 1% Classification of Liabilitesas ~ BEAEARBEEL 1 January 2022
(%M‘) Current or Non-current FRBEE “E--f-A-H
Amendments to [AS 37 BEEHENENSE  OnerousContracts—Costof ~ BEAH-BIAHN 1 January 2022
CHEY Fulfilling a Contract R “F--%-A-H
Amendments to IFRSs BHEREE Annual improvements to [FRS B B 7 3 4 .8 1 January 2022
CHES standards 2018-2020 Cycle -\EE-%3-%F ZE-§-8-R

BHERNE

Amendments to 1AS 16 BB @ HER 105 Property, Plant and Equipment: %1% * R R 1 January 2022
CHEN! Proceeds before intended use ~ {EERE R ATRIFTE SR “%--%-A-H

The Group has already commenced an assessment
of the impact of the new or revised standards that
have been issued but either not yet effective for the
financial period beginning 1 January 2020 or not
been early adopted by the Group which are relevant
to the Group’s operation. The Group believes that the
application of amendments to IFRSs, amendments
to IASs and the new interpretations is unlikely to
have a material impact on the Group’s statement
of financial position and performance as well as
disclosure in the future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B IS R R M R

2 FESFEEER w

2 Principal accounting policies
(Continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity 22 BmEANRREREER
accounting Al

(a] Subsidiaries (a] BB LA

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed
to, or has rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power to direct
the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully
consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated
from the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for business combinations by the Group
(refer to Note 2.3).

Intercompany transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between group
companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and
equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
statement of changes in equity and statement of
financial position respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RS R R M R

2 Principal accounting policies
(Continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity 22 BmEANRREREER
accounting (Continued) Al ()

[b] Changes in ownership interests b) HEEEZE

2 FESFEEER w

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interests that do not result in a loss of control
as transactions with equity owners of the Group.
A change in ownership interest results in an
adjustment between the carrying amounts of
the controlling and non-controlling interests to
reflect their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any
difference between the amount of the adjustment
to non-controlling interests and any consideration
paid or received is recognised in a separate reserve
within equity attributable to owners of the Company.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity
account for an investment because of a loss of
control, joint control or significant influence, any
retained interest in the entity is remeasured to
its fair value with the change in carrying amount
recognised in profit or loss. This fair value becomes
the initial carrying amount for the purposes of
subsequently accounting for the retained interest
as an associate, joint venture or financial asset.
In addition, any amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in respect of that
entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may
mean that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or
loss or transferred to another category of equity as
specified/permitted by applicable IFRSs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B IS R R M R

2 Principal accounting policies 2 FESTHE w

(Continued)

2.3 Business combinations

23 EKEH

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account
for all business combinations, regardless of whether

AR R DRSS AT
A GiARR - TR T

equity instruments or other assets are acquired. The Aol A& E - WEMEBAR 2

consideration transferred for the acquisition of a EEERER:

subsidiary comprises the:

(i) fairvalues of the assets transferred i) FFEZEEEZANE

(i) Lliabilities incurred to the former owners of the (] FrEEBENBEEAES
acquired business ZBE

(i) equity interests issued by the group i) AREE T RE

(iv] fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement, and

(v) fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the
subsidiary

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are,
with limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date. The Group recognises
any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at fair value or at
the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the
acquired entity’s net identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RS R R M R

2 Principal accounting policies
(Continued)

2.3 Business combinations (Continued)

2 FESFEEER w

23 XS @

The excess of the consideration transferred, amount
of any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity,
and acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity
interest in the acquired entity over the fair value of the
net identifiable assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.
If those amounts are less than the fair value of the
net identifiable assets of the business acquired, the
difference is recognised directly in profit or loss as a
bargain purchase.

Contingent consideration is classified either as equity
or a financial liability. Amounts classified as a financial
liability are subsequently remeasured to fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

If the business combination is achieved in stages,
the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date. Any
gains or losses arising from such remeasurement are
recognised in profit or loss.

2.4 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who
is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been
identified as the Executive Directors of the Company who
make strategic decisions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Principal accounting policies
(Continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation

la)

(b

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (the "functional
currency’). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in RMB, which is the Company’s
functional and the Group’s presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in profit or loss. They are
deferred in equity if they relate to qualifying cash
flow hedges and qualifying net investment hedges
or are attributable to part of the net investment in a
foreign operation.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings are presented in profit or loss within
‘finance income’ or ‘finance costs’. All other foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented in profit or
loss within ‘other (losses]/gains — net'.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RS R R M R

2 Principal accounting policies
(Continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (Continued)
[b) Transactions and balances (Continued)

lc]

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities such as derivative financial
instruments are recognised as part of the fair value
gain or loss.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group
entities [none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

() assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement of
financial position;

(i) income and expenses for each statement
of comprehensive income are translated at
average exchange rates (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the rate on the
dates of the transactions); and

(i all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in profit or loss.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of the net investment in
foreign operations, and of borrowings and other
currency instruments designated as hedges
of such investments, are recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR RMEE
2 Principal accounting policies 2 FESTHE w

(Continued)

2.6 Oil properties 2.6 AHYIE

The successful efforts method of accounting is used
for oil exploration and production activities. Costs are
accumulated on a field-by-field basis. All costs for
development wells, support equipment and facilities, and
proved mineral interests in oil properties are capitalised
within construction in progress under property, plant
and equipment. Geological and geophysical costs are
expensed when incurred. Costs directly associated
with an exploration well, and exploration and property
leasehold acquisition costs, are capitalised within
construction in progress until the determination of
reserves is evaluated. If it is determined that commercial
discovery has not been achieved, these costs are charged
to profit or loss.

Once commercial reserves are found, construction
in progress relevant to oil properties are tested for
impairment, or whenever facts and circumstances
indicate impairment. No depreciation and depletion is
charged during the exploration and evaluation phase.
When development is completed on a specific field, it is
transferred to oil properties.

An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the exploration and evaluation assets’ carrying
amount exceeds their recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of the exploration and
evaluation assets’ fair value less costs of disposal and
their value in use.

Qil properties are depreciated using the units-of-
production method. Unit-of-production rates are based
on proved developed reserves, which are oil reserves
estimated to be recovered from existing facilities using
current operating methods. Oil volumes are considered
to be part of production once they have been measured
through meters at custody transfer or sales transaction
points at the outlet valve on the field storage tank.

AHYRELETHRARRL
RCRR - AT SRR A 2 AR
e MBI EERENA LA
BETHCRABERERNMAA
RABRYE  BERZBEET
MERTRERBETEN - E R
WHMBEKAREERH - &
BER BRI R AR BT &
MERERERARDFHEHE
BEMAEEEER/ERIREDE
FEXR - WEEERETRIAER
¥Rz AMAEBAKAEEERZN
B o

—BRBRNIERERGECRHE
FEFERBEABRTHREE -
AlEMAMAEENERIREE
TTRE A - R B KT (4 HI
EBHRITERITFE - EFTEH
M TE A B 3 B - HAS 88 58S 0
BHH -

EHREFAHEERAESRA
WEl e - A ERERRM
BEE - ATl @ e 5B IR M AT
HEERAEIREEKRAERD
BEEGTHAEEZESE -

OHBERREMNEEERNE - &
MAEERTDIENCRBLERE
B BIABREE T AGFER
B R UL B B A o E A
EEBREIFMFIAEL AR E
EXFGHAER  IRERLEE
B —#BD o

ANNUAL REPORT 2020
FEHRE2020

119



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RS R R M R

2 Principal accounting policies
(Continued)

2.6 Oil properties (Continued)

2 FESFEEER w

2.6 A HYE @)

Proven oil properties are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which
the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and its value in
use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows.

2.7 Property, plant and equipment

The Group's buildings, including buildings under
construction, are stated at revalued amount. All other
property, plant and equipment, except for construction in
progress, are stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition and construction of the
items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The
carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.
All other repairs and maintenance are charged in profit
or loss during the financial period in which they are
incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR RMEE
2 Principal accounting policies 2 FESTHE w

(Continued)

2.7 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

27 ¥ - BERRE@®

Except for oil properties, the depreciation of which
is calculated using the unit-of-production method,
depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate their costs to their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, as follows:

RAamBEREFTEDNRBEM
EEEE)N  ERBUT
B & R RI6E P 4F H3 A8 A AR 4 B AR
ENBERSREEBTE:

Computer equipment 3-5years
TR ===
Office equipment Syears
N R
Motor vehicles 4-10 years
B POE+F

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting period. An
asset’'s carrying amount is written down immediately to
its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Plant and equipment under construction or pending
installation are stated at cost impairment losses, if any.
No depreciation is made on assets under construction
in progress until such time as the relevant assets are
completed and available for their intended use.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and
are recognised in the profit or loss.

BEMRNKEERTERAFEHNE
SEREHEE TR  REE
ERATHE - HEEMNKAEE
SREMFATEDEE  HKE
18 BV R £ P U B 2 8B o

THEHRZSRFRENEE LK
BEKAREBE(B) K -
HEEEKLABERER
wA ERIREETSELR

Py

€ o

2 BB B L BT 1S IR EL AR
HEMEE IYHEBZANER -

ANNUAL REPORT 2020
FEHRE2020

121



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RS R R M R

2 Principal accounting policies
(Continued)

2.8 Intangible assets 28 BILEE
Co-operation Rights B LR

2 FESFEEER w

The Co-operation Rights represent rights to cooperate
with the national oil company of Kyrgyzstan in the
operation of the five oil fields zones ("Co-operation
Rights”). The Co-operation Rights are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses.
The Co-operation Rights are amortised using the unit-of-
production method. Unit-of-production rates are based
on proved reserves, which are oil reserves estimated
to be recovered from existing facilities using current
operating methods. Oil volumes are considered to be part
of production once they have been measured through
meters at custody transfer or sales transaction points at
the outlet valve on the field storage tank.

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are classified as
held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than
through continuing use and a sale is considered highly
probable. They are measured at the lower of their
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell, except
for assets such as deferred tax assets, assets arising
from employee benefits, financial assets and investment
property that are carried at fair value and contractual
rights under insurance contracts, which are specifically
exempt from this requirement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B IS R R M R

2 FESFEEER w

29 HFHENFERDEE (H

2 Principal accounting policies
(Continued)

2.9 Non-current assets (or disposal groups)

held for sale and discontinued operations

An impairment loss is recognised for any initial or
subsequent write-down of the asset (or disposal group)
to fair value less costs to sell. A gain is recognised for
any subsequent increases in fair value less costs to sell
of an asset (or disposal group), but not in excess of any
cumulative impairment loss previously recognised. A gain
or loss not previously recognised by the date of the sale of
the non-current asset (or disposal group) is recognised at
the date of derecognition.

Non-current assets (including those that are part of a
disposal group) are not depreciated or amortised while
they are classified as held for sale. Interest and other
expenses attributable to the liabilities of a disposal group
classified as held for sale continue to be recognised.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale and the
assets of a disposal group classified as held for sale
are presented separately from the other assets in
the consolidated statement of financial position. The
liabilities of a disposal group classified as held for sale
are presented separately from other liabilities in the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RS R R M R

2 Principal accounting policies

(Continued)

2.9 Non-current assets (or disposal groups)
held for sale and discontinued operations
(Continued)

A discontinued operation is a component of the entity
that has been disposed of or is classified as held for sale
and that represents a separate major line of business or
geographical area of operations, is part of a single co-
ordinated plan to dispose of such a line of business or
area of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively
with a view to resale. The results of discontinued
operations are presented separately in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

2.10 Investments and other financial assets
(il Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

e those to be measured subsequently at fair
value (either through OCI or through profit or
loss), and

. those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’'s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in profit or loss or OCI.
For investments in equity instruments that are
not held for trading, this will depend on whether
the Group has made an irrevocable election at
the time of initial recognition to account for the
equity investment at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and
only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B IS R R M R

2 Principal accounting policies 2 FESTHE w

(Continued)

2.10 Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)
lii] Recognition and derecognition

QM BREREMEHMEE @

lii] 7838 R A& 1L HE 57

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on trade-date, the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership.

(iiil Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL],
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs
of financial assets carried at FVPL are expensed in
profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group's business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There is one
measurement category into which the group
classifies its debt instruments:

e Amortised cost: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance income
using the effective interest rate method.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
is recognised directly in profit or loss and
presented in “other (losses]/gains-net”
together with foreign exchange gains and
losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RS R R M R

2 Principal accounting policies
(Continued)

2.10 Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

2 FESFEEER w

QM BREREMEHMEE @

(iii) Measurement (Continued) (iii) &1 £ ()
Equity instruments #am T A

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group’s
management has elected to present fair value gains
and losses on equity investments in OCI, there is no
subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and
losses to profit or loss following the derecognition
of the investment. Dividends from such investments
is recognised in profit or loss as other income when
the Group’s right to receive payments is established.

Change in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL
are recognised in “other (losses)/gains-net” in the
statement of profit or loss as applicable. Impairment
losses [and reversal of impairment losses] on equity
investments measured at FVOCI are not reported
separately from other changes in fair value.

liv] Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its
debt instruments carried at amortised cost. The
impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the
simplified approach permitted by IFRS 9, which
requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised
from initial recognition of the receivables, see Note
3.1(b) for further details.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B IS R R M R

2 FESHBEX w

WM kERMEERE

2 Principal accounting policies
(Continued)
2.11 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for example,
goodwill or intangible assets not ready for use are not
subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value
in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (a CGU). Non-financial
assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment
are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at
each reporting date.

2.12 Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on
the date a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently remeasured at their fair value. The
Group’'s derivative instruments do not qualify for hedge
accounting and are accounted for at fair value through
profit or loss. Changes in the fair value of these derivative
instruments are recognised immediately within “other
(losses)/gains — net” in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRHME
2 Principal accounting policies

(Continued)

2.13 Inventories 231FE

2 FESFEEER w

Crude oil inventories are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Costs of inventories represent
relevant production costs and are determined on a
weighted average basis. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business
less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.

214 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
goods sold or services performed in the ordinary course
of business. If collection of trade and other receivables is
expected in one year or less (or in the normal operating
cycle of the business if longer), they are classified as
current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current
assets.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount
of consideration that is unconditional unless they
contain significant financing components, when they
are recognised at fair value. The Group holds the trade
receivables with the objective to collect the contractual
cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. See
Note 3.1(b) for a description of the Group's impairment
policies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B IS R R M R
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2 Principal accounting policies
(Continued)

2.15 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in bank and
deposits held at call with banks.

2.16 Share capital

(il

(il

Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares and non-redeemable preference
shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue
of new shares are shown in equity as a deduction,
net of tax, from the proceeds.

Convertible preference shares

Non-redeemable convertible preference shares
issued by the Company that contain the conversion
option components are classified as equity on initial
recognition in accordance with the substance of
the contractual arrangements and the definitions
of an equity instrument. The conversion option
allows the holder of the non-redeemable convertible
preference shares to convert the convertible
preference shares into a fixed number of the
Company’s own ordinary shares and therefore
the whole instrument is classified as an equity
instrument.

The convertible preference shares are initially
recognised at their par value in share capital. The
difference between the par value of the issued
convertible preference shares and its fair value is
recognised in share premium.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RS R R M R

2 Principal accounting policies

(Continued)

2.17 Trade and other payables

2 FESFEEER w

217 FE Y BR X I ELAth FE Y RKIH

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of business from suppliers. Trade and other payables are
classified as current liabilities if payment is due within
one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-
current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

2.18 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs] and the redemption
value is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the
draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that
it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the facility to
which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement
of the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR RMEE
2 Principal accounting policies 2 FESTHE w

(Continued)

2.19 Provisions

2.19 B &

Provisions for environmental restoration, restructuring
costs and legal claims are recognised when the Group
has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation, and the
amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as
a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood
of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the
provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2 Principal accounting policies

(Continued)
2.20 Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax
payable on the current period’s taxable income based
on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction
adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities
attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax
losses.

(a) Currentincome tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of each reporting period in the
countries where the Company and its subsidiaries
operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of
amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

[b] Deferred income tax
Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities
are not recognised if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill, the deferred income tax is
not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction other than
a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws] that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of each reporting
period and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Principal accounting policies
(Continued)

2.20 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)
[b) Deferred income tax (Continued)

lc]

Inside basis differences (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries,
except for deferred income tax liability where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary difference
is controlled by the Group and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and when the deferred income taxes assets and
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either the taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an intention
to settle the balances on a net basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RS R R M R

2 Principal accounting policies
(Continued)

2.21 Employee benefits
(a) Short-term obligations

2 FESFEEER w

2N EEER
(a) FFHIET

(b

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-
monetary benefits, annual leave and accumulating
sick leave that are expected to be settled wholly
within 12 months after the end of the period in
which the employees render the related service are
recognised in respect of employees’ services up to
the end of the reporting period and are measured at
the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities
are settled. The liabilities are presented as current
employee benefit obligations in the statement of
financial position.

Pension and employee social security and
benefits obligations

The group companies in the PRC and Kyrgyzstan
participate in defined contribution retirement plans
and other employee social security plans, including
pension, medical, other welfare benefits, organised
and administered by the relevant governmental
authorities for employees in the PRC and
Kyrgyzstan. The Group contributes to these plans
based on certain percentages of the total salary of
employees, subject to a certain ceiling, as stipulated
by the relevant regulations.

The Group has no further payment obligations once
the contributions have been paid. The contributions
are recognised as employee benefit expense when
they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised
as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a
reduction in the future payments is available.

CHINA HUARONG ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR RMEE
2 Principal accounting policies 2 FESTHE w
(Continued)

2.21 Employee benefits (continued)
[c] Share-based compensation

LN EEERN @)
lc] LR 158 2 2 1 Bl

The employees receive equity instruments of
the Company as consideration for their services
rendered to the Group. The fair value of the
employee services received in exchange for the
grant of the equity instruments is recognised as
an expense. The total amount to be expensed is
determined by reference to the fair value of the
equity instruments granted, including any market
performance conditions; excluding the impact of
any service and non-market performance vesting
conditions; and including the impact of any non-
vesting conditions. The total amount expensed
is recognised over the vesting period, which is
the period over which all of the specified vesting
conditions are to be satisfied. At the end of each
reporting period, the entity revises its estimates of
the number of equity instrument that are expected
to vest based on the non-marketing performance
and service conditions. It recognises the impact of
the revision of original estimates, if any, in profit or
loss with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

In addition, in some circumstances employees may
provide services in advance of the grant date and
therefore the grant date fair value is estimated for
the purposes of recognising the expense during the
period between service commencement period and
grant date.

When the options are exercised, the Company
issues new shares. The proceeds received net of any
directly attributable transaction costs are credited
to share capital (and share premium).

(d] Bonus plan

The Group recognises a provision for bonus when
contractually obliged or when there is a past
practice that has created a constructive obligation.

(d)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRHME
2 Principal accounting policies

(Continued)

2.22 Revenue recognition

2 FESFEEER w

2.22 iy z5 WE 5E

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sale of goods in the
ordinary course of the Group's activities. Revenue from
sale of goods of the Group was primarily generated from
production and sales of oil, and sales of commodities.

Revenue are recognised when or as the control of the
goods is transferred to the customer, and there is no
unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customer’s
acceptance of the product. Delivery occurs when the
product have been transported to the specified location,
the risks of obsolescence and loss have been transferred
to the customer, and either the customer has accepted
the products in accordance with the sales contract, the
acceptance provisions have lapsed, or the Group has
objective evidence that all criteria for acceptance have
been satisfied.

Revenue from the production and sales of oil are
recognised at a point in time when the customer picks
up the oil products from the Group, as such the control
of the goods is transferred to the customer. The Group
does not provide shipment of oil products to customers
at any specified location. The performance obligation is
completely fulfilled upon the pick-up and the Group then
has the right to invoice and recognises the revenue for
the oil sold.

Revenue from sale of commodities is generated from
the trading of bulk commodities domestically and is
recognised at a point in time, on the passing of control
of goods to the customer in accordance with shipping
terms.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B IS R R M R

2 Principal accounting policies 2 FESTHE w

(Continued)

2.23 Interest income 223 % Bl A

Interest income on financial assets at amortised
cost calculated using the effective interest method
is recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as part of other income.

Interest income is presented as finance income where
it is earned from financial assets that are held for cash
management purposes. Any other interest income is
included in other income.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset except for financial assets that subsequently
become credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial
assets, the effective interest rate is applied to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset (after deduction of
the loss allowance).

2.24 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended
use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation. All other borrowing costs are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are
incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RS R R M R

2 Principal accounting policies
(Continued)

2.25 Leases 250 &

2 FESFEEER w

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased
asset is available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease
components. The Group allocates the consideration in
the contract to the lease and non-lease components
based on their relative stand-alone prices. However, for
leases of real estate for which the Group is a lessee,
it has elected not to separate lease and non-lease
components and instead accounts for these as a single
lease component.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of the following lease
payments:

e fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

e variable lease payment that are based on an index
or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate
as at the commencement date;

e amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees;

e the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group
is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

e payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if
the lease term reflects the Group exercising that
option.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR RMEE
2 Principal accounting policies 2 FESTHE w

(Continued)

2.25 Leases (Continued) 2.5 & @)

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain
extension options are also included in the measurement
of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in the
Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used,
being the rate that the individual lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset
of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar
economic environment with similar terms, security and
conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

e where possible, uses recent third party financing
received by the individual lessee as a starting point,
adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions
since third party financing was received;

e uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free
interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held
by the Group, which does not have recent third party
financing; and

e makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term,
country, currency and security.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RS R R M R

2 Principal accounting policies
(Continued)

2.25 Leases (Continued)

2 FESFEEER w

225 & (@)

Lease payments are allocated between principal and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss
over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability
for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
following:

. the amount of the initial measurement of lease
liability;

e any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives
received;

e anyinitial direct costs; and
° restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the
shorter of the asset's useful life and the lease term on
a straight-line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain
to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is
depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases of
equipment and vehicles and all leases of low-value
assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an
expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases
with a lease term of 12 months or less. Low-value
assets comprise IT equipment and small items of office
furniture.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR RMEE
2 Principal accounting policies 2 FESTHE w

(Continued)

2.26 Financial guarantees

2.26 BY 5 AR

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as
financial liabilities at the time the guarantees are
issued. The liability is initially measured at fair value and
subsequently at the higher of:

. the amount determined in accordance with the
expected credit loss model under IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments; and

. the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, the cumulative amount of income
recognised in accordance with the principles of IFRS
15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers.

The fair value of financial guarantees is determined
based on the present value of the difference in cash
flows between the contractual payments required under
the debt instrument and the payments that would be
required without the guarantee, or the estimated amount
that would be payable to a third party for assuming the
obligations.

Where guarantees in relation to loans or other payables
of associates are provided for no compensation, the fair
values are accounted for as contributions and recognised
as part of the cost of the investment.

2.27 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the Company’s
financial statements in the period in which the dividends
are approved by the Company's shareholders or
directors, where appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RS R R M R

2 Principal accounting policies
(Continued)
2.28 Earnings per share
(il Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

e the profit attributable to owners of the
company, excluding any costs of servicing
equity other than ordinary shares

e by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the financial year,
adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary shares
issued during the year and excluding treasury
shares.

lii) Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used
in the determination of basic earnings per share to
take into account:

° the after-income tax effect of interest and
other financing costs associated with dilutive
potential ordinary shares; and

e the weighted average number of additional
ordinary shares that would have been
outstanding assuming the conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 Financial risk management
3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial

risks: market risk (including foreign exchange rate risk

and interest rate risk], credit risk and liquidity risk. The

Group's overall risk management programme focuses

on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks
to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’'s
financial performance.

(a) Market risk

()

Foreign exchange risk

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk
arising primarily from the transactions in its
Energy business with asset denominated in US
dollar ("USD") and borrowings denominated in
USD and Hong Kong dollar ("HKD"). Foreign
exchange risk arises from future commercial
transactions and recognised assets and
liabilities which are denominated in a currency
that is not the entity’s functional currency.

Certain trade receivables, other receivables,
deposits, cash and cash equivalents, trade
and other payables and borrowings are
denominated in USD and HKD which are also
exposed to foreign exchange risk. Details
of the Group’'s trade and other receivables,
prepayments and deposits, cash and cash
equivalents, trade and other payables and
borrowings denominated in foreign currencies
are disclosed in Notes 10, 11, 15 and 16
respectively.

The Group's certain financial guarantees are
denominated in RMB. For the entity operating
in Kyrgyzstan, most of the transactions are
denominated in their functional currency which
is USD.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR
3 Financial risk management (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(a) Market risk (Continued)

)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2020, if RMB had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against the USD and
HKD respectively with all other variables held
constant, post-tax profit for the year would
have been approximately RMB201,030,000
(2019: RMB208,967,000) higher/lower, mainly
as a result of foreign exchange differences
on translation of USD and HKD denominated
monetary assets and liabilities.

Interest rate risk

The Group has no significant interest-bearing
assets except for cash and cash equivalents
with short maturities. Certain of the Group’s
short-term borrowings at fixed rates expose
the Group to fair value interest-rate risk. Since
all fixed-rate borrowings are current and at
market interest rate, the directors are of the
opinion that the fair value interest-rate risk is
minimal. The Group analyses its interest rate
exposure on a dynamic basis and will consider
the interest rate exposure when enter into any
financing, renewal of existing positions and
alternative financing transactions.

At 31 December 2020, if interest rate had
increased/decreased by 100 basis points with
all other variables held constant, post-tax loss
for the year would have been approximately
RMB3,148,000 (2019: RMB4,610,000) higher/
lower.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 Financial risk management (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) Credit risk

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents,
as well as credit exposures to outstanding trade
receivables, other receivables and deposits. The
carrying amounts of these balances represent the
Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation
to financial assets which are stated as follows:

e B IS R R M R
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2020 2019

—E-EF —E-NF

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARE T ARET T

Trade, other receivables and JE U BR F b fE Uk FRI8 5,091 9,488
deposits (Note 10) K ig & (MEE10)

Cash at banks (Note 11) RITF (M EE11) 15,715 41,389

Maximum exposure to credit risk T & f) £z A1z B & & 20,806 50,877

The Group expects that there is no significant credit
risk associated with cash at banks since they are
deposited with credit worthy financial institutions.
Management does not expect that there will be any
significant losses from non-performance by these
counterparties.

i} Impairment of financial assets

The Group has financial assets that are subject
to the expected credit loss model:

e trade receivables

e  deposits and other receivables

While cash and cash equivalents are also
subject to the impairment requirements of

IFRS 9, the identified impairment loss was
immaterial.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR
3 Financial risk management (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b] Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

Trade receivables

The Group performs impairment assessment
under ECL model on trade receivables
individually or based on provision matrix.
Except for credit-impaired trade receivables,
the remaining trade receivables are grouped
under a provision matrix based on shared
credit risk characteristics.

The expected loss rates are based on the
payment profiles of sales over a period
of 12 months before 31 December 2020,
and the corresponding historical credit
losses experienced within this period. The
historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect
current and forward-looking information on
macroeconomic factors affecting the ability
of the customers to settle the receivables.
The Group has identified forecast economic
conditions to be the most relevant factors, and
accordingly adjusts the historical loss rates
based on expected changes in these factors.

Trade receivables are written off when there
is no reasonable expectation of recovery.
Indicators that there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery include, amongst
others, the failure of a debtor to engage in a
repayment plan with the Group, and a failure
to make contractual payments for a period of
greater than 1 year past due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 Financial risk management (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b] Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

Trade receivables (Continued)

e B IS R R M R

3 BIRERERE w
SAMERBEE @
b] 1= E =B &)

li] 4 B 2 (1)

Movement in the loss allowance in respect of FAEREBRIE B
credit-impaired trade receivables during the TEOEBEBREEH M
year is as follows: e
2020 2019
e —T-NEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR TR AR¥EFTT
Balance at 1 January R—A—BM%&&#% - =
Impairment losses FNTERE R EEE 2,827 —
recognised during the year
Balance at 31 December R+—_A=+—H 2,827 =
B 45 R

For the remaining trade receivables, given the
track record of regular repayment of trade
receivables, the directors are of the opinion
that the risk of default by these customers
is not significant and does not expect any
losses from non-performance by customers.
Therefore, expected credit loss rate of the
remaining trade receivables is assessed to be
close to zero and no provision was made as at 1
January and 31 December 2020.

Other financial assets at amortised cost

For other financial assets at amortised cost,
including deposits and other receivables,
management considers that its credit risk
has not increased significantly since initial
recognition with reference to the counterparty
historical default rate and current financial
position. The impairment provision is
determined based on the 12-month expected
credit losses which is close to zero.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RENBBRME
3 Financial risk management continies 3 BB ERE @

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1, B % & B B & (@)
lc] Liquidity risk lc] HEEZ/ERE

The Group had an operating cash outflow of
RMB9,016,000 (2019: outflow of RMB43,016,000)
during the year ended 31 December 2020. As
at 31 December 2020, the Group had a deficit
of RMB7,899,066,000 (2019: RMB8,563,505,000]
and the Group’s current liabilities exceeded
its current assets by RMB7,423,414,000 (2019:
RMB9,911,528,000). The Group maintained cash
and cash equivalents of RMB16,064,000 (2019:
RMB42,851,000) as at 31 December 2020.

As at 31 December 2020, borrowings of the Group,
amounted to RMB3,392,891,000, out of which
RMB1,365,178,000 were overdue, while borrowings
of the Group amounting to RMB8,618,000 contained
cross-default terms as at 31 December 2020 and
become immediately repayable. Total overdue
interest payables of the Group amounted to
RMB492,486,000. These borrowings are further
explained below:

i) The Group had promissory notes with
an aggregate principal amount of
RMB1,945,592,000 outstanding as at 31
December 2020, out of which approximately
RMB762,863,000, RMB242,106,000 and
RMB45,360,000 had been overdue since 2017,
2018 and 2020 respectively. The remaining
outstanding promissory notes amounting to
RMB8,618,000 became immediately repayable
pursuant to the cross-default terms under the
relevant loan agreement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b L
BEERERE @

1. EREBREE @
lc] 7EE B (&)

3 Financial risk management (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
[c] Liguidity risk (Continued)

il The Group had bank borrowing of
RMB314,849,000, which was overdue in
accordance with the repayment date of the
agreement as at 31 December 2020.

The above conditions indicate the existence of
material uncertainties which may cast significant
doubt about the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern. In view of such circumstances,
the directors of the Company have, during the
period and up to the date of the approval of
these consolidated financial statements, taken
the following measures to mitigate the liquidity
pressure and to improve the financial position of the
Group, to refinance its operation and to restructure
its debts:

i) The Group has been actively negotiating
with the relevant banks and lenders of the
Disposal Group to release or discharge
the Relevant Guarantees. Since the date of
disposal until 31 December 2020, guarantees
of RMB2,210,636,000 were discharged while
RMB4,545,132,000 are expected to be released
in year 2021.

il The Group is also maintaining its relationship
with the banks and the lenders of the Disposal
Group so that no action will be taken by

il RZZEE-_ZETF+_-H
=t+t—B AEBH
BRTERARE
314,849,0007T © & ¥ #
FREZRAHC A -

Hil AR KA GE G AL
BHBELCERNELEERN
REFTEEATHEEMLE - &
RERER  ARBEER
HARBE ERE TR
RAMBERIMATER - A
AR RENVEEE ) - W E AR
SEBHARR  REHEE

BETHEREREMAER:

) O AEB-—EHEEREMR
BIRITREHEEENE
RABER » LA R BR ok 7
PRABEEEER - BHEZ
HEE-_ZT-_FF+=
)E] :+ —H:' B2 ﬁ# |3/3.R ﬁg
R A R #2,210,636,000
T BER T —
FHMmBERARYE
4,545,132,0007T °

i) AREE IR ERTT
K& %IW%%AM
AR AERKRETSE

them to demand immediate repayment of its FEITB) ZEKANERE &2
outstanding borrowings under the Relevant HERRETHRER
Guarantees. B o

i) The Group has also been actively negotiating
with the banks and lenders regarding the
borrowings of RMB2,260,441,000 to take the
following actions:

i) ANEET—EEGRE
A R #2,260,441,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RS R R M R

3 Financial risk management (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
[c] Liguidity risk (Continued)

i) (Continued)

(a)

(b)

As at 31 December 2020, the outstanding
promissory notes amounting to
RMB1,006,600,000 were not extended
nor repaid upon the schedule repayment
dates and thus became overdue and
RMB8,618,000 became immediately
repayable pursuant to the cross-
default terms under the relevant loan
agreements. The Company is in the
process of negotiating with these
promissory note holders for further
arrangements, including the extension of
maturity dates and obtaining waiver from
the lender for the due payment pursuant
to the relevant cross-default terms.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had
bank borrowing of RMB314,849,000 which
was overdue. The Group is in the process
of negotiating with the relevant bank for
extension of repayment and renewal of
such borrowing.

iv]  During the year ended 31 December 2020,
the Group obtained unsecured and interest-
free loans from an entity controlled by a
close family member of Mr. Zhang Zhi Rong
amounting to RMB360,140,000, which will be
due for repayment in December 2022.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B IS R R M R

R EE @

3 Financial risk management (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
[c] Liguidity risk (Continued)

V)

vi)

As at 31 December 2020, the Group has
drawn down USD119,708,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB781,297,000 in total
from the loan agreement, provided by an
entity controlled by Mr. Zhang Zhi Rong,
who agreed to provide a loan facility up to
USD250,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB1,631,675,000) to the Group for the
funding of the oilfield operations of the
Energy Business. The carrying amount is
RMB719,927,000 and it is repayable between
December 2021 to December 2022.

The Group has focused on its operations
in development of the energy exploration
and production segment. During the period,
a number of wells were developed in the
Republic of Kyrgyzstan ("Kyrgyzstan”) and
management expects to realise an increase
of oil output through further development and
expansion of this segment, thereby generate
steady operating cash flows.

As of 31 December 2020, the Group has
drawn down RMB9,100,000 from the loan
agreement provided by an entity controlled
by a close family member of Mr. Zhang Zhi
Rong, who agreed to provide a loan facility up
to RMB40,000,000 to the Group for the funding
in respect of the energy exploration and
production segment.

1. B #& R B R & )
lc) 7 E& 2 E M E)

v)

vi)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RS R R M R

3 Financial risk management (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
[c] Liguidity risk (Continued)

3 BIEERERE @w
3N KA EE @
lc) 7 E& 2 E M E)

vil  (Continued) vl (8&)
In addition, the Group also entered into a Co- o BEZZT—NF
operative Framework Agreement during TZA=1+—HIEFE -
the year ended 31 December 2018 with an REETTE-BBILE
independent third party who agreed to provide ZHENEEESER
materials for the exploration and production B RBUE=SRAE
of crude oil with an aggregate amount up to RERBHERREEM
USD500,000,000, in exchange for an option #} 48 58 1= %2500,000,000
to purchase up to 70% of the total crude oil ETARBRAIRT 5
produced by the Group at 92% to 95% of the 18 1892% £95% i B 7
market price as a form of repayment until all SERMREERAER
the liabilities are repaid. Such facility has not Z70%H) EREIE R B &
been utilised up to 31 December 2020. WA BEEEEMRB
BE-BEEZT-ETF
TZA=t+—BILFE -
WEEPAZEE -
Repayable on
demand/less Between More than
Group A&E than 1year 1and2years 2 years Total
BEX
EBR/ 5" —EZME REN E st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREBTE ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR
At31December2020 ~ WZT-ZTF
+-A=+—-A
Borrowings B 1943569 1,449,322 - 3392891
Financial quarantee BBERED 4,545,132 - - 4,545,132
contracts
Trade and other payables & 5 3% [ H f FE £+ 942,597 - - 942,597
excluding contract FEAEANE
liabilities and other tax &R At ST TEA H
related payables I IE R FRE)
At31 December 2019 R-B—AF
+ZA=+-H
Borrowings 3% 2,979,784 1,035,076 = 4,014,860
Financial guarantee RBEEREN 6,545,144 - - 6,545,144
contracts
Trade and other payables J& i & 5% [k H i FE {7 761,196 = = 761,196

excluding contract RETBREENE
liabilities and other tax R Ef B EEH
related payables f N FE)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b L
3 EREEREw

3N KA EE @
lc) 7 E& 2 E M E)

3 Financial risk management (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
[c] Liguidity risk (Continued)

Maturity Analysis — borrowings based on scheduled
repayments

Certain borrowings contain a repayment on demand
clause which can be exercised at the bank’s sole
discretion. Taking into account the Group's situation,
arrangement and the transaction as described in
Note 2.1(b), the directors do not consider that it is
probable that the banks will exercise their discretion
to immediate repayment. The analysis below
shows the cash outflows based on the scheduled
repayment. The amount includes interest payments
computed using contractual rates. The directors
believe that such borrowings will be repaid in

BRI A 7T — At B H
Bz &%

HETERMERTA2HE
BB 1T iR BESRE B IR -
REBASEZBR - B8
Ko T B 5 2.1(b) o AT ) 2t B9 52
2 EERR/BRITTIAARE
STEERARERZBIE
o LTI iZsr 81 EFKA
HPIRBREREE - BHAS
BEREAAHNNEFAEZH
BENR-BEFEHE ARAE
REERBEERBHAEZ

accordance with the scheduled repayment dates set SrElE R HEER -

out in the loan agreements.

Less than Between More than

Tyear 1and?2years 2 years Total

—FR —EMF MEE &t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR

At 31 December 2020 RZE-TF 2,436,055 1,449,322 - 3,885,377
+=ZA=+-A

At 31 December 2019 RZE-NF 2,979,784 1,035,076 - 4,014,860
+ZR=+-AH
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e B RS R R M R

3 Financial risk management (continued)
3.2 Capital management

3 KRERERE w
32EREMEE

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The capital structure of the Group consists of
shareholders’ equity. Capital is managed so as to
maximise the return to shareholders while maintaining
a capital base to allow the Group to operate effectively in
the marketplace and sustain future development of the
business. This ratio is calculated as total liabilities divided
by total assets.

The Group’s total liabilities and total assets positions and
debt-asset ratio at 31 December 2020 and 2019 were as
follows:

AEBEEAEENBEDRER
SERELLENES  NEBES
P SR B2 44 10 3R 3 7% EL At ) 25 4E B
TREAN G AERRENE
REBLBIEE KA

REFXRABEAER A5H
AREEABRINTRRNORES
BoRRREREOEARN - BITHK
M EEEAHRET

AEENEARBERRERRE
7 oo BART B R B3| &
RELEFERAERAE AR H
RRAET S LAERRERFTELE
TRREBER - ZLETIEE
BRBERIAEELRTE -

REBR-_ZE-_FEER_FT—H
F+-_A=Z+—HWAGBRBERX
EEBERAUNBEREELL
B

2020 2019

=25 —T-NF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T ARETFTT

Total liabilities mEE 8,904,999 10,912,489
Total assets REE 1,005,933 2,348,984
Debt-asset ratio BEEEELX 8.85 4.65

3.3 Fair value estimation

The director consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at
amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B IS R R M R

Critical accounting estimates, L BBRETEE BRER

assumptions and judgement

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are addressed below.

4.1 Critical accounting estimates
(a) Going concern

The Group prepares cash flow projections that cover
a period of not less than twelve months from 31
December 2020. Taking into account the plans and
measures as described in Note 2.1(b], the Group
will have sufficient working capital to finance its
operations and to meet its financial obligations
as and when they fall due within the next twelve
months from the date of the statement of financial
position. The consolidated financial statements is
prepared on a going concern basis.

Significant uncertainties exist as to whether
management of the Company will be able to achieve
its plans and measures as described in Note 2.1(b).
Whether the Group will be able to continue as a
going concern would depend upon the Group's
ability to generate adequate financing and operating
cash flows through the successful fulfilment of the
plans as described in Note 2.1(b).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RS R R M R

4 Critical accounting estimates,
assumptions and judgement
(Continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates (Continued)
[b] Impairment of non-financial assets

[c]

The Group follows the guidance of IAS 36
“Impairment of Assets” to determine when assets
are impaired, which requires significant judgment.
In making this judgment, the Group evaluates,
among other factors, the duration and extent to
which the recoverable amount of assets is less than
their carrying balance, including factors such as the
industry performance and changes in operational
and financing cash flows. For the purpose of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at
the lowest level for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (@ CGU). The recoverable
amount of the CGU has been determined based on
value-in-use calculations or fair value less cost to
sell, whichever is higher. These calculations require
the use of estimates, including operating results,
income and expenses of the business, future
economic conditions on growth rates and future
returns. Significant changes in the key assumptions
on which the recoverable amount of the assets
is based could significantly affect the Group’s
financial position and results of operations. Based
on management’s assessment, total impairment
charge of RMB1,157,185,000 was recognised in
the Co-operation Rights, and property, plant and
equipment during the year ended 31 December 2020
respectively (2019: Nil). Details of which have been
disclosed in Notes 6 and 7.

Useful lives and residual values of
property, plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated
useful lives, and related depreciation expense for
its property, plant and equipment. This estimate
is based on the historical experience of the actual
useful lives of property, plant and equipment of
similar nature and functions. Management will
increase the depreciation expense where useful
lives are less than previously estimated lives. It will
write-off or write-down technically obsolete or non-
strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.
Actual economic lives may differ from estimated
useful lives. Periodic review could result in a change
in depreciable lives and therefore depreciation
expense in future periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B IS R R M R

L BREETHEE BERR
H) )

L1 BRERE AT @
(d) BlIEGAr 15 # R i Ak 7 18

4 Critical accounting estimates,
assumptions and judgement
(Continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates (Continued)
[d) Current income tax and deferred tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There
are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. The
Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit
issues based on estimates of whether additional
taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of
these matters is different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the current and deferred income tax assets and
liabilities in the period in which such determination
Is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain
temporary differences and tax losses are
recognised when management considers it is likely
that future taxable profits will be available against
which the temporary differences or tax losses can
be utilised. When the expectations are different from
the original estimates, such differences will impact
the recognition of deferred income tax assets and
income tax charges in the period in which such
estimates have been changed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RS R R M R

4 Critical accounting estimates,
assumptions and judgement
(Continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates (Continued)
le) Estimation of oil reserves

L BREETHEE BERR
H) )

L1 BRERE AT @
le] AHFEZERI1EET

Estimation of oil reserves is a key element in the
Group's investment decision-making process in
energy exploration and production segment. It is
also an important element in testing for impairment.
Changes in proved oil reserves, particularly
proved developed reserves, will affect unit-of-
production depreciation, depletion and amortisation
recorded in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements for property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets related to oil production activities.
A reduction in proved developed reserves will
increase depreciation, depletion and amortisation
charges. Proved reserve estimates are subject
to revision, either upward or downward, based
on new information, such as from drilling and
production activities or from changes in economic
factors, including product prices, contract terms or
development plans.

[f] Recognition of financial guarantees

The Group makes estimate on costs required to
fulfil the relevant obligation of guarantee contracts
when the guaranteed amount is claimed by the
counterparty to the guarantee. Such estimation is
based on the available information as at reporting
date and is determined by the Group’s practical
experience, the default history, the collateral held
and financial position of guaranteed assessed on
an individual basis in the industry and taking into
consideration of industry information and market
data.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Segment information

Management has determined the operating segments based
on the reports reviewed by the chief operating decision-maker
that are used to make strategic decisions. These reports are
prepared on the same basis as these consolidated financial
statements.

The chief operating decision-maker is identified as the
Executive Directors of the Company. The Executive Directors
consider the business from both a geographic and product
perspective. The shipbuilding, offshore engineering,
engineering machinery and marine engine building segments
(the "Disposal Group’] were disposed in 2019. The result of
Disposal Group are presented as discontinued operations. The
discontinued operations derives its revenue primarily from the
construction of vessels, the construction of vessels for marine
projects, manufacturing of excavators and crawler cranes
and building marine engines. The energy exploration and
production segment derives its revenue from sales of crude
oil, key commodities and products handled and traded. The
Executive Directors assess the performance of the reportable
segments based on a measure of revenue and gross profit.
The segment information provided to the Executive Directors
for the reportable segments for the years ended 31 December
2019 and 2020 is as follows:

e B IS R R M R

W E R

EEERBEHEIBZERRERN
ERAERBRENRSEETLLER
B ZERENREZEFRAMHR
RERMEERH -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RS R R M R

5 Segment information (continued)

5 IEER @

Discontinued operation Continued operation
BALXH RESERR
Energy exploration and
The Disposal Group production Sub-total
HERE ERORRLE gt
Year ended 31 December ~ Year ended 31 December ~ Year ended 31 December

Total

a3

Year ended 31 December

HETCAST-HLEE BET-ASt-BLEE BET-ASt-BLEE BET-AST-ALER

2020 2019 2020 019 2020 019 2020 019
ZEIEE TN CBCBE CE-NF CZBCBE CT-NF ZBIRE ENE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARET:R
Revenue &
— Revenue from sales of crude oil -REFRBEEN KR - - 22,000 41747 22,000 41747 22,000 41747
~ Revenue from trading -REXSHKE - - 12,800 - 12,800 = 12,800 =
— Revenue from sales of excavators -REERBEENNE - 15,360 - - - - - 15,360
Segment revenue Rk E - 15,360 34,800 §1767 34,800 417467 34,800 63,107
Segment results mR%E - 12508 (6,427) 13067 (6,627) 13067 (6,627) Bk
Selling and marketing expenses HERTERERY - - (14] 2399 (14) 2393
General and administrative expenses —RRIOTBRZ = [39809) (68473) (62399 (48473 (412268)
Provision for impairments of property, plantand  #1% - BER R E R ERE
equipment - - (296,559 - (296,559) -
Provision for impairments of intangible assets & ZERERE - - (864,374) — (864,374 =
Otherincome Ehls - 11,704 - = - 11,70
Other (losses)/gains & - 295,510 16,393 40) 16,393 25470
Net gain on disposal - 916,012 - - - 916,012
Finance costs — net - [&12927) (35592)  [3224%9) (35,5920 (735368
Change in provision for financial quarantee IBERANZBERY
contracts 2,000,011 13333 - - 2,000,011 13333
Profit/[lss before income tax REEHANE/ (BR) 2,000,011 i8m (1205068) (374204 764965 112067
Seqment asefs fAREE - S 2 WIS 0% W9 230
Unallocated AR - = = = 7990 0992 7990 25992
Tota assets 84E - SR I S ME% 059N 2389
Segment liabilities ek - - I R0 33k W70 32 170
Unallocated R - - - - 8EN3T 052779 8531387 10524779
Tota labltes 85 - S U0 B9 09I BIAIN 1091240
Other segment disclosures: EpRBRE:
Depreciation nE - 73,804 18,165 23,080 18,165 23,080 18,165 96,884
Amortisation B - 19.481 1,966 2500 1,966 250 1,966 2001
Additions to non-current assets REFRBEE - = 13,743 39459 13,743 39,459 13,743 39,459
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Segment information (continuea)

During the year ended 31 December 2020, revenue from
the top customer of the energy exploration and production
segment amounted to RMB6,228,000 (2019: RMB10,121,000),
representing 17.9% (2019: 21.2%) of the total revenue.

There are three individual customers contributed more than
10% revenue of the Group’'s revenue for the year ended 31
December 2020 (2019: 3 individual customers). The revenue
of these customers during the year are RMB6,228,000,
RMB4,973,000 and RMB4,404,000 (2019: RMB10,121,000,
RMB?9,372,000 and RMB8,790,000) respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, revenue from
the top customer of the shipbuilding segment, excluding
cancellation of construction contracts, amounted to
RMB15,360,000, representing 100% of the total revenue from
discontinued operations excluding revenue related to the
cancellation of the construction contracts.

e B IS R R M R

M ER @
BHE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HI1t%F
E-RBRERIFEREERBORA
BRIk a5 E ARE6,228000L (=
—NF: AR %10,121,0007T) © 1R 42Uk
wmMI179% (ZF—NF : 21.2%) °

HE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HI1tF
B ZRA2ENEF(ZE—NLF =4
BERIEF) BERMAEE W BIBI0% -
FAZEREFERMUESAABARE
6,228,0007T ~ A R #4,973,0007T & A
R¥4,404000c(ZE—NF: 935
A R #10,121,0007T + A R #9,372,000
7T N A R #8,790,0007T) °

HE-E—NAF+-_A=+—HILHF
ErRBEMRBENERAERPHAK
HETEERERESANEARE
15,360,0007C * fHE R IE ¥ B RN =
(TEEEEREREEGNNKE)D
100%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RS R R M R

5 Segment information (continued) 5 RRER @
Geographically, management considers the operations of mRmME  BEEERREM  &F
shipbuilding, offshore engineering, engineering machinery IR IREMERBHNIREREER
and marine engine building segments are all located in the BRRPBEER - Mg R KRR EE
PRC while the energy exploration and production segment R AR ER T RFE - kA
is located in Kyrgyzstan and PRC, with revenue derived from BETRME  KIBRIEEFPHFTE R
different geographical locations, which is determined by the KETE -

country in which the customer is located.

The Group’s revenue is analysed as follows: REBHKRZITAT
2020 2019
— —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T AR¥EFTT
Continuing operations RFEREEY
Kyrgyzstan LR 22,000 47,747
PRC s 12,800 —
Discontinued operations ERIEEB
PRC ii — 15,360
Geographically, total assets and capital expenditures are REmMS  BEEREARZAFEY
allocated based on where the assets are located. REEMEMNEDE -
Non-current assets (excluding intangible assets) are analysed ERBEE(TBEELEE) DTN
as follows: N
2020 2019
—R_®EF —T-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARB T AR¥EFTT
Kyrgyzstan HREH 258,315 597,514
Hong Kong BB 68 103
PRC i 530 752
258,913 598,369
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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6 "% MENRE

6 Property, plant and equipment

Construction 0il Computer Office Motor
in progress properties equipment equipment vehicles Total
ERIR b2y Lk ERRAE BoRE Ef st
RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  AREBTT  ARETR  AREFR  ARETRT  ARETR
Yearended 31 December 2020  HBE-E-%%
TZAZT-ALEE
Opening net hook amount ENERFE 187,290 408,409 225 512 1,933 598,369
Additions AE 550 13,186 - 7 - 13,743
Disposals hE - (405 - - (1,103) (1,508)
Transfer E2 (20,250 20,250 - - - -
Depreciation [Note 1) fE(MES) - (17,520) (8) (299) (344) (18,165)
Impairment loss (Note 7) AEERERET) (84,741) (211,818) - - - (296,559)
Exchange difference EHZE 10,700) (26,223) - - (44) (36,967)
Closing net book amount EXEMTAE 12,149 185,879 N7 226 442 258,913
At31 December 2020 RZBZE8E
tZA=t-8
Cost or valuation AA GG 158,184 508,003 309 1,233 1,220 668,949
Accumulated depreciation and ZHTERREER
impairment loss (86,035 (322,124) (92) (1,007) (778) (410,036)
Net book amount BEFE 12149 185,879 u7 26 42 258,913
Year ended 31 December 2019 HE-Z-AE
TZAZt-HLEE
Opening net hook amount ENERFE 326,676 41945 03 513 1,085 748,012
Additions RE 34,69 383 b 115 1010 39,659
Disposals HE (149.395) (432 ) - - (15 836)
Transfer g2 (26,088) 26,08 - - - -
Depreciation (Note 18] HrE(HEe) - (22,659) t] (226) (18¢) (23,080)
Impairment loss [Note) EBEN) (1,381) (17904) - - - (19.289)
Exchange difference Eiz2 2786 5005 14 50 % 789
Closing net book amount EXEREE 187.290 108409 0 512 1933 598,369
At 31 December 2019 RZE-E
tZA=1-H
Cost or valuation KA fE 188,671 511,559 309 1226 2418 704,181
Accumulated depreciation and ZTERAESS
impairment loss (1,381) (103,150] (84) (714) (483) (105,812)
Net book amount ERFE 187290 408,409 pAky 512 1933 598,369
Note: Pt -

Impairment loss mainly arises from the impairment of certain oil properties in

energy exploration segment.

REBBEIERAERVERRDETARE
EHRE -
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6 Property, plant and equipment 6 ¥ -BMERZHE @

(Continued)

Depreciation of the Group's property, plant and equipment has AEECHRBOME  BERZEIT
been recognised as follows: EnT:

2020 2019

—BEHF —ZE-NF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T T AR¥ETTT

Cost of sales & AN 17,872 22,659

General and administrative — M RATH A X 293 421

expenses

Charged to profit or loss FFAE = 18,165 23,080
Please refer to Note 7 for the impairment assessment AR RLEERROYE - K
associated with the property, plant and equipment of the ER#E ERAEHEEEERE
energy exploration and production segment, together with the B &) 2 BENRFL2HMET -

related intangible assets of the Cooperation Rights.
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- /\

7 Intangible assets 7 BREEE
Co-operation
Rights
a1ERE
RMB'000
ARBF T

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE-ZE-Z2F
tZRA=1+—-HLFE

Opening net book amount HYREFEE 1,686,779
Amortisation (Note 18] # 54 (Bt 3E18) (1,966)
Provision of impairment (note) (B B (BT 51) (864,374)
Exchange differences ERER (105,682)
Closing net book amount Hi R BR % (B 714,757

At 31 December 2020 R-Z2-2%+-A=+—H
Cost DN 1,592,845
Accumulated depreciation and impairment losses 2 5+ 37 & & J & & 18 (878,088)
Net book amount AR EFE 714,757

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HEZZT-IF
T-A=+t—HILFE

Opening net book amount H Y BREDF B 1,668,765
Amortisation (Note 18] 58 (M 5E18) (2,520
Provision of impairment (note] AR ACIED) S
Exchange differences EHER 20,534
Closing net book amount HREREFE 1,686,779

At 31 December 2019 R-ZF-NF+=-A=+—H
Cost BN 1,699,373
Accumulated depreciation and impairment losses  Z2FH#T & R IBEE B (12,594)
Net book amount FREDFE 1,686,779
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7 Intangible assets (continued

7 BEEEw

The intangible assets represent rights to cooperate with the
national oil company of Kyrgyzstan in the operation of the five
oil fields zones ("Co-operation Rights’]. The Co-operation
Rights are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
any impairment losses. As at 31 December 2020, 63 wells
(2019: 57 wells) were at production. As a result, amortisation
of RMB1,966,000 has been charged to profit or loss during the
year (2019: RMB2,520,000) based on the units-of production
method.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group entered
into a loan agreement with a related party who agreed to
provide a loan facility up to RMB40,000,000 to the Group for
the funding in respect of the energy exploration and production
segment. As at 31 December 2020, the Group has drawn down
RMB9,100,000 for exploration and drilling wells.

In addition, the Group also entered into Co-operative
Framework Agreement with an independent third party who
agreed to provide materials for the exploration and production
of crude oil with an aggregate amount up to USD500,000,000,
in exchange for an option to purchase up to 70% of the total
crude oil produced by the Group at 92% to 95% of the market
price as a form of repayment until all the liabilities are repaid.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, due to the
significant decline in crude oil price and continuing low
global oil prices, the management performed impairment
assessments on oil properties and construction-in-progress
and the Cooperation Rights relating to the energy exploration
and production segment, representing an individual
cash generating unit ("CGU"] in accordance with IAS 36
“Impairment of Assets”. The recoverable amount of a CGU
is determined based on the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal or value-in-use calculations. These calculations use
pretax (2019: same) cash flow forecast covering a period from
year 2021 to year 2058 based on production plan for wells
within the operating periods granted under the Co-operation
Rights.

CHINA HUARONG ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Intangible assets (continued)

The directors of the Company have engaged an independent
valuer, Valtech Valuation Advisory Limited ("Valtech”], to
determine the recoverable amount of the CGU. Valtech and
its professional valuers in charge of this valuation have
appropriate qualifications and relevant experiences in various
valuation assignments involving financial instruments. The
professional valuers of Valtech involved in this valuation
include professional members of the Society of Petroleum
Engineers and Chartered Professional Engineers with over 20
years of experience in the petroleum industry, in relation to the
technical assessment of reservoir and evaluation oil and gas
projects.

In valuing the oil assets, Valtech has followed the Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standard. When appropriate, Valtech also
made cross reference to the International Valuation Standards
laid down by the International Valuation Standards Council.

The estimate of the recoverable amount of the CGU was
determined based on a value-in-use calculation, using a
discounted cash flow ("DCF") model, which requires various
parameters and inputs, among which the projection of
amount and timing of future capital expenditures to enable
the exploration and development of new oil production wells
is a critical input. This projection, nonetheless, hinges on the
overall financial position of the Company.

After careful consideration, the management decided to use
conservative parameters and inputs in the projection of the
amount and timing of the capital expenditures to be invested
in the energy exploration and production operation, due to the
following reasons:

e Qil prices fell dramatically in the early stages of COVID-19
and have only partially regained pre-pandemic price
levels. Global oil prices and demand, despite some
recovery in late 2020, are expected to stabilize below pre-
pandemic levels over the next years.

o Partially due to the distraction and stagnation caused by
COVID-19, the discharge of the Financial Guarantee and
reinstallation of the financial creditability of the Company
have been prolonged significantly.

As a result, in working out the valuation, the management
assumed that no further capital expenditure shall be invested
in the energy exploration and production operation until 2024.
Accordingly, the energy exploration and production operation
will be relying on its own production and cash flow to sustain
its operation over the next three years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RS R R M R

7 Intangible assets (continued) 7 BEEE w

Among other things, the management also scrutinized other
assumptions and updated them where appropriate, including
crude oil price of USD35-55 per barrel (31 December 2019:
USD48-65 per barrel) and a discount rate of 11.33% (31
December 2019: 11.5%).

As a result of the above assessment, the recoverable amount
of the CGU falls significantly below its carrying value,
and the Group has recognised a total impairment loss of
RMB1,157,185,000 in the energy exploration and production
operation, of which RMB864,374,000 was allocated to the
Co-operation Rights and RMB292,811,000 was allocated to
property, plant and equipment proportionally in accordance to
IAS 36.

Financial instruments by category

The following is an analysis of financial instruments by

goh - ERENEHNEMEREZAL H
HETEENEY  BRERRHERA
HFEIEHET(ZE—NFE+=A
=+ —H: 3482 65%E L) BHIEEK
A1133% (—E—hE+=-_f=+—1:
11.5%) °

EBLEUEFFNER ReELE
MR ESEARTNEK  EREE
HE AEEERERIEREEE
%R B B 1B 85 A R #1,157,185,000
JC - H i A R#864,374,000T B A R
#5292,811,0007T 1R 4% B BX & 51 2 Al 58
SGRILLLBI DRI N EEEAELER R
WE - BEREE -

BRERE Sz EBMTA

UATRZENEI D 2B T RO

category:
Total
ot
RMB’000
AR¥ET R
Financial assets as per consolidated GEUBERRERNEREE
statement of financial position
As at 31 December 2020 R-EB-ZEF+=ZHA=+-—H
Financial assets of amortised cost NE#HEK AT ENESREE
Trade receivables (Note 10(a)) JiE I BR 5R (B 3E10(a)) 1,005
Other receivables and deposits HEihEWRIE MR e 4,086
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 11) RekBEEY =N 16,064
Total HEt 21,155
Total
BT
RMB'000
ARETFTT
As at 31 December 2019 R=-ZB-AE+=A=+—H
Financial assets of amortised cost N AT ENSREE
Trade receivables (Note 10(a)) J7& Uk BR 2k (B 5E10(a)) 2,777
Other receivables and deposits Hfth & R IE R iR € 6,711
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 11) RekBEEW(MEN) 42,851
Total Et 52,339
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B IS R R M R

8 Financial instruments by category 8 Z¥EFIE|ozERmIT A

(Continued) (&)
Total
wEt
RMB’000
ARBF T
Liabilities as per consolidated statement of HEMBRRARN
financial position =R
As at 31 December 2020 N-_BE_2HE
+=B=+-—H
Trade and other payables excluding contract J& <F B 3k K% EL b & A< K 942,597
liabilities and other tax-related payables (TBEEeBaERE fﬂ i
i A ) FE T R IE)
Borrowings (Note 16) & R (M 5E16) 3,392,891
Financial guarantee contracts IS ERE L 4,545,132
Total st 8,880,620
As at 31 December 2019 R=ZB—-NL%F
+ A=t+—H
Trade and other payables excluding contract JE A<t B 3Kk % EL b & < R IR 761,196
liabilities and other tax-related payables (TeEEehaEREMmE
i 8 ) FE T R IR)
Borrowings (Note 16) & (M 3E16) 3,594,543
Financial guarantee contracts B EREH 6,545,144
Total st 10,900,883
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e B RS R R M R

9 Inventories 9 F8
2020 2019
=225 —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBT T
Finished goods X S 818 1,717

BE_Z_ZF+_-_A=+—8I1t%F
B BERAEAIRFAHEERAH
FEKAAEARE07300T(ZF
—NF: AR #9,628,0007T) °

10 BULRRSX - Bt FEWURK
R FANRIERES

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included in
cost of sales amounted to RMB16,073,000 for the year ended
31 December 2020 (2019: RMB9,628,000).

10 Trade receivables, other
receivables, prepayments and
deposits
(a) Trade receivables

(a) FE U Bk =K

31 December

+t=A=t—-H
2020 2019
- —TNF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T ARET T
Trade receivables & U BR 3R 3,832 2,777
Less: loss allowance B BT 1E (2,827) —
1,005 2,777

The Group normally grants credit terms to its customers
up to 30 days to 90 days. The ageing analysis of the trade
receivables, net of loss allowance, based on invoice date

AEE-—RAFTFREKZ0K
EORMEED - ENERAH
B FE WBR S (RN BR B 1R B ) O BR

is as follows: AT
2020 2019
—BEF —ET-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®B T AR¥EFTT
0 to 30 days 0230k - 384
31 to 60 days RIEXFN 171 657
61 to 90 days 61E90K _ 51
Over 90 days #8890k 834 1,685
1,005 2,777

The Group does not hold any collateral as security.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B IS R R M R

10 FEULARFR - ELfth BULSR

10 Trade receivables, other
receivables, prepayments and
deposits (continued)

(a)

(b)

Trade receivables (Continued)

The carrying amounts of trade receivables approximate
their fair values. The maximum exposure to credit risk at
the reporting date is the fair value of RMB1,005,000 (2019:
RMB2,777,000).

The carrying amounts of trade receivables are
denominated in USD and RMB.

Other receivables, prepayments and
deposits

H-FANFERES

(%)

(a)

(b)

& Wt BR R ()

JEWER XM REERE QA AER
A -REAH SAEERR
AENRQ A E A ARE1,005000
T(ZZE—NF: AR#?2777000
JL) °

R R SR SR B DA TR AR
e -

Hi B RIR - RN RE
k#&E

31 December

+t=A=+-—H
2020 2019
i —T-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%FT ARET T
Other receivables H fth B 5118
- Third parties —%=h 4,086 6,711
Value-added tax receivable B UG IE E TR 8,554 5,162
Prepayments — others TEN RIE— HA
— Third parties — %=k 1,736 4,618
14,376 16,491

The carrying amounts of other receivables approximate
their fair values.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting
date is the fair value of each class of receivable and
deposit mentioned above.

HiEUGREMREERE QR
EHRE -

RBEEMERNRAEERR
R/LERBEBEREFKBARZEOR
B -
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e B RS R R M R

10 Trade receivables, other

receivables, prepayments and

deposits (continued)

(b) Other receivables, prepayments and

deposits (Continued)

The carrying amounts of other receivables, prepayments
and deposits are denominated in the following

10 FEULARFR - ELfth BULSR
H-FANFERES

(%)

(b) HftbBUYRIE - R

k€ m

Hibh Y IE - AR FRERES
MEREEA T E¥ETE:

currencies:
31 December

+=A=+—8
2020 2019
—E-_EF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARE T ARET T
RMB AR 741 2,816
HKD BT 12 18
UsD ETT 10,934 8,145
KGS = 2,689 5,512
14,376 16,491

11 Cash and cash equivalents 1M BERREEEY
31 December

t=A=+—-H
2020 2019
—F=-%F —ENF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®FT ARET T
Cash on hand FERS 349 1,462
Cash at banks RITER 15,715 41,389
Total cash and cash equivalents RekBaEBYER 16,064 42,857
Maximum exposure to credit risk T & A & A5 B & B 15,715 41,389
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e B IS R R M R

11 Cash and cash equivalents continvess 11 RERBREZEEY @

Cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the following ReEMREEEWMUTINEEE:
currencies:

31 December

+=ZBA=+—H
2020 2019
—RCRF —E-AF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR¥EFTT
RMB AR 10,581 4,229
usD e 2,247 38,466
HKD BT 1,892 107
Others H A 1,344 49
16,064 42,851
Cash at banks and short-term bank deposits are placed in RITHERREHARITERERRE
major financial institutions located in Hong Kong, the PRC, BomE RANMEREBRT AR
Australia and Kyrgyzstan where there is no history of default. BemgE HIMEREL -
The remittance of funds out of the PRC is subject to the rules 1% & & [ B 78 38 <7 o B AT AR
and regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by ZONEE SR B RIEH o

the PRC government.
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12 Ordinary shares, preference

EER  BrRERA

shares and share premium B
Equivalent
Equivalent Nominal nominal
Nominal nominal ~ Number of value of value of
Number of value of valueof  convertible  convertible  convertible
ordinary ordinary ordinary  preference  preference  preference Share
shares shares shares shares shares shares premium Total
LEREE 8% TEE TERELR
ERR¥E EEREE SBR EAiRER BLREE @EZER  ROEE st
HKD RMB000 HKD RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000
BT ARETR BT ARETT ARETT ARETR
Authorised: EE:
Ordinarysharesof ~ RZF-NER
HKDOSeachatdl  —E=FF+-R
December2019and  =+—HERAE
2000 0SBTREARE 4770491507  2,385,245,753 - - - - - -
Convertible preference R=ZF-AER
sharesof HKDO5 ~ —F=FF+2A
eachat 31 =+-REkEAE
December 2019and 05 LRI E#
2020 [note b 5% R (B ztb) - - - 7006000000 3503,000,000 - - -
Issued: EEOR
Ordinary sharesof ~ R=E—NE—-f—
HKDO.5 each at BEREENSE
1 January 2019 THERR 4116371507 2,058,185,753 1,737,050 7,006,000,000  3503,000,000 3,100,000 83453712 13182422
Conversion of RETARES
convertble bonds (i a)
Note a] 654,120,000 327,060,000 284 484 - - - 29233 137
Ordinarysharesof ~ RZF-NER
HKDO.5 each at ZRCRETCR
3 December 019 =T—RAGRERE
and 2020 0SBETMERR 4TI0491507 2385245753 2021536 7,006,000,000  3,503,000,000 3,100,000 8374606 13496139

CHINA HUARONG ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
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12 Ordinary share, preference share
and share premium (continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the holders of convertible
bonds converted balances of HKD327,060,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB284,484,000) into ordinary shares.

In December 2018, the Company issued a total of the 7,006,000,000
convertible preference shares with nominal value of HKDO0.50 each,
amounting to HKD3,503,000,000 (equivalent to RMB3,100,000,000)
to a bank creditor to settle bank borrowings and interests totaling
RMB3,100,000,000. The 7,006,000,000 convertible preference
shares consisted of three classes, 2,330,000,000 of class A shares,
2,330,000,000 of class B shares and 2,346,000,000 of class C shares.
Ordinary shares converted from convertible preference shares can be
transferred without restriction, while the ordinary shares converted
from class B and class C convertible preference shares will be subject to
a lock-up period of six and twelve months, respectively.

Holders of the convertible preference shares are not entitled to the right
to vote at any general meeting of the Company, yet they have the right
to attend such meetings. They have the rights to receive any dividends
pari passu to the holders of ordinary shares on the basis of the number
of shares converted. Except for the mentioned, each Convertible
Preference Share shall have the same rights as each of the Ordinary
Shares.

As at 31 December 2019 and 2020, no convertible preference shares had
been converted into ordinary shares.

e B HRRNE
12 LER - BERRRS

mE @
P 5 -

& REBE=FT-NF+-A=+—ALFE"
A RES A A K FE327,060,000% T
(FRE RO ARM284,484,0007T) i A
BAR o

b) MZZE—NE+=F  ARFCHRITERE
AE1TA ££7,006,000,0008% & 3% E E0.5078
JLHIR] B3R (B S AR - 48 %8 43,503,000,000
(& ® A R #3,100,000,0007T)
LNEMFRITERRANBEEARKE
3,100,000,0007T ° #%7,006,000,000% 7] & {2
Bk =% R 48 A - B12,330,000,000
f% A48 % 15 - 2,330,000,000/% B 48 A% 15 &
2,346,000,0008% C 48 A& 1 o 85 #2 v 85 (8
ERMLBRAUTEEERS  MEBEK
CENEREARERNLEBRSAE AR
BAM+-—EANEEL -

AE R E LR A ABEERARBMEMK
RREERER HREEHREFEZEZRE -
WEARZBEARRNEE  BEBER
HEAZEREMUKEBEMERS - B E
wES - EUBBRELERERLTARTE
FIEREF -

RZE-NGFRZFE-ZZTF+A=+—
B @Erf@RE@itREnstag-
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e BRRHME
13 Share-based payment — Group

and Company
(a) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

13 AR B ERE N —
KERAF
(a) B R BE B BT A AR 5

Pursuant to a written resolution of the Shareholders
dated 24 October 2010, selected employees were granted
a total share options of 62,500,000 shares [the “Pre-IPO
Share Options”) under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
(the “"Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”). The exercise
price per share under the Pre-IPO Share Options
shall be equal to a 50% discount to the Offer Price (i.e.
HKD4 per share, the exercise price of the outstanding
share options granted has been adjusted to HKD20 per
consolidated share of HK0.50 each with effect from 29
March 2016). Each of the Pre-IPO Share Options has
a 10-year exercisable period, from 19 November 2010
("Old Grant Date’), and ending on the expiration of the
tenth anniversary of the date of acceptance of the grant
of options, on 26 October 2020. As at 31 December 2020,
the number of outstanding share options granted has
been adjusted for the effect of share consolidation and no
share options were vested and exercisable (31 December
2019: 75,000 share options) after the share consolidation
adjustment. The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme has
expired during the year ended 31 December 2020.

Commencing from the date on which trading in the
shares of the Company first commenced on the Main
Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, being 19
November 2010 (“Listing Date”], the expiry of first,
second, third, and fourth anniversaries of the Listing
Date, the relevant grantee may exercise options up
to 20%, 40%, 60%, 80% and 100% respectively. No
additional share options were granted pursuant to the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme during the year.
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gl
RIEREA-—ZT—ZTF+A T
HHYBREREERFZER  FEES
BERTFERAFREERERES
S ((ERAEREANBRESTS D)
TH T4 $£62,500,000% f&% 17 & B8 A%
E(ERXAHBREAERE]D -
BRAAABRENEREETSR
B 19D B9 17 (50 (B 82 3% & (B 37 :850%
(ERLET(BEZE—RNEF=
AZthBRERHMERITHER
FENTEEE AR ASEREAE
A0S0 TR A HHIR D208 7T) -
BHER A AARERBERELSE
+EFEY A TE-—TFE+—
A+hB(ERHAH)) B =R
FEEREETRATEZEER -
B2 -_FTF+HA-+"BH-»
—E-FEE+-A=+—H &
DA HARER - RITHEBERE
FEIWHEHFEMBARERIL
EERECBBRITECE
—h&E+=BA=+—H:750001
BB aA A ERERE
HEERBE_ZE-_ZEF+_-A
Zt+—BULHFERER -

HARRIRMDBARAREBEHR
FrEREEZA(LHEEA] A
—E-ZTF+—A+hA)-EtW
BE— F- F=kFNA
FEMERD  BEAR ARSI
1715 BB AR M Ay B %20% ~ 40% »
60%  80% K 100% ° F AT & 1R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B IS R R M R
13 IR B ERRN —

EEKRAT @w
(a) BXAHEEERES

13 Share-based payment — Group
and Company (continued)
(a) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The fair value of the share options granted on 24 October
2010, determined using the binominal model (the
“Model”), ranging from HKD4.38 to HKD5.17 per option.
The significant inputs into the Model were the share price
of HKDS8 at the Listing Date, exercise price shown above,
expected dividend vyield rate of 1.32%, risk-free rate of
2.09%, an expected option life of ten years and expected
volatility of 55.0%. The volatility measured is based

gl
RZE—ZTEF+AZTHEAED
MEREOAABENRB=-ER
BEX(ERXDETE  SHERE
NF4.38B T ES17HETT o B H
BLEBERN LT HABORE
8T « LaifT(E(E - TEEIREK
= %1.32% ~ R R FE2.09% -
TEHEREFRTFRBEHK

1855.0% ° K 18 Jh 1R & 48 & KA 1
continuously compounded rates of return on the share EBHAILE R ARIRENFEE
prices of comparable companies with similar business ANEHENTHFERERZT

operations. = e

on the average annualised standard deviations of the

RTEEREHENEFH N EA
RATTREEWT

Movements in the number of share options outstanding
and their related exercise prices are as follows:

Average exercise
price in HKD per  Number of share

share options

BRET
FI9ITHEE BREYE
(thousands)
(F1%)
At 1 January 2019 RZE-NF—H—H 20 3,650
Lapsed [ 20 (2,775)
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NF+ZA=+—H 20 875
At 1 January 2020 RZEZZEF—H—H 20 875
Lapsed B 20 (875)

At 31 December 2020
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e BRRHME
13 Share-based payment — Group

and Company (continued)
(b) Share Option Scheme

13 LRI AERNZT —
EERAT @
(b) BERRRESTE

The Company conditionally approved and adopted a
share option scheme on 24 October 2010 (the “Share
Option Scheme”). The Share Option Scheme became
unconditional on 19 November 2010 when the Company’s
shares were listed on the Main Board of the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange.

Pursuant to the written resolutions of the Directors
dated 30 April 2012, selected employees were granted
a total of 348,580,000 share options under the Share
Option Scheme. The exercise price per share under
the Share Option Scheme is HKD1.94 per share of
HKDO0.10 each (the exercise price of the outstanding
share options granted has been adjusted to HKD9.70 per
consolidated share of HKDO0.50 each with effect from
29 March 2016). No share option is exercisable prior to
the first anniversary of 30 April 2012 (the "New Grant
Date”). On each of the first, second, third, fourth and
fifth anniversaries of the New Grant Date, a further 20%
of the share options granted to the selected employees
may be exercised, provided that no share option shall be
exercised after 30 April 2022. As at 31 December 2020,
the number of outstanding share options granted has
been adjusted for the effect of share consolidation and
16,800,000 share options were vested and exercisable (31
December 2019: 16,800,000 share options) after the share
consolidation adjustment.

The fair value of the share options granted on 30 April
2012, determined using the Model, ranged from HKDO0.63
to HKDO.64 per option. The significant inputs into the
Model were the share price of HKD1.94 at the New
Grant Date, the exercise price shown above, expected
dividend yield rate of 4.66%, risk-free rate of 1.14%, an
expected option life of 10 years and expected volatility of
54.50%. The volatility measured is based on the average
annualised standard deviations of the continuously
compounded rates of return on the share prices of
comparable companies with similar business operations.
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BERHRA-_ZET——FEMWA=1+
HNEESZEMrREER BFRE
BEERTHERESTEBETAHL
348,580,00017 & A 4% - BB AR 5T
SETHERTEEASREAE
010 TR MIUET(BE
—AE=ZAZthBEEERE®
RITEERENTEEZDHAEAR
FIXEE.S0E T & HFAZ 15 9.70
BIL) c R—ZE——FMNA=1+H
((FREBBDRE—BFA
BEBERER FITE - AR
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HEXBHEHTEMAERE
16,800,000 B AR #E B 55 /8 AT 1T
F(ZE—-NF+=ZA=1+—8:
16,800,00017 B& A% #E) ©

RIE——FMA=+HRENE
PRENAERAEXEE
B EBREN T0.637% T £0.64
B - RAMEZL2HBIERHT
O HEARRE1.948 T « FalirT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B IS R R M R

13 Share-based payment — Group 13 ARG AERNZNT —

and Company (continued) SBERAT @
(b) Share Option Scheme (Continued) (b) &R #ESTE(®)

Average exercise
price in HKD per Number of share

share options
BRET

FIPITHEE BREYE

(thousands)

(F1%)

At 1 January 2019 R-ZZE—NEFE—H—H 9.70 29,048

Lapsed B R 9.70 (12,248)

At 31 December 2019 R_F-NF+-_A=+—H 9.70 16,800

At 1 January 2020 R-ZE-_EF—H—H 9.70 16,800

Lapsed B 9.70 -

At 31 December 2020 RZE-_ZEF+-_A=+—H 9.70 16,800
During the year ended 31 December 2020, no expense BHE_ZT-_FEF+_-_H=+—H
was recognised in the consolidated statement of IEFE TERGEETERRK
comprehensive income for share options granted to FHETEEREEBRERR
directors and employees (2019: Nil]. No expense is AT (ZE—NF 8\  WEHRS
recognised for the Pre-IPO Share Scheme (2019: Nil) or RARBEEmERESE(ZE
Share Option Scheme (2019: Nil]. The Group has no legal —NF E)LBERESE(ZE
or constructive obligations to repurchase or settle the —NF EBERARX - AEET
options in cash. BEFTHIHEEEEARSERL

REEBRE -
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14 Other reserves

14 Hit{#E

Financial asset
atfair value
throughother ~ Share based
Capital  comprehensive payment Statutory Translation
reserve  income reserve reserve reserve reserve Total
BRAAEHA
Af2AkE NRRBER
EXfE RENIREE  OXARE HERE EXGE it
RMB000 RMB1000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTL  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
At 1 January 2019 R=E-nE-A-H 2462930 (8,756) 518,92 498,854 172702 304672
Release of other reserve upon disposal of discontinued 1A iH & B & 1 £ 755
operation BEAMES 462930) = (538234 (498,854 = B500018]
Financial aset at fair value through other BAAERALRZ
comprehensive income ARENERERE - 2618 S = = 2618
Transfer of fair value through other comprehensive 31 E 8 B AT A 2
income to accumulated losses upon disposal h2ERENLS
EZZHBR - 140 - - - b0
Exchange difference on translation of foreign HEFNEENES
operations EE - - - - 0346 2034
Lapse of employee share EEERELN
options - - (22609 - - (22409)
At31 December 2019 R-F-n%
L - - 18099 - 193048 A7
At T January 2020 RIFZRE-R-H = = 18099 = 193048 JAIR
Exchange difference on translation of foreign REBNEENER
operations 2% - - - - (102612 (102612
Lapse of employee share EEEREXN
oplions - - (5,336] = - (5.336]
At31 December 2020 W_F2RE
+-A=t-H - - 12763 - 90436 103199
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e B IS R R M R

15 Trade and other payables

18

15 B MR A AER

31 December

+t=-A=+—H
2020 2019
—E-SE —E—NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBF T
Trade payables JE -1 BR 5K 262,493 276,829
Other payables Hfh fE < 5k 1B
— Third parties —%=75 91,877 81,507
— Related parties [Note 30) — B 77 (Bt 5130) 42,706 30,866
Contract liabilities BHAaE — 63
Accrued expenses FEETRX
— Payroll and welfare -~ TERBH 23,807 21,606
— Interest —FME 492,486 322,367
— Custodian fee —-EEE 26,521 26,096
— Others — Hit 15,915 7,127
Other tax-related payables H th B 75 48 B FE < 5K 1A 11,171 6,341
Total trade and other payables 42 P AR 3R & H b FE S R IB 966,976 772,802
At 31 December 2020 and 2019, the ageing analysis of the T_ETEERZF-NEFETZA

trade payables based on invoice date were as follows:

VEREC AT T

T—H REZERES>NEMNEE
)

31 December

+t=HA=+—H

2020 2019
—2-%F —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T ARETFTT
0-30 days 0ZE 30K 2,081 28
31-60 days 312 60K —_ 1
61-90 days L1E90K —_ 14
Over 90 days 90K £ 260,412 276,786
262,493 276,829
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e B RS R R M R

15 Trade and other payables wcontinvea 15 FE{FBRFR 2 EL A FEAS X

18 (@)
The carrying amount of trade and other payables are FERTRR 3R K Bt JE AT SR IBH) BRE (B T
denominated in the following currencies: A3 ' FIME
31 December
+=HA=+-—H
2020 2019
- —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR AR¥EFTT
RMB AR 22,201 110,551
usD E7T 389,732 375,210
HKD BT 555,043 287,041
966,976 772,802
. H xH
16 Borrowings 16 B
31 December
+t=A=t+—H
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR¥EFTT
Non-current 3k BN &
Other borrowings H At 18 5K 532,267 937,125
Promissory notes AR 917,055 =
1,449,322 937,125
Current BN HA
Bank borrowings H|ITE R 314,849 461,243
Promissory notes A E R 1,028,537 2,140,289
Other borrowings H b & 5K 600,183 55,886
1,943,569 2,657,418
Total borrowings (EE k-] 3,392,891 3,594,543
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16 BorrOWingS (Continued)

Borrowings amounting to RMB2,262,072,000 as at 31
December 2020 (2019: RMB2,601,532,000) were secured
by guarantee from a director of the Company, certain
shareholders of the Company and the related parties and
share capital of certain related parties.

As at 31 December 2020, borrowings of the Group amounted
to RMB3,392,891,000, out of which RMB1,365,178,000
were overdue, while borrowings of the Group amounting
to RMB8,618,000 contained cross-default terms as at
31 December 2020 and became immediately repayable.
Total overdue interest payables of the Group amounted to
RMB492,486,000. As at the date of the approval of these
consolidated financial statements, the Group has not obtained
waivers to comply with these cross-default terms from the
relevant lenders; nor have these lenders taken any action
against the Group to demand immediate repayment.

The Group’s borrowings are repayable as follows:

e B IS R R M R

16 B @)

R-ZE-_TF+_A=+—"H X
A R #2262,072,000c (ZZF — L&
A R #2601,532,0007T) B AR A — %
BE - ARRETRE XTI H#
RIPEIR - DA RCE T B 7 M0 AR AN 4K
e

R-ZE-_TF+_A=+—H £H&H
E R A A R3,392,891,0005T » HA&
AR #1,365,178,0007 B8 H - NEH
RZZEZZEFF+_A=+T—HHNERK
FEARBESLSI0THIERERX
BHOGER BN AEE  AKEEHR
B e A B 4258 B A R 492,486,000
Lo RZEFRAUBEHRERES LB
B AEEMKRESHEBRERAEST
BURNENERZAR ZSER
AT S A EEFBE AT ER
BI{E &8 F A -

REBREREHENT

31 December

+=A=+-8
2020 2019

. A

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR® TR AR¥EFTT

Within 1 year —FR 1,943,569 2,657,418
Between 1 and 2 years —ZE -4 1,449,322 937,125
3,392,891 3,594,543

The Group's borrowings repayable based on the scheduled
repayment dates is the same as the above table.

The carrying amounts of the non-current borrowings
approximate their fair values.

25 B 18 R AR SRR R R AT 8@ B H
Hje FRMR -

FAOHREFRNEEAEEE QR REM

= o
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e B RS R R M R

16 Borrowings (continued! 16 B @

The carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated in BHRHOEREEABEANTE®.E:
the following currencies:

31 December

+=A=+—H
2020 2019
=225 A
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR AR¥EFTT
RMB AR 12,573 28,446
HKD BT 2,444,281 2,567,815
usD ETT 936,037 998,282
3,392,891 3,594,543
The exposure of the Group’s borrowings to interest-rate AEEEBEFEENANEEZHRENE
changes and the contractual repricing dates are as follows: EBEBERERAT :

31 December

+=—BA=+—8
2020 2019
—E_EF —E—NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARE T ARETFTT
6 months or less ~NEA%EZA 1,363,547 2,610,615
6-12 months NE+ A 580,022 46,803
1-5 years —ZRHE 1,449,322 937,125
3,392,891 3,594,543
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16 BorrOWingS (Continued)

The Group has the following undrawn borrowing facilities:

e B IS R R M R

16 B @)
AREAEU TR RN B

31 December

+=ZA=+-—H
2020 2019
RMB 000 RMB’000
AR TR AR¥EFTT
Expiring within one year —F RN EH - 30,900
Expiring beyond one year —F1E B 881,275 1,157,393
881,275 1,188,293
The effective interest rates and details of borrowings at the RFEEHBRAXBHZERMNER
date of the consolidated statement of financial position are as ERFBUOT:
follows:
31 December
+=A=+-—H
2020 2019
—T=FF —TNF
Bank borrowings RIT & 7.97% 7.97%
Promissory notes AR 7.00% 7.00%
Other borrowings (excluding H b (&3
interest-free loan) (TBRIEEBEER) 5.00% 5.00%
31 December
+=ZA=+-—H
2020 2019
—E-EE —ZT N4
Gross debt — fixed interest rate BB — B E A =X 3,078,042 3,133,300
Gross debt — variable interest rate B4 %8 — /% 8) A X 314,849 461,243
Bank borrowings RITER

Bank borrowings of RMB314,849,000 (2019: RMB461,243,000)
is overdue and immediately repayable.

A R#314,849000c(ZE— R F: A
R #461,243,00070) M IR 1T {5 3R E 81 28
BrESENEE -
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16 BorrOWingS (Continued)

Other borrowings

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16 B @
Hit g™

31 December

t=-RA=t—H
2020 2019
—E-FF = —NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBF T
Loans from an entity controlledbya REREREELHRE 368,793 415,424
close family member of Mr. Zhang #EHIMEENE R
Zhi Rong (Note i) (B &ED
Loan from an entity controlled by R B 5k &5 /& 55 & 15 %1 &9 719,927 530,784
Mr. Zhang Zhi Rong (Note il and i) & 88 8 & 3 (M 531 Xiii)
Loan from a third party (Note iv] REE=HHERME 43,730 46,803
iv)
1,132,450 993,011
Less: Non-current portion L SEBDHA B o (532,267) (937,125)
Current portion of other borrowings £ {& 5k 2 Bl B3 &6 5 600,183 55,886
Notes: Bt -
(i) During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group extended (i) HE_Z-_ZF+_A=+—HILtFE "

unsecured and interest-free loans from an entity controlled by a close
family member of Mr. Zhang Zhi Rong amounting to RMB404,136,000.
The carrying amount is RMB360,140,000 and it is repayable in December
2022.

li)  Asat31 December 2020, the Group has drawn down principal amount of
USD119,708,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB781,297,000) from the
loan agreement, provided by an entity controlled by Mr. Zhang Zhi Rong,
who agreed to provide a loan facility up to USD250,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB1,631,675,000) to the Group for the funding of the
oilfield operations of the energy exploration and production segment.
The carrying amount is RMB719,927,000 and it is repayable between
December 2021 to December 2022.

[iii)  During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group entered into a
loan agreement with an entity controlled by Mr. Zhang Zhi Rong, who
agreed to provide a loan facility up to RMB40,000,000 to the Group for
the funding in respect of the energy exploration and production segment.
As at 31 December 2020, the Group has drawn down principal amount of

RMB?9,100,000 for exploration and drilling of wells.

liv)  During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company has drawn
down USD6,700,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB46,786,000) loan
from an independent third party at 5% per annum and is overdue and

immediately repayable (2019: USD6,700,000).

CHINA HUARONG ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
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(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

AEBRAIREBEEERRE Z 4
NERDSEERR2BER €8 A
A R #404136,000T - EEE A AR
360,140,0007T - R _ZFE=_—_F+=-AE
;ﬁo

RZZEZTF+A=+—H  FEEHK
REREEMEHERBRUEOER D
IRENAS £ 5119,708,000 5T (HHE RO A
R#781,297,00070) - ZEBEREMAEER
12 #t N % 7250,000,0003 7T (B & R4 A
R¥1,631,675000T) M ERRE - AERE
B R BN IR R A E IR R T A i A R 4
B o REEAARKT7199270007T © B
R-ZE-_—F+-AZ-_ZT__%F+—-A
ZHEEE-

Bmaa

= HAL

BE-Z-N\F+-A=+—-BLFE"

AEBEARSETERENNERITLE
R ZERRAEAAKERETZRN
AR¥40,000,000CWERRE - REEH
MEERMRREERRREES - KT
“EE+-RA=+—H XEEERBHR
R EFRRAS 2 HARK,100,0007T e

HE_T-_ZF+_A=+—HILtFE
AARR—EZBLE= T IREONEF }EHX
6,700,000 7t (A8 B R 4 A R 46,786,000

o) ZFERIREN K% E BEE @ H
B S B (= F — AF : 6.700,000%
JT) e



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B IS R R M R

16 BorrOWingS (Continued)

16 B @)

Promissory Notes AHEE
RMB’000
AR¥EFTT
For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE-Z-AF+=-A=+-—H
LEE
Opening amount as at 1 January 2019 RZE-NF—A—BNYE%5E 1,605,163
Addition to discharge principals and interests of % BR AT 2 A% (& % AN & K& F) B 38 0
convertible bonds 510,437
Repayment BN (10,783)
Exchange difference EHER 35,472
Closing amount as at 31 December 2019 R-EBE-AF+_A=+—8W
HIRE R 2,140,289
For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE-_ZE-_Zf+=-A=t+—H
LEE
Opening amount as at 1 January 2020 RZZE-_ZTF-A—-—BHveE 2,140,289
Repayment B (74,268)
Exchange difference EHER (120,429)
Closing amount as at 31 December 2020 N_E_TF+_A=+—0H
HAREE 1,945,592
17 Discontinued operations 17 B4R 1K
(a) Description (a) #ut
On 9 October 2018, the Company entered into a RZZE-NE+ANA KXARE

conditional sale and purchase agreement with the
Purchaser to dispose of the Disposal Group at a
consideration of HKD1. As at 31 December 2018,
assets and liabilities of the Shipbuilding Business were
classified as “Assets classified as held for sale” and
“Liabilities directly associated with assets classified held
for sale” respectively in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

There are certain conditions precedent pursuant to
the Transaction, which included, but not limited to, the
release or discharge of the Relevant Guarantees. The
conditional sale and purchase agreement were approved
by the shareholders of the Company and CPS were
issued in December 2018.

On 10 March 2019, the Group transferred the sale share
of Able Diligent Limited to the Purchaser. The Disposal
Group is classified as discontinued operations in the
period up to the date of disposal. Financial information
relating to the discontinued operations for the period up
to the date of disposal is set out below.

,\i'éiﬁfﬂi*ﬂ‘ﬂ%{#ﬁ’i&ﬁ%i"iﬁ%
CTUREBIBETHELEELER -
mf— —N\E+=ZA=+—H8" &
WEBNEERABBEIHRGE
Eﬂ%iﬂlﬁﬂ%ﬁq“*ﬁﬁf\*ﬁ 25
EHENEE I RIESEARFE
TENEEEERBENARE] -

BEZRZBE TRAMEE B
FEETBR A e Bk ok 7 Bk AR B8 12 (R
MER -  BIRHEEHECER
AR AL E - A EERE AR
BERZTE—NFF+ZAET -

AZE-NEFE=ZA+AH X&EEH
Able Diligent Limited & §5 & J& {7 82
BETER HESEREEHE
HHBHE D EABKIEER -
EEREANMEMNBHEEKIE
EBHHNBMBEREINAT -
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e B RS R R M R

17 Discontinued operations (continued) 17 B ¥ @

(b) Financial performance and cash flow b) HBERERRESREER
information
The financial performance and cash flow information NPT BRARREREE
presented are for the period ended 10 March 2019. HOBZE_Z-NAF=A+HIL
B -
For the period
from 1 January
2019 to
10 March 2019
—T-NEF-A-RE
“Z-NE¥ZRATHLE
B
RMB'000
ARBTT
Revenue I % 15,360
Cost of sales HER AR (2:852)
Gross profit ENE 12,508
Other gains — net Hilz — %8 295,510
Other income Hfth 28 11,704
Expenses Fx (349,869)
Finance costs — net MEKA-FE (412,927)
Loss before income tax WA R AIE R (443,074)
Income tax expense A X .
Loss from discontinued operations REEREEBHNER (443,074)
Fair value gains on a financial asset at fairvalue through AR EF ARG 2ARZNEHE
other comprehensive income ENRAERE 2616
Total comprehensive loss from discontinued operations REERILEBHN2EBRAT (440,458)
Net cash inflow from operation activities BREHRERAEE 19,488
Net cash outflow from investing activities REEBHEMLFE (32,950)
Net cash outflow from financing activities REEDHERLEE (500)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents BeRkReSENRLEE (13,962)
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e B IS R R M R

17 BARLER @
c) HECKRLEEBHKE

17 Discontinued operations (continued)
(c) Gain on disposal of Discontinued

Operations
As at
10 March
2019
R=ZZF-N&F
=AtH
RMB’000
AR¥EFTT
Consideration KRB -
Carrying value of net liabilities of the Disposal ~H&ESE & E FREREAE

Group 23,820,910

Less: Derecognition of non-controlling interest  J&, : #X |F 7 3R 11 & & B 3E 4% IR
of the Disposal Group Eam (617,998

Less: Transfer of amount due to the Disposal B EBREZEEHFZEMNHESE
Group to Purchaser [ I8 (15,877,596)
Less: Transaction costs W R G RAR (1,273)
Gain on disposal HESHEK = 7,324,043

Less: Financial guarantee contracts recognised /& : E RV IFERE D

(noteli)) (B () (6,408,031
Net gain on disposal HEWRFHE 916,012

Note (i]: Financial guarantee contracts were recognised upon the
completion of the disposal as at 10 March 2019. As at 31
December 2019 and the date of the 2019 annual report, the
release of the Relevant Guarantee was not yet completed.
Approximately RMB6,545,144,000, which represented
its fair value, of the Disposal Group’s financial liabilities
remained guaranteed by the Company as of 31 December
2019.

S RIE-AF=A+BHETKKE
RUBEREH - R-FB-NF+
R=+—BR=-ZE-HNFFHAH
FHERNBRERTK - BEZ
E-NF+-A=+—B HEXEEH
MR B EHARK6545144,0007T
(MERARBE)NBEARBER -
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e B RS R R M R

17 Discontinued operations (continued) 17 B ¥ @

(c) Gain on disposal of Discontinued c) HESRILLEKN KRS
Operations (Continued) (%)

HESEREERBR(ZZ—AF

AR ZEEREBEZEREE

The carrying amounts of assets and liabilities of the
Disposal Group as at the date of sale (10 March 2019)

were as follows:

mT

As at

10 March
2019
R=F—N%F
=A+H
RMB’000
AR T T

Financial assets at fair value through other

BARBEFARMBEEK A

comprehensive income SEEE 30,323
Land use right 3 {F AR A 3,425,509
Property, plant and equipment M- BEE&RE 14,962,869
Prepayment for non-current assets FEMBEENTANMNKIEA 143
Inventories 7E 61,660
Trade receivables JE W BR X 4,459
Other receivables, prepayments and deposits ~ HE A EUFRIA ~ TET RIAE R i%

& 3,358,492
Pledged deposits EHEFER 1,771
Cash and cash equivalents RehELEED 38,855
Total assets HEE 21,884,081
Trade and other payables [note) FE AT BR R K2 EL A JE 5 Bk 1B

(Bff =) 30,466,991
Contract liabilities BHAaR 39,236
Borrowings &= 15,198,764
Total liabilities wmEE 45,704,991
Net liabilities of the discontinued operations TCRILEXBEEFEHE (23,820,910)

MaE: BNEFREMENSRARELESE
R AR SEE R RIEARK5877.68 &
ﬁ °

Note: Trade and other payables included amounts due to the Group by
Disposal Group amounting to RMB15,877.6 million.
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e B IS R R M R

18 M E &5 ABAY

18 Expenses by nature

2020 2019
—B-EF —T-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBF T
Amortisation of intangible assets A EE ()
(Note 7) 1,966 2,520
Auditors’ remuneration % BRAD B €
— audit services —ZBRH 2,665 3,084
Major transaction FERSH
— major transaction —FBERH 1,332 —
Bank charges RITWRE 47 86
Consultancy and professional fees BRANEEXER 17,210 10,555
Cost directly associated with ST EEEMRBNHKAR
inventories 16,073 9,628
Depreciation of property, plantand ~ #1 % « 5 & &% & 1 & (M 51 ¢)
equipment (Note 6) 18,165 23,080
Employee benefits expenses & 848 A 5 < (M 7519
(Note 19) 16,298 19,708
Insurance premiums R B 399 695
Other expenses EMH 16,891 10,831
Total cost of sales, selling and HEKA HERKTMBERE
marketing expenses, general and X —MEITHERAX AR
administrative expenses 89,714 80,187

19 BEERFFX (BEE
E5M)

19 Employee benefits expenses
(including directors’ emoluments)

2020 2019

. —E-NF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR TR AR¥EFTT

Salaries and wages HehIE 15,433 17,941
Social security costs e R IE KA 756 912
Contribution to pension plans RIS EI R 109 855
16,298 19,708
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19 Employee benefits expenses
(including directors’ emoluments)

(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest
in the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 are
five directors (2019: Five directors). The emoluments
of the five directors (2019: Five directors) are reflected
in the analysis presented in Note 24. (2019: The
emoluments of the senior management personnel was
approximately RMB4,662,000 including basic salaries,
housing allowances, other allowances and benefit-in-
kind of RMB5,491,000 and contribution to pension plan of
RMB288,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2020, no directors or
the five highest paid individuals received any emoluments
from the Group as an inducement to join, upon joining the
Group, leave the Group or as compensation for loss of
office (2019: Same).

20 Other gains/(losses) — net

19 BEEEABEX: (BEE
EHM) @

(a)

(b)

RS HFMAL
BE-_Z-_2F+=-A=+—H
IHEE AEBRUESFH A
+ARELEE(ZE—NE 1%
BF) mARES(ZE—NEF:
ABER)NNSETI R E242
AP CCE-—NF SHEEA
B & 4 A A R%46620007T -
BREEATE  -EEEHM Hib
AN EY A = A R¥5491,000
TRARBRSFHEHRIARE
288,0007T) °

HE-_ZTZ-TF+=-_A=+—H
IHFE - AEEBEARSIES
AN REH A T INBERER
00 52 ok Bk B 7R Sk ) AR o DA B B
HEAAAREZMEMME (=
T—NF AR -

20 Hftilrzs, ~ (E518) F

B

2020 2019
—E-FF —FTNF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T AR¥ETT
Fair value change on derivative PTETEMAREBEZE -
instruments — embedded REFHBRAXTELR
derivative in convertible bonds — 4,680
Net foreign exchange gains/(losses) SN Ut 2 (&5 18 ) /5 58 (BT 5% 23)
(Note 23) 16,287 (7.379)
Gain on disposal of property, plant ~ HEWHE - BE & &R EHH K=
and equipment 106 2,659
16,393 (40]
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e B IS R R M R

21 A Wam I AR

21 Finance income and costs

2020 2019
—B-EF —T-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARBF T
Finance income: BMEWE:

Interest income from bank deposits R 7777 7% B9 1 B Uk A - 80
Imputed interest income HE M B A 36,641 34,302
SR S N

Finance costs: RS
Interest expenses BRI
— Borrowings —fB% (51,427) (70,687)
— Promissory notes —E R (155,868) (117,973)
— Convertible bonds — AR EFH - (142,833
Net foreign exchange gains/(losses)  #MNE U 7 (&5 18 ) /% B8 (M 7£ 23)
(Note 23) 135,062 (55,454)
Less: borrowing costs capitalised B B R AR - 30,126
(72,233) (356,821)
Finance costs — net B R A (35,592) (322,439)
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e B RS R R M R

22 Income tax

22 g

Income tax expense of RMB8,000 represents provision for EIT
in the PRC during the year.

No Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for the years
ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 as the Group had no
assessable profits in Hong Kong. All PRC subsidiaries and the
Kyrgyzstan subsidiary are subject to EIT rates of 25% and 10%,
respectively.

The tax on the Group's results before tax differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted
average tax rate applicable to results of the consolidated
entities as follows:

PRIS B R X A R#8,0007T REFA R
BEXMEHMERS -

HRASETEERELEERRAD R
A BMREBEEZE_ZEFR_FT—AN
FH_AZ+—HILEFETERES
FEBIEHEE - FTETREKBAR
NE S M B AR A D B #25% &
10%H) ¥R -

7 45 18 55 T AT 2 4 40 B4 8 75 B R AR
R A B 4 A BB B M N T B
EENBHREE MTHR:

2020 2019
—F-FF —FTNF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMT T ARBF T
Loss before income tax b P15 5 Al &5 18 1,235,046 374,204
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates  ¥&2 75 B8 72 & & ) BT 38 F A9 B A
applicable to profit of respective MEFTTEHNIE
companies (126,018) (4,267)
Income not subject to tax HERD M= (32,924) (159)
Expenses not deductible for tax A X
purposes 150,653 14,124
Effect of tax losses not recognised ~ KERRIEEEMNTE 8,297 -
Utilisation of previously BASLAIABRBIEER
unrecognised tax losses - (9,698)
8 _

As at 31 December 2020, the Group has unused tax losses
of approximately RMB560,036,000 (2019: approximately
RMB489,204,000) available for offset against future profits.
No deferred tax has been recognised in respect of such
losses due to unpredictability of future profit streams. The
tax losses in Hong Kong may carry forward indefinitely. The
unrecognized tax losses in the PRC and Kyrgyzstan will expire
from 2021 to 2025.
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RZEBE-ZFEF+_A=+—H8 'K
EEEAAREBEBRHNARE
560,036,000 C(ZE—AEFE  HARKE
489,204,0007T) ] AR 4K 88 R 2R s F) o
FR A AR 2R S I 2RO 2 LA TR ORI - e 4
MZEEEMARENE - SN
HEBAUERBLE - FEEERE
FHRERREBSEBSR-_E-_—F
E-E-_FHERER e
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23 Net foreign exchange gains/
(losses)

The exchange differences (charged)/credited in the profit or
loss are included as follows:

e B IS R R M R

23 glﬁﬁuﬂzé/ (E518) /#

(B FtABRMER ZBMT

2020 2019
—BEF —ET-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR AR¥EFTT
Net foreign exchange gains/(losses) M ARIHNEUR S /(EIE)F58
taken to:
Other gains/(losses) — net Hip iz, (E18) — F88
(Note 20) (Bt 3£ 20) 16,287 (7.379)
Finance costs (Note 21) B & AR (B 5E21) 135,062 (55,454)
151,349 (62,833)

24 Benefits and interest of directors
(a) Directors’ emoluments

The emoluments of every director are set out below:

For the year ended 31 December 2020:

246 ESRE NS
(a) E=FM
SEEBHBMT

BE-_Z-_2F+=-_A=+—H
HEE:

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person's services as a director, whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking

A-2ALEAEEITARLATANELTARINEREADALHE

Emoluments paid
or receivablein
respect of director’s
other services in
connection with
the management
Basic salaries, Employer's  Remunerationspaid ~ of the affairs of
housing allowances, Estimatedmoney  contributiontoa ~ orreceivablein ~the Company or
other allowance and Discretionary value of share based  retirement benefit ~ respect of accepting its subsidiary
Fee benefit-in-kind bonuses payment scheme  office as director undertaking Total
HERALEY
EXIR: ERRATLEY
fEREY SHRf
EREER NRORERN  BAEFGEN REAESEE  AREZRE
¢ RO BIETA LhbfTeREE ExfR  2NIEGME  EBAZE4ME a3t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBTR AR#TR ARBTR AR#TR AR®TR ARBTR AR#TR
00
Executive directors
Chen Qiang (1 1,500 - - 15 1515
Hong Liang 1,000 - - 3 1,087
ZhuWen Hua 1,000 - - [ 1,083
Niu Jianmin i) 1,250 - - i} 128
Independent non-executive directors
Wang JinLian il n
Zhou Zhan 0 i
Lam Cheung Mau 0 il
Total emoluments aMe 960 4750 - - n 5,863
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24 Benefits and interest of directors 24 =EFHRER @

(Continued)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) @ EEHM @
For the year ended 31 December 2019: HE-_ZT-NWF+=-HA=+—H
EFE:
Emoluments paid o receivable n respect of a person's services as a irector, whether of the Company or ts subsidiary undertaking
H-2ArFAEEARRRTRANBRRRRINRBE NARAME
Emoluments paid
orreceivble n
respectof director’s
other services n
connection with
the management
Basic salaries, Employer's Rerunerations ofthe affairs of
housing allowances, Etimatedmoney ~ contributiontoa  paid or receivablein ~ the Company or
ofher allowance and Discretionary  value of share based  retirement benefit  respectof accepting ts subsidiary
Fee henefit-in-kind bonuses payment scheme  office as director undertaking Total
‘ NRhARRG  RREFAHG  AERESEE ;
e il BELL XnkiresRE EIfR  ENAEYME  ENUENED it
RMBO0D RMB00 RMB 00D RMB000 RMB000 RMBO0 RMB000 RMB 000
ARETR ARBTR ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR
il 2E0E
Erecutive directors §88
Chen Qang i RE) - 150 - - 16 - - 1516
Hong Liang 17 - 100 - - 115 - - 110
Wang Tao il T3l - 2 - - 5 - - 4
ZhuWen Hug RXE - 1000 - - 100 - - 1100
Thang Ming il FHlil - 14 - 7
Independent non-executive directors
Wang JinLian 3 - - - - - - 3
ThouZhan 3 - - - - - - 3
Lam Cheung Mau 3 - - - - - - 3
Total emoluments aHe %l 437k - - i - - 5413
Notes: oY AE
(i) Being the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. (i) BARBERBITE °
(i) Niu Jianmin was appointed as executive director on 1 March 2020. i) HBRERZZE-TEF=A—BZ#
RPTES -
(i} Wang Tao and Zhang Ming resigned as executive directors on 10 i) ETHHERPAR=-F-—LF~AT+H

June 2019. BERITESE -
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24 Benefits and interest of directors

(Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e

Directors’ retirement benefits and
termination benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any
retirement benefits or termination benefits during the
year (2019: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for
making available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company
did not pay consideration to any third parties for making
available directors’ services (2019: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans
and other dealings in favour of directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors

There are no loans, quasi-loans and other dealing
arrangements in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and controlled entities with such directors
(2019: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in
transactions, arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts
in relation to the Group’s business to which the Group
was a party and in which a director of the Group had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year (2019:
Nil).

2L ESEN @B RER w

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e

EENWEKRBEARKLE
& #

Py B EE GRS
BRBHRALEAERN(CE
—NE )

MEMEERBEMEE=
TR ZHE
HE-_Z-FTF+=-_A=+—H
IHFE ARRMERIREES
RISMEEME = H 2 HE
(ZE—hF:8\)-

MES - XZEETSEH
MZABRERZESHE
EXRREHNER - &
RREMR ZE

BEANES TRSEELE)
SEINCEYES £ ol £
EHMER  EERREBRS
R (CT—NE )

EEEXRS  RBREE
ZERER
AEEBETYRAEEERE
BomAkEEFAERMER
EEARBAERFRAFNEM
HEBEEZEARS  RHERA
RA(=2—h%F:®)-
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25 Earnings/(loss) per share
(a) Basic earnings/(loss) per share

25 FIREF (EE)
(a) SREXEF (FE)

Basic earnings/(loss) per share is calculated by dividing
the results attributable to equity holders of the Company
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in
issue during the year.

SRERAN(BRNHHES
VY LN EE LN EEE S
S DASE PUE BT B R 0 D0
T -

2020 2019
—E-%F —TNHF
RMB RMB
AR AR
Loss from continuing operations 2R B Ff 48 48 & ¥ 15 &Y
per share BREE (0.10) (0.03)
Earnings from discontinued KEDKIEEBH
operations per share BRAF 017 0.04
Earnings per share R AT 0.07 0.01
(b) Diluted earnings/(loss) per share b) ESRBEER (FE)

Diluted loss from continuing operations per
share

Diluted loss from continuing operations per share for the
years ended 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019
are the same as basic loss for continuing operations per
share as the potential dilutive ordinary shares were not
included in the calculation of diluted loss per share as
their inclusion would be anti-dilutive.

Diluted earnings from discontinued operations
per share

For the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, since
there is loss from continuing operations per share,

no dilutive impact from discontinued operations is
presented.

19g CHINA HUARONG ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
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IR E F 4B A& T T IR
EE B
HE—Z-_Z2F+=-_A=+—H
kRZFE-—NFE+=ZA=+—H1E
FE RBELEEBHNERESE
ERARECEEBERENES
BB THRFAESREEE
BRRFTABTEEL®RGH
ABEEREE) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B IS R R M R

25 Earnings/(loss) per share wcontinues 25 IR BR], (E518) @

(c) Reconciliations of earnings used in ) ANFTESRER, (&
calculating earnings/(loss) per share BINBREER:

2020 2019

i —FNF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR TR ARETT

Basic and diluted earnings/(loss) EREAREBER (EHE)

per share
(Loss)/profit attributable to equity ZNA =) #E x5 B A JE1G
holders of the Company (&8 F 8
— Continuing operations —FREKEED (1,217,412) (378,270
— Discontinued operations —BRIFER 2,000,011 515,590
782,599 137,320
(d) Weighted average number of shares used d) A2 Bz MEFIRG
as the denominator 2B
2020 2019
—BEHF —T-NF
Weighted average number of FR1ED B2 hN#E 115 % @ IR
ordinary shares used as the HEAEGRERAEFT
denominator in calculating basic
earnings per share 11,776,491,507 11,581,911,233
26 Dividends 26 IR 2.
The Board has resolved not to declare for the payment of final EEQDARABRITRERZE_T_ZTF
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil). TZA=FT—RLEFEZRERE(Z
E-NEF\)o
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27 Notes to the consolidated
statement of cash flows

27 AR MEBRM

(a) Cash generated from operations la) KEMBRS
2020 2019
—RCRF —E-AF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR AR¥EFTT
Continuing operations BEKEEK
Loss before income tax RGBSR (1,235,046) (374,204)
Adjustments for: HATRHEELFAE:
— Amortisation of intangible —EBLEEHENTET
assets [Note 7) 1,966 2,520
— Depreciation (Note 6] — T E (W 56 18,165 23,080
— Fair value gain on derivative — TR T ANRAAREW
financial instruments (P 5 20)
(Note 20) —_ (4,680)
— Provision of restoration cost — W18 B AN B 2,774 1333
— Impairment loss on trade — RO EE A
receivables 2,827 —
— Impairment loss on property,  — 1% - BE &
plant and equipment HEREBE 296,559 19,285
— Impairment loss on intangible  — &2 & E R B F5 18
assets 864,374 —
— Imputed interest income — il B R 2 U A (Bt 5 21)
(Note 21) (36,641) (34,302)
— Interest income (Note 21) — ) B A B 5E21) — (80)
— Interest expense (Note 21) — H 25 = (B 5E21) 207,295 356,821
— Gain on disposal of property,  —EWE - BMERZED
plant and equipment e 25 ( BT 5% 20)
(Note 20) (106) (2,659)
— Unrealised exchange gains —REHEN K= (151,349) (6,953)
Changes in working capital: HEESH
— Inventories -FE 899 1,305
— Trade receivables, and other  — J& U BR 3k I H fth & U 3K
receivables, prepayments B ENRERZE
and deposits 1,060 (11,164)
— Trade and other payables — FEA BR AR B HoAh JE AN SR IR 24,650 5,765
Cash used in continuing SEKEEBARS
operations (2,573) (23,933)

20Q CHINAHUARONG ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
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e B IS R R M R

27 FERERERMT @

27 Notes to the consolidated
statement of cash flows (continued)
(b) Net debt reconciliation

Movements in net debt for the year ended 31 December

2019 and 2020:

(b) EHFEYH K

BE_ZE-NFRZZF-_FF+=
A=+ HUIEFEEMNGBEEKFEE

& :
Liabilities from financing
Other assets activities
Hit&E REEHEE
Borrowings
and advances  Borrowings
Cash/bank due within due after
overdraft 1year 1year Total
Be/ -ERIE -F£38
BITEX WERRER HER @t
[Note iii)
(Bt i)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETRT ARETR
Netdebtasat 1 January2019  RZ-Z—NF—-A—HH
ER 9,274 (2,885,793) (754,638)  (3,631,157)
Cash flow BER 33212 109,692 (211,022) (68,118)
Foreign exchange movement INE & E) 365 (40,587] (14,867) (55,089)
Other non-cash movement Hi B8 ()
(Note i) - 159,270 43,402 202,672
Net debt as at 31 December 2019 R-Z—AE+_A
=T -BNEBEHE 42,851 (2,657,418) (937,125)  (3)551,692)
Cash flow Rem (26,242 (220,094) 234,540 (11,796)
Foreign exchange movement 4B 2 (545) 81,307 53,755 134,517
Other non-cash movement HEdRe 2o (K Fil
(Note i) - 837,133 (800,492) 36,641
Net debt as at 31 December 2020 RZFE-ZT &+ A
St-ANERKEE 16,066 (1,959,072)  [(1,449,322)  (3,392,330)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RS R R M R

27 Notes to the consolidated

27 FERERERMT @

statement of cash flows (continued)
(b) Net debt reconciliation (Continued)

Notes:

(i) Other non-cash movements during 2019 mainly include (i) a
decrease of RMB311,203,000 due to the settlement of convertible
bonds by conversion of shares, (ii] an increase of RMB142,833,000
due to the interest amortisation of convertible bonds, [iii) a
decrease of RMB34,302,000 due to imputed interest income of
interest-free loans.

(i) Other non-cash movements during 2020 mainly include (i) a
decrease of RMB36,641,000 due to imputed interest income of
interest-free loans, (il RMB837,133,000 of overdue loan extended
beyond 12 months.

(iii) Included in borrowings and advances of RMB1,959,072,000 was
an amount of advances of RMB15,503,000, which was included
in “Trade and other payables” as at 31 December 2020. The
advances are interest-free and repayable on demand.

28 Financial guarantee contracts

(b) EBFEHER®@

GES

il ZE-NFHEGERSEHEER
FBilEBRBROULEETRRESE
BOR A R #311,203,0007T ¢ (i) AT #2
BEFOFNEEEIIOEMARE
142,833,0007T : (i) B ERWEE
B WA BB DA R#34,302,000

IC °

i) ZF_TFNHEMIFRSEPEE
BE I 2EEXNEENSHBA
HHOE DA RES6,641,0007T; (i) FE
HBAEAZAMERARK
837,133,0007¢ °

i) RZTE=ZTEF+=—A=+—A81E
REBREEHARE959,072,000
TR BETHERRIEMERR
HMEMNREIANBRRAEARE
15,503,000 ° Z B R AR BRI

BRE R -

8 I HEAEHW

2020
—E-F%F

RMB’000
ARBT R

Financial guarantees (Note)

B 75 2 1R (MY o)

4,545,132

4,545,132

Note:

The Group has provided guarantees to certain financial institutions in the
PRC in respect of borrowings of the Disposal Group. Under the financial
guarantee contracts, the Company is required to make payments to the
financial institutions should the Disposal Group default on the borrowing. As at
31 December 2020, the total value of the guaranteed borrowings outstanding
was RMB4,545,132 (31 December 2019: RMB6,545,144,000). Despite the risk of
such guarantee to be exercised by the financial institution considered to be low,
the Group has recognised financial guarantee contracts of RMB4,545,132,000
considered the maximum exposure according to the contractual obligation.
Both the guarantee and provision shall release upon the completion of the
transfer and discharging of the relevant guarantee.

As at 31 December 2020, the change in provision for financial guarantee
contracts of RMB2,000,011,000 (2019: RMB13,333,000)) mainly represents the
accrual of interest expenses on the outstanding guaranteed borrowings of
RMB210,625,000 since the date of disposal and the release of the principal and
accrued interested expenses of a guaranteed borrowing of RMB2,210,636,000.

CHINA HUARONG ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
FEIEKEERIRA AR A E

5

AEEERLESEBZERATEE TS E
BREER REVEERAY  HMEEEE
HBRER  AARARSBEBENR - RZT=
TFEF+_A=+—RH BAERRBEHEERESE
BARLELEINT(ZE—NE+-_A=+—
H: AR®6,545144,0007T) © & B 1% B BT 514 48
TENZSERERAERRE  EA£ER
BECRAEZEKER G BREERERMBER
AHANRY4545132,0007T » EREEEELME
BERNEERMBHRTRETUER -

i THE+-F=+—H BBEREHHN
B EEE A ARM2000,011,000T (ZF—h4E:
AR ¥13,3330000) FEHREBERBRAS
CHERAEEEREBERNENFSHAIARKE
210,625,0007C * A R HE R B R &0 FE &1 F B A X
A R #2.210,636,0007T °




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29 Capital Commitments

There is no capital expenditure committed at the end of each
reporting period but not yet incurred (2019: Nil).

30 Related party transactions

Fine Profit Enterprises Limited (a company incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands) (“Fine Profit”) owned 9.43% of the
issued shares of the Company as at 31 December 2020 (2019
9.43%), before taking into account the additional shares issued
upon conversion of various convertible instruments. Fine
Profit was wholly-owned by Mr. Zhang as at 31 December
2020.

The directors of the Company are of the view that the following
companies were related parties that had transactions or
balances with the Group during the year:

Name

&%

e ERRMEE
29 B

REREMRY BEAEERRELE
MEARAX(ZE—NE 8)-

0REBARS

HHECEAERARREBREZHES
RO ARN(HERN)R=ZZE=F
F+ZA=+—BEBEARRILI%E,
BITRGO(ZE—NF 1 943%) * R&r
MRS ERRIANDEITAE
ORI AT c FRR —_ZE_FF+_A
=+ HEREERLEZEHES -

RARREZEZRRTI AR ARNEANRE
REBETR Sk 2 FB L8 B
5

Relationship with the Group
EAEENBE

Shanghai Ditong Construction [Group] Co., Ltd.
FEBREREEIERA

Fine Profit Limited

Smart Frontier Limited

Crystal Mont Limited
Jiangsu Xu Ming Investment Group Co., Ltd.
IRHBARESEERARA

Jiangsu Rong Tong Marine Mechanicaland Electrical Co., Ltd.

IHRBEIKREERD
Nantong Drawshine Petrochemical Co., Ltd.

HRERABEIAERAR

Shanghai Sunglow Investment (Group) Co., Ltd
EEBAREEB)IBERAR

Zhang Jiping
R AP

New Continental Oil & Gas (HK] Co. Limited
FAEBRR(BEEBR AR

Entity controlled by a shareholder/close family
member of Mr. Zhang

F—ARR/RAERBEHOER

Entity ultimately controlled by Mr. Zhang
RREEHRBREHNE R

Entity controlled by a close family member of Mr.
Zhang
RECERBEHMER

Entity ultimately controlled by Mr. Zhang
REAERREFNER

Entity ultimately controlled by Mr. Zhang
REAERREFNER

Entity ultimately controlled by Mr. Zhang
REAERREFNER

Entity controlled by a shareholder/close family
member of Mr. Zhang

F-2RE/FELRBEHNEE

Entity controlled by a shareholder/close
family member of Mr. Zhang

R—BBRRREERBIEHNES

Director of a subsidiary

MEBARES

Shareholder
A& &
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30 Related party transactions icontinues 30 BEEET X Z @0

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group carried HE_Z-_ZFT+_A=T—HILF
out the following transactions with the related parties: B AEEEBERFTETATRS:
(i) Year-end balances with related parties (i) EEREEESMERGEER
As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the balances are RZBEZZTFRZF-AFT=
interest-free, unsecured and approximate their fair A=+—R ##7Ha s &K
values. All these balances are repayable on demand. HREHEAABESE - FTBE%SE

E
B BARBEREEE -

2020 2019
—®-®F -T-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®BTR ARBT T

Other payables — non-trade HiENFRIEBE-EEHILE
(Note 15): (Bt 5£15) -
— Entities controlled by Mr. —REREER—FZRE,
Zhang or a shareholder/ REARBEGINER
close family members of
Mr. Zhang — 12,899
— Adirector of a subsidiary O EAGTE £ 42,706 17,967
42,706 30,866
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e B IS R R M R

0L RSF @

30 Related party transactions (continued)
(ii) Guarantee by the shareholders and

related parties
As at 31 December 2020, certain borrowings totaling
RMB2,262,072,000 (2019: RMB2,601,532,000) are secured
by certain shareholders and the controlling entities of
certain shareholders.

(iii) Borrowings from a director of a subsidiary

As at 31 December 2020, no security-free and interest-
free borrowings were provided by a director of a
subsidiary (2019: Nil] for working capital purposes.

(iv) Borrowings from related parties

(v)

As at 31 December 2020, certain related parties provided
security-free facilities up to USD250,000,000 (2019:
USD250,000,000), RMB40,000,000 (2019: RMB40,000,000]
(totalling equivalent to approximately RMB1,671,675,000
(2019: RMB1,780,800,000) for use by the Group for
working capital purposes.

Key management compensation

Key management includes directors. Details of key
management compensation are disclosed in Note 24.

li) BRKEBAB S RENER

H &FERAEHEA
2,262,072,000c(ZE — L F : A
R #2,601532,0007C) % T E
REZERERIEM|ER-

(iii) Bff B8 X B 5 A9 & 3K

RZFZFF+ZA=+—8"
i B8 2 B 5 5 30 % JE (A I
REERCT-—AF B)EEL
EEERR

liv) B8 B¢ 75 B9 18 =X

(v)

R-E-_ZTF+-_A=+—8"
ETHEB I REEERRE
& %250,000,000% T(=Z & — A,
F :250,000,000% jT) A R &
40,000,000 (ZE—NF : AR
40,000,000) (B HEEERHAR
#1,671,675,000C(ZFE—NF : A
R #51,780,800,0007T) 7N & B 1E
EEEASHR -

B 52 1 fE 5
MREZEQHES - BuER
B H B 0 R B RO EE 2R R
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31 Particulars of principal N FEMBARFE

subsidiaries
(a) As at 31 December 2020, the Company Q) R=ZF=-FF+=A
has direct and indirect interests in the =+—8 ' FAXFRUTF
following subsidiary: MEBARBEEEEZEKBEE
Place of incorporation/ Date of incorporation/ Principal activitiesand Issued/paid-  Equity interest attributable
Name establishment establishment Type of legal entity place of operation in capital tothe Group
ERAL/ ERAL/ \ BRI/
£H Ry RYBH EERREY IREBREELY HREF AEREERE
2020 019
28285 “T0F
Rongsheng Capital Limited# ~ Cayman Islands 14Jul2010 Limited liability Investment holding; HKD10 100% 100%
N company Hong Kong
RERRERATS RERE “R-ZELATAR BRAR REER 55 107
Ocean Sino Holdings Limited ~ British VirginIslands 18 Jan 2010 Limited liability Investment holding; st 100% 100%
company Hong Kang
LBRLES “E-RE-ATAR BRAF BEER: B 3
Capital Sign International British Virgin Islands 26 Mar 2009 Limited liability Investment holding; st 100% 100%
Limited company Hong Kang
ZERAEE ZEENEZACTA BRAA REER: BB 1T
H
Dragon Courage Investments ~ British VirginIslands 2 Apr 2009 Limited liability Investment holding; st 100% 100%
Limited company Hong Kong
ABRAEE ZRRAERACE  ARAF RABR: R 3
Glory Source Limited Hong Kong 25 Jan 2010 Limited liability Dormant HKD!1 100% 100%
company
RERRAA Bk “R-%% BRAF fELz 187
—-A=t1H
World Profit Corporation Hong Kong 5Feb 2010 Limited liability Dormant HKD!1 100% 100%
Limited company
ENERAR 5 ZT-BTECARR ARAA ez 1T
Radiant Business Global British Virgin Islands 3 Sep 2014 Limited liability Investment holding; st 100% 100%
Limited company Hong Kong
BRRNERLT ZERAEE ZZ-BEARZR  ARAA REER: BB 1T
KeipreiaxepHemTeras Kyrgyzstan 13 Aug 2013 Limited liability Oil and gas exploration KG5100,000 60% 60%
“Kyrgyzjer Neftegaz Limited company and production and
Liability Company” sales of petroleum
. product; Kyrgyzstan
EREHARMRARLT SRTH “2-f\ATZR BRAF FRRRRROARRE FREHES
ENRERER 1000007

HEEREH
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subsidiaries (continued)

(a) As at 31 December 2020, the Company
has direct and indirect interests in the

31 Particulars of principal

31 EEMBABFE @

@) R=B=BE+=5
=+—R KAFRUT

following subsidiary: (Continued) MEBARBEEEEZEKBEE
B
Place of incorporation/  Date of incorporation/ Principal activitiesand Issued/paid-  Equity interest attributable
Name establishment establishment Type of Legal entity place of operation in capital tothe Group
ERAL/ aRAT/ B4/
£8 Ry RIRH AEEERY IREBREELY HRRA AREEERE
2020 2019
“emeE SO
Crown Winner Investment Hong Kong 8 Nov 2013 Limited liability Investment holding; HKD10,000 60% 60%
Limited company Hong Kong
REREERAR &k “2-Ft-ANR BRAF RERR:E% 10,000 7T
Central Point Worldwide Inc. ~ British VirginIslands 19 Jun 2014 Limited liability Investment holding; usp100 60% 60%
company Hong Kang
LERLEE “T-MERATAR BRAF RERR:EA 100% 7T
Huarong Energy Australia Pty Australia 14Nov 2018 Limited liability Investment holding; AUD 1,000 100% 100%
Limited company Ausralia
2l i Syt 3 ERAF RARR: 2N 100087
t-A+EA
Greatest Time Limited British Virgin Islands 28 Sep 2018 Limited liability Investment holding; USDA0,000 100% 100%
company Australia
ABRAES “BNE BRAT RAZR: 2l 5000057
ABZTNB
Xinjiang Huarong Haijia Energy  PRC 4 May2018 Limited liability Oil and gas exploration  USD1,050,000 100% 100%
Co., Ltd company and production and
sales of petroleum
- product; PRC
REREZRRERAT ©H “I-\fTAME  ARAA BBRRRARHER  100000% 7
EENRARERY
£ hE
Archewell Enterprise (HK] Hong Kong 2 02019 Limited liability Commodity trading; HKD!1 100% 100%
Limited ~ company _Hong Kong
SRLERRIBRAR  ER ZEnE ERAF BRRA: ER 17
tAZtzA
Shanghai Huijiu Energy PRC 24 Jun 2019 Limited liability Commodity trading; USD100,000 100% 100%
Technology Limited company China
LEERERMRARLA A ZB-0E BRAT Enl%: rE 100000% 7¢
~RZTEA
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31 Particulars of principal 31 FEMBARFE @
subsidiaries (continued)

(a) As at 31 December 2020, the Company Q) R=ZF=-FF+=A
has direct and indirect interests in the =+—B8 > FX27RUTF
following subsidiary: (Continued) MEBARBEEEEZEKBEE
B
Place of incorporation/  Date of incorporation/ Principal activitiesand Issued/paid-  Equity interest attributable
Name establishment establishment Type of Legal entity place of operation in capital tothe Group
ERAL/ aRAT/ B4/
&% Ik A= EERRRE IERBREELY HRRA FRERERE
2020 2019
ut et = it
Ocean Power International Hong Kong 28Jan 2010 Limited liability Investment holding; HKD! 100% 100%
_ Industrial Limited company Hong Kong
EHEAREZERAT 5 Z3-3% BRAA REER A AT
-A=thR
Ocean China Investments Hong Kong 12Jan 2018 Limited liability Investment holding; HKD1 100% 100%
Limited company Hong Kong
BrhB(ERERAD A ZE-NE-RTZR ARAA RERR: EA 17
Fancy Asia Limited Hong Kong 21 Mar 2018 Limited liability Investment holding; HKD1 100% 100%
company Hong Kong
ERERAT i 0% ERAA RERR: EA 17
ZAZt-H
Shanghai Yunxiang PRC 23 June 2020 Limited liability 0il & Gas Trading RMB5,000,000 100% =
Petrochemical Co, Lid. company ’
LERAREERAT hE Z5-%E BRAA RARXRRES AE®
~AZt=H 50000007
Zhoushan Zhurong PRC 3 July 2020 Limited liability 0il & Gas wholesale and - RMB50,000,000 100% -
Petrochemical Co,, Ltd. company distribution, China
RUBRRERLIERAR S8 ZE-TELAZH BRAZA RARRARBER AE®
AH:H 50,000,0007¢
Nantong Glory Petrochemical ~ PRC 2 November 2020 Limited liability 0il & Gas wholesale and - RMB50,000,000 100% -
Co, Ltd. company distribution, China ’
ERRERMLIARAT HE ZE-TRET-AZR BRAA RARRRRSER AE®
P 50,000,007
# Shares held directly by the Company # RNDBARBEERE
e For identification purpose only * EXE-
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31 Particulars of principal 31 FEMBARFE @
subsidiaries (continued)

(b) Summarised financial information on a (b) EEE KFEERERRIM
subsidiary with material non-controlling BARINHBERBE
interests
li) Kyrgyzjer Neftegaz Limited Liability il ZEEZHAERRER

Company AY-T|
Summarised statement of financial position MR RRE
2020 2019
—g-®F —T-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR AR®ET T

Current Vi)

Assets BE 19,371 22,776
Liabilities af& (2,446,280) (2,572,331)
Net current liabilities mE B EFE (2,426,909) (2,549,555
Non-current ERB

Assets BE 985,485 2,283,064
Liabilities Bf& _ _
Net non-current assets SEMENE EIFH 985,485 2,283,064
Net liabilities BfEFE (1,441,424) (266,491)

The information above is the amount before inter- Lt BRI AR HEEHAH
company eliminations. k-0
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e BRRHME
32 Statement of financial position

and reserve movement of the
Company

32 ARV AR LR K
EEEE

Statement of financial position of the Company RN T HY B AR R R
As at 31 December
R+=—A=+—H
2020 2019
i —FNF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T ARBEF T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RERARWIEE 510,508 1,514,410
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables and prepayments i i U 5018 & T8 1+ 5k 1B 992 501
Amounts due from subsidiaries N NGIE @] 452 141,221
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEY 1,774 35,238
3,218 176,960
Total assets BHEE 513,726 1,691,370
DEFICIT &5 A
Capital and reserves attributableto AA T ERFHAEMN
the Company’s equity holders EXRFEE
Ordinary shares T R 2,021,534 2,021,534
Convertible preference shares AERE LR 3,100,000 3,100,000
Share premium % 13 % B 8,374,605 8,374,605
Other reserves (Note a) H th 1 18 (M 5% a) 12,763 18,099
Accumulated losses (Note a) 2 ETE 1B (T 5F a) (21,439,420) (22,270,682)
Total deficit 48 A (7,930,518) (8,756,444)
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32 Statement of financial position
and reserve movement of the

Company (continued)

Statement of financial position of the Company
(Continued)

e B IS R R M R

32 AATRI AR R TR K
REEZE @

QT B 7 AR R R @)

As at 31 December

R+=—BA=+—H”
2020 2019
—F-FF —FTNF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARE T ARET T
LIABILITIES =
Non-current liabilities knBERE
Borrowings EEN 1,089,182 521,701
Current liabilities nEBEE
Other payables H At JE 5K IE 559,337 383,952
Amounts due to subsidiaries & 1 B B8 2 B 5RO 315,678 348,698
Borrowings B 1,934,915 2,648,319
Financial guarantee contracts BHEREH 4,545,132 6,545,144
Current liabilities REBEE 7,355,062 9,926,113
Total liabilities wmeE 8,444,244, 10,447,814
Total deficit and liabilities HEAREE 513,726 1,691,370

The Company’s statement of financial position was approved
by the Board of Directors on 26 March 2021 and signed on its
behalf by

ARBHWPBERAREEETSRN
R -F=A -+ A#ETL
HINIATRERESTEESE

Chen Qiang
PR 3@

Director

EF

Hong Liang
Director

EF
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32 Statement of financial position 32 RATRIMI AR R T R

and reserve movement of the HEEE w
Company (continued)
Statement of financial position of the Company RN 8] B9 B 7 AR R 3R (@)
(Continued)
Note (a) Bt % (a)
Other reserves
H %
Capital Share-based Accumulated
reserve payment Total losses Total
URGHRER
ERFE EXRFE mat RZitE#A et
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTRT ARETRT AR®BTT ARBTRE ARETE

At 1 January 2019 R=ZZT—NF—HA—H 33 342,333 342,366 (15,836,917) (15,494,551
Loss and total AFEEEBEBER
comprehensive loss THEBERE
for the year — = = (6,758,032) (6,758,032)
Release of other reserves H fth % 85 8 1 (33) (324,234) (324,267) 324,267 —
At 31 December 2019 RZE-N#F
+=—A=+—8 o 18,099 18,099 (22,270,682) (22,252,583)
Profit and total N E R R
comprehensive income 2 TH W % B EE
for the year — - — 825,926 825,926
Lapse of employee share EEBRBELN
options = (5,336) (5.336) 5,336 —
At 31 December 2020 R-ZT_FF
+=—A=+—8 — 12,763 12,763 (21,439,420) (21,426,657)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33 Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2020, we had contingent liabilities of
RMB895.0 million (as at 31 December 2019: RMB853.7
million), which was resulted from financial guarantees
provided by the Company to Disposal Group.

34 Subsequent event

On 22 January 2021, the Group completed the Acquisition of
50.46% equity interest in Nantong Zhuosheng Petrochemical
Co., Ltd. All the conditions precedent as set out in the
Acquisition Agreement have been fulfilled on the same
date. The Directors consider that the Acquisition can lay a
foundation for the Group to develop a vertically-integrated
business model for its participation in the energy sector in the
long run. The Acquisition will result in potential synergy with
the Group’s newly established oil and gas trading business,
by securing a stable and reliable storage of oil as part of the
supply chain of the Group at competitive price, improving
operational efficiency and saving costs of the Group as a
whole. In this connection, the Acquisition shall lay a solid
foundation and create a positive operating condition for the
Group’s long-term development of oil and gas business.

We are currently in the process of finalizing the accounting
for the Acquisition and expect to complete our preliminary
allocation of the purchase consideration to the assets acquired
and liabilities assumed by the end of the second quarter of
2021.

As at the date of this report, the Company has successfully
extended the maturity date of the Facility entered with a
shareholder of the Company, to 31 December 2023.

e B IS R R M R

I3HAREE

R-Z-ZTEHE+-A=+—8 #M
EXARBEARESSAE TR
E-NF+=-A=+—H: AR¥S8537
BEL) WIHARARRRLEER
RETIEERTER -

34 HiR=E1E

RZBEZ—F—A=+=H £EEZE
R R e R Al TA R AFS0.46%
BEMNKEEE WEBREREMA
ERIEHERBERERK - EERAE
WEEBEEAAEBRBALHEHEERE
BEREEEAEBEAETER -
WHERBEARNKBE K ZLNBER
BOXBEEBRTENHRME  UA
BRFINERBREBT RSN H
RUEARAEBEHREREN —ILD)  #
MiEm AL BB L EREL LK
Ao A WESEHAAEEBR
EXHRPBEETCRENERIT A
ERITHEEIEMY -

RMEMEERRZKBEEN
BE UEERA-E-—FE-5E
R HMERBEERENSHET
BEMEERFARBNEE -

RAHKEBE KRR EAQA—F
BEITVABREINHAEXRDERES
ZEZ=F+ZHA=+—H-
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
FFEHE

Consolidated results

mEXEE
Year ended 31 December
BEt-A=t-HLEE
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
“EZEF  ZTNE “E-NE ZE—t§ ZE-RE
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETT AR®TT ARETT ARETR
[Restated)
(&751)
Revenue KA 34,800 47,747 48,956 45,207* (4,118,791)
Gross (loss)/profit E(BR)/7E (6,427) 13,067 14,929 10,729* (4,586,648)
Operating (loss)/profit g (BR) /B (1,199,454) (51,765) 579,222 (870,464)* (1,172,801)
Total comprehensive EE2EKE/
income/(loss) for theyear (5 18) 664,439 134,906 (195,720) (2,028,226) (3,567,527)
Continuing Operations FEREEY (1,335,572) 575,364 2,287,442 (1,024,278)
Discontinued Operations B & IF %% 2,000,011 (440,458 2,483,162) (1,003,948)
Attributable to: BER:
Equity holders of the KRAEERHAA
Company 679,987 160,282 (74,521) (1977,658) (3,454,849)
Non-controlling interests ~ 3E 12 i ## 25 (15,548) (25,376) (121,199) (50,568) (112,678)

Consolidated assets and liabilities

REEEHSE

As at 31 December

R+=ZA=+-8
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
—E-EE —E-hEF —E-N\F —E—+F —E-RE
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETRT ARETRT ARETRT ARETR
Total assets MEE 1,005,933 2348984 24,900,742 22,506,238 23,312,124
Non-current assets ERBEE 973,670 2,285,148 2,450,716 21.378,876 22,060,123
Current assets RHEE 32,263 63,836 22,450,026 1,127,362 1,252,001
Total liabilities mefs 8,904,999 10,912,489 34,530,868 33,752,593 32,575,882
Non-current liabilities EL eI B=N 1,449,322 937,125 754,638 208,445 30,003
Current liabilities mEaE 7,455,677 9,975,364 33,776,230 33,544,148 32,545,879
Total deficit a5 (7,899,066) (8,563,505) (9,630,12¢) (11,246,355 (9,263,758)

e On 9 October 2018, the Group announced the disposal of its Shipbuilding and e RZZE—\F+AIB FrEBSHEEEEMN

Engineering Business. The Shipbuilding and Engineering Business is classified RIRREY EMEIREBIBERERILE
as Discontinued Operations. Comparative figures for the year ended 31 BeHE_T—+tFFT_A=Z+T—BLEFEND
December 2017 were restated accordingly. BB FEMEEET -
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2021 AGM" 5
—E-—FRERFAZ

“Articles of Association” 5
[ 48 Al |

“bbl” 5
(1%

“Board” 5
[EEg

“China” or "PRC" b=
[ B

“Company”, “our Company” or 5

“Huarong Energy”

PACTERRRANCIRE AR - e

“Consolidated Share(s)” or “Share(s)” 5
[& 0F B 2 sk [ A% 17

“Director(s)” ¥
[E %]

“Disposal Group” 5
(& & E]

GLOSSARY
AR

the annual general meeting of the Company to be held on
Thursday, 3 June 2021
ARBIER_E_—F A= (EHM) RTHRRBESF
e

the amended and restated articles of association of the
Company adopted by special resolution passed on 24 October
2010 which became effective upon the Company’s listing on
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, as amended from time to
time
ARBIRETREITNEABERANR_F—FF+A
“HHEBERNABRRAL R AR EET BB
ERRAER)  REKLTEZER

barrels

1

the board of Directors of our Company

ARAMEEE

the People’'s Republic of China excluding, for the purposes of
this annual report, Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan
PEARANE  BAFERSHE  TEEESE R
S E=P-

China Huarong Energy Company Limited (# B % &8 g2 )R I%
3 B R A F]) (formerly known as China Rongsheng Heavy
Industries Group Holdings Limited (F7 Bl 48 BX & T £ B4E i
BBRZAF])), a company incorporated as an exempted company
with limited liability in the Cayman Islands on 3 February 2010
PEEXERROBERAG(FIBPEERETSEETER
BRAF) —KR_ZE—ZEF_A=REHRSHESTM
BRI BERRNARRAR

ordinary share(s) of HKD0.50 each in the share capital of the
Company upon the Share Consolidation becoming effective on
29 March 2016
BAOEHR-E—AF=ZAZTNLBEREBRARRAF
BREEISNETZERAK

director(s) of our Company

ARBNES

Able Diligent Limited together with its subsidiaries engaging in
the Shipbuilding and Engineering Business
Able Diligent Limited & E ¢ FiE i T2 ¥ 7% 2 M8 2 A
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GLOSSARY
AR

“Group”, “our Group”, "we" or “us”

[RE] - [AREE] %A

"HKD"
[T

“Hong Kong”
(&8

“Hong Kong Stock Exchange” or
“Stock Exchange”
[ 78 B 22 P ) 2l [ B8 <2 o

“Kyrgyzstan” or "Kyrgyz"
[ @ & AT Hr 38 |5 [ @ & A

“Listing”
[Tl

“Listing Date”
[ -7 B8

“Listing Rules”
[ £ R Al

“Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”
R INGES=FIE- Ve e

“RMB” or "Renminbi”
[AR
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the Company and its subsidiaries or any of them or, where
the context so requires, in respect of the period before
the Company became the holding company of its present
subsidiaries, the present subsidiaries of the Company
ARBREMBARKERERM—T  HMXEMFE © 5t
ARRAKREREMNBRARNERAR ZAMEME - 15
ARRIIRAB KM B AR

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

BEREEEEBET

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of China
FEREERFITERER

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
EEBARHMARRE

the Kyrgyz Rupublic (a Country in Central Asia)
TREAMNBE (PR —EBER)

the listing of the ordinary shares of HKD0.10 each of the
Company on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange

ARFEREEICGETH T BRRMNN BB AR
i=hi)

19 November 2010, being the date on which the ordinary
shares of HKDO0.10 each of the Company are listed on the Main
Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
—E-TF+-ATABR ARFESREECIOETHE
BEBRON BEBHIAER LHEH

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, as amended and
supplemented from time to time
BEEBARIMARRABSFLMRA  BTHERR
it

the pre-IPO share option scheme conditionally approved and
adopted by our Company pursuant to a resolution passed by
our Shareholders on 24 October 2010
BREBRER-Z—ZFFTA-THBEBBNRE ANAF
BEREIE T RAE ERAFHE S BRESS

the lawful currency of the PRC
TEEEER



"SFO"
(38 7% Rk R R B

“Share Consolidation”
[B& 10 & BF)

“Share Option Scheme”

[ 8 B 4 =t

‘uUsb”
E

GLOSSARY
AR

the Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the
Laws of Hong Kong, as amended and supplemented from time
to time

BREDESNEFEF LR EGERD EAEER] L5

with effect from 29 March 2016, the consolidation of every five
issued and unissued shares of HKDO0.10 each in the existing
share capital of the Company into one Consolidated Share of
HKDO0.50 each
ARARBERATBARSREEI0E T2 EEITRA
BIIRME A —REREECSE T ZE ARG - WR
ZE-R"FZAZTHhLABEXN

the share option scheme we conditionally adopted pursuant to
a resolution passed by our Shareholders on 24 October 2010
BMBRERMOBRER T —ZEFTATEHABRAN
R F A R SR ey BB R A 8

United States dollars, the lawful currency of the United States

XBEZEEERRET
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INFORMATION FOR SHAREHOLDERS

BREREH

Listing Information

Listing : Hong Kong Stock Exchange
Stock Code : 01101

Principal Share Registrar and Transfer Agent

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive,

P.0. Box 2681, Grand Cayman,

KY1-1111, Cayman Islands

Hong Kong Share Registrar
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor,

Hopewell Centre,

183 Queen’s Road East,

Wanchai, Hong Kong

Tel : (852) 2862-8628
Email : hkinfoldcomputershare.com.hk
Registered Office

Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive,
P.0. Box 2681, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands

Principal Place of Business and Headquarters

Suites 1508-10, 15/F,
Shui On Centre,

6-8 Harbour Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong

Contact Enquiries

Investor Relations

Tel : (852) 3900-1888
Email g cosec(@huarongenergy.com
Website g www.huarongenergy.com.hk

CHINA HUARONG ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED

218 TEERERRDERAA

EmER

WS BEAEBZAT
&% 17 X 5% © 01107
BREoBFETERE

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive,

P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman,

KY1-1111, Cayman Islands

EERSFERE
EBPRBAEZLARRAT

BEET

27 KB ®R183%

A AL

171817121716 F

B © (852) 2862-8628

Eil © hkinfo@computershare.com.hk
TR ERE

Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive,
P.0. Box 2681, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands

TEEEMWYRAT
BB BT

75 B 6-85%

G 22 H L

15#21508-10%F

BEEN

REEBRE
B © (852)3900-1888
B E © cosecf@huarongenergy.com

e © www.huarongenergy.com.hk



Executive Directors

CHEN Qiang (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

HONG Liang [Chief Operating Officer]
ZHU Wen Hua
Niu Jianmin

Independent Non-executive Directors

WANG Jin Lian
ZHQOU Zhan
LAM Cheung Mau

Audit Committee

ZHOU Zhan [(Chairman]
WANG Jin Lian
LAM Cheung Mau

Corporate Governance Committee

WANG Jin Lian (Chairman)]
CHEN Qiang
LAM Cheung Mau

Nomination Committee

WANG Jin Lian (Chairman)
/HU Wen Hua
/HOU Zhan

Remuneration Committee

ZHOU Zhan [Chairman)
CHEN Qiang
WANG Jin Lian

Finance and Investment Committee

CHEN Qiang (Chairman]
HONG Liang

WANG Jin Lian

ZHOU Zhan

Company Secretary
LEUNG Yin Fai
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
~EER

Auditor

Crowe (HK) CPA Limited
Public Interest Entity Auditor registered in accordance with the
Financial Reporting Council Ordinance

Legal Advisors

Paul Hastings
Commerce & Finance Law Offices

Company Website

http://www.huarongenergy.com.hk
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